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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CoNTINUED)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CoNTINUED)
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERERE

31 December 2018, Annual Report
Dear shareholders:

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Harmonicare, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to all shareholders as well as members of the community for their support to
the Group. Since its listing, the Group has been taking an active approach to expanding its
strategic network across core cities through self-built, cooperative establishment as well as
merge and acquisition. As at 31 December 2018, the Group has a total of 14 hospitals in
9 tier-1 and tier-2 cities, and three hospitals are under planning with our active efforts. In
the year 2018, we witnessed a challenging domestic economic and market environment,
and the Group also experienced numerous challenges and difficulties. However, through
proactive exploration, enhanced corporate operation and management, we successfully

maintained our reputation in the market and secured steady development.

In 2018, private obstetrics and gynecology medical industry was under intensified
competition in the short term due to a decline in the number of newborns in China and a
rise in various costs and expenses. During the year, the Group continued to advance the
medical technology, operation capability and service quality of its affiliated hospitals and
to enhance customer satisfaction, while continuing to push ahead with the construction
projects of newly built hospitals for the purpose of laying a solid foundation for its future
development. Benefiting from the increasing number of hospitals, the Group recorded
an increase in the number of patient visits and newborns as compared with 2017.
Nevertheless, various factors, such as high administrative expenses incurred by some new
hospitals which entered the later stage of establishment, losses recorded by newly merged
and acquired hospitals, some original hospitals and from investment in associates, also had

a negative impact on the results of the Group.

In the future, the Group will adjust and optimize the structure of its operation and
business, strengthen synergy among and growth potential of its businesses. The Group
will take multiple reform initiatives while remaining committed to offering quality medical
services. We will consolidate our capabilities in various disciplines and constantly introduce
quality medical resources to enhance our medical service; expand marketing channels
and enhance brand building to reinforce our competitiveness in the market; optimize
allocation of human resources and strictly control various costs and expenses to enhance
profitability. Meanwhile, the Group will actively explore and enhance strategic integration

and synergy with the industry to achieve win-win outcomes.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (coNTINUED)

We will face up to challenges and embrace visionary thinking, continue to explore
the potential of private ob-gyn and paediatrics health service sector, consolidate our
leading position in high-end chain ob-gyn and paediatrics hospitals and create value for
shareholders and the community. On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to
extend my sincere gratitude to all shareholders, business partners and customers for their
firm support, and to all employees for their persistent efforts to promote the development

of the Group.

Lin Yuming

Chairman

Beijing, 8 January 2021
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MBHRE

IN ACCORDANCE WITH INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

AR B PR Bt 35 3R o5 2 Rl

For the year ended 3| December

BZNA3ALEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT ARETT AREFT ARETFT
CONSOLIDATED RESULTS & ¥4E
Revenue I 1,014,990 924,151 859,701 909,362 935,839
(Loss) profit before tax Bial (&) M (749,533) 33947 123,886 141,967 139,327
Income tax expense PSR (35,858) (4,509) (26,615) (31,566) (34,198)
(Loss) profit for the year FA(EE) FE (785,211) 29,438 97,271 110401 105,129
Other comprehensive income — E 2 EUA 138 42 228 - -
Total comprehensive (expense) FRZHE ()
income for the year LNt (785,073) 29,480 97,499 110,401 105,129
Attributable to: AT AL -
Owners of the Company RRAEEA (725,161) 27,436 95936 106,173 103,379
Non-controlling interests IR (59,912) 2,044 1563 4228 1,750
(785,073) 29,480 97,499 110401 105,129
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERAR
Total assets mEE 1,210,205 1,827,120 1,683,575 ,628,06 384,821
Total liabilities raf (532,034) (245012) (300,194) (217,096) (484319)
678,171 1,582,108 1,383,381 1,410,965 (99,498)
Equity attributable to AT ALEERER
Owners of the Company ARAEE A 561,042 1,354,105 1,389,098 1,408909 (97.279)
Non-controlling interests TR R 117,129 228,003 (5717) 2,056 2219)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEFNRE DM

RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recorded a revenue of approximately
RMBI,014,990,000 (2017: approximately RMB924,151,000), representing an increase
of about 9.8% compared to that of 2017. The Group’s loss attributable to owners of
the Company was approximately RMB725,299,000 as compared to a gain attributable
to owners of the Company of RMB27,394,000 in 2017. Gross profit margin was
approximately 38.8% as compared to 46.3% in last year.

For 2018, due to the increase of the number of hospitals, the Group recorded a revenue
higher than 2017, but administrative costs generated from some newly constructed
hospitals which were in the later stage of preparation were much higher for 2018 as
compared with the 2017. Further, as more hospitals were running at a loss, additional
impairment losses on various assets and provision for onerous leases were made in the
year ended 3| December 2018. As a result, the net loss attributable to owners of the
Company amounted to RMB725.30 million for the year ended 3| December 2018, as
compared with the net profit attributable to owners of the Company of RMB27.39 million
for the year ended 3| December 2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (conTINUED)

EEENWE D

BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND OUTLOOK

Business Overview for 2018

Year 2018 is the third year since the implementation of the “two-child policy” in China.
As the cost of living continues to rise, the fertility desire of the age-appropriate population
declines, and the birth rate shows a downward trend. According to data released by
the National Bureau of Statistics, the number of newborns in China in 2018 was 15.23
million, representing an | 1.6% decrease compared to 17.23 million in 2017. In recent
years, capital has been entering the private matemity medical industry and the number of
medical institutions has been continuing to increase. These dual factors put many market

participants under pressure.

By the end of 2018, the Group had operated a total of 14 mid to high-end ob-gyn and
pediatrics specialty hospitals in 9 first and second-tier cities in China, with a total number
of 748 operating beds. Moreover, Wuxi HarMoniCare Hospital, Zhengzhou HarMoniCare
Hospital and Xiamen HarMoniCare Hospital were in the preparation stage. Benefiting
from the increasing number of hospitals, during 2018, the number of newborns in the
Group reached 10,856, representing an increase of 2.8% year-on-year. The total number
of outpatient visits provided by hospitals of the Group reached 667,244 in the full year
(2017: 625/470), representing a 6.7% increase year-on-year; the total number of inpatient
visits provided by hospitals of the Group reached 25,643 (2017: 25,556), representing
a 0.3% increase year-on-year. The average charge per diagnosis and treatment was
RMBI,408.9 (2017: RMB1,363.7), representing an increase of 3.3% year-on-year. Nantong
Hemeijia Hospital and Beijing Baiziwan HarMoniCare Hospital that were consolidated into

the Group in August 2017 and April 2018, respectively, are included in the above figures.

In 2018, the Group faced many challenges. Although it benefited from an increase in
the number of hospitals and overall income growth, the costs of operation continued to
rise, leading to a significant reduction in the profit level of the Group's original hospitals,
coupled with higher upfront costs in some new hospital projects, such as the newly
acquired Beijing Baiziwan HarMoniCare Hospital and Hibaby. Further losses were
contributed to additional impairment of various assets and provision for onerous leases
as more and more hospitals were running into operating losses in 2018. As a result, the

Group suffered a significant overall loss for the year ended 31 December 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (conTINUED)

We recognize that in the increasingly competitive environment, we need to constantly
improve aspects such as the Group's management and control, talent mechanism, brand
building and transformation of old hospitals. At the end of 2018, Shenzhen HarMoniCare
Hospital of the Group was involved in the “gene-edited baby” incident, which resulted
in a large number of negative reports from the media and had a huge impact on the
Company's brand image. The Company conducted an internal review and verification
on this incident, made clarifications immediately and actively sought investigation from
public security organs. At present, Shenzhen Municipal Health Commission has found
out that the ethics review letter alleged by the media to have been issued by Shenzhen
HarMoniCare Hospital was a forgery. After the incident, the Group focused on
strengthening the internal review of the implementation of the relevant systems so as to
root out the occurrence of adverse events in the future and maintain the Group's brand

reputation.

In 2018, the Group advanced the preparatory work for each new hospital as planned. The
jointly established Wuxi HarMoniCare Hospital, with a construction area of about | 1,500
square meters and 50 registered beds, had obtained the medical institution practice license
in December 2018 and plans to start trial operation in the near future. The Group's
self-built Zhengzhou HarMoniCare Hospital has a planned construction area of about
14,800 square meters and 150 registered beds. It had obtained the medical institution
practice license in January 2019 and plans to start trial operation in the near future. The
construction of the new hospital area of Nantong Hemeijia Hospital is also progressing
steadily. Currently, the construction of the above-ground part of the main building is
underway. It is expected that the new hospital area will be put into trial operation in 2021.
The new portion of the hospital, with a planned gross construction area of approximately
80,000 square meters and 400 planned beds, will be built into a Grade Il specialty hospital
featuring obstetrics and gynaecology. All new hospitals of the Group adhere to the
international Joint Commission International (*JCI") standard as the preparation standard,
and will provide customers with high-quality personalized medical experience by creating

an intelligent medical system.

For 2018, the Group'’s upstream and downstream industrial chain business proceeded as
planned. The Group has carried out medical cosmetology services in three of its hospitals.
Meanwhile, the Group's newly acquired subsidiary, Hibaby, is going to set up four Hibaby
maternal and infant health centers in Qingdao, Wuxi and Nanchang. As they are in
the early stage of operation, they have not yet generated profits. We believe that the
postpartum maternal and infant health services and the medical beauty services have great
market potential and are part of the important strategic extended layout of the Group in

the industrial chain.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (conTINUED)

EEEHRRED T @

Industry Outlook

Since the implementation of the “two-child policy” in China, the number of births has
shown a trend of decline for two consecutive years. The reasons are as follows: on the
one hand, the number of women of reproductive age continues to decrease; on the other
hand, affected by the increase of living costs, the fertility desire is low. The aging trend of
the population and the decline of the birth population have become important challenges
faced by China. At the same time, a series of policies to guarantee fertility will be
implemented in early 2019. In the Interim Measures for Special Additional Deduction for
Individual Income Tax, children’s education expenses are included in the special deduction
for fixed deduction. In response to the high cost of preschool education, the General
Office of the State Council also issued policies to effectively guide and regulate. We
believe that in the future, the government will fully relax the family planning restrictions
and introduce various measures to encourage more births. Although the decrease in the
number of births leads to the decline in the total market demand of the maternity and
children’s medical industry, more and more people are willing to experience high-end
medical services due to the upgrading of consumption and the higher requirements of
the younger generation for service quality. Although in the short term, the Group faces
increasing market competition, the large-scale operation and long-term accumulation of
brand advantage will help the Group obtain a more favorable competitive position. In this
context, the Group maintains a cautiously optimistic view on the future development of

the private maternity medical service market in first and second-tier cities.

The Group’s Strategy

In 2019, the Group will strive to ensure the stable development of its existing hospitals,
gradually restore the profit margin, and take measures to reduce the impact of the new
hospitals on the Group's overall profit as soon as possible so as to maximize the interests

of shareholders. Our strategies include:

0 strictly control medical safety, maintain brand reputation, and safeguard its rights

and interests against counterfeit brands in the market;
0 strengthen operation controls, strengthen the Group's operation assessment of the

affiliated hospitals, optimize the incentive and supervision systems, and improve the

human resource management and talent development plans;
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (conTINUED)

. transform business model, expand marketing channels, adhere to word-of-mouth

marketing, and reduce advertising expenses;

. strengthen the business guidance on newly built hospitals and newly acquired
hospitals, utilize the successful operation experience of the original hospitals, reduce
the financial impact of newly built hospitals on the Group as a whole, strengthen
the operation management of newly acquired hospitals, improve the synergistic

effect between each hospital and the Group, and realize resource sharing;

0 adjust the asset structure, dispose of the assets of mid-end hospitals which do
not conform to the strategic planning and hospitals with losses, and concentrate

resources to strengthen the competitive advantages of core hospitals; and

. strengthen the layout and extension of the upstream and downstream industrial
chain to enrich and expand the business areas of the Group. Actively carry out
business in the fields of assisted reproduction, maternity centers, postpartum
rehabilitation and medical cosmetology, and provide all-round services of maternal

and child health care.

EMOLUMENT POLICY
As at 31 December 2018, the Group had 3,983 employees (2017: 3,724 employees).

The remuneration policy and packages are reviewed annually by the management and
the Remuneration Committee. The Group remunerates its employees based on their
performance, work experience and the prevailing market rate. The remuneration packages
include basic salary, double pay, commission, insurance and mandatory provident fund.
The Group has adopted a share option scheme and a restricted share incentive scheme
to provide incentives or rewards to eligible participants for their contribution or potential

contribution to the Group.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2018, the total cash and bank balances of the Group were
approximately RMB 133,846,000 (2017: approximately RMB466,995,000). The cash and

bank balances consisted majority in Renminbi.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (conTINUED)
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As at 3| December 2018, the Group had total assets of approximately RMBI,2 10,205,000
(2017: approximately RMB1,827,120,000) and total liabilities of approximately
RMB532,034,000 (2017: approximately RMB245,012,000). As at 31
December 2018, the current ratio was .02 (2017: 5.20), calculated
on the basis of current assets of approximately RMB395,615,000
(2017: approximately RMB875,087,000) over current liabilities of approximately
RMB387,108,000 (2017: approximately RMBI168,377,000).

The Group's borrowings amounted to approximately RMB102,166,000 (2017: Nil).
The Group's borrowings are denominated in Renminbi, bearing fixed interest rates.
The Group's gearing ratio, being the ratio of the total debts to total assets, was 8.44%
(2017: Nil).

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL OFFERING

The net proceeds the Company obtained from the issuance of new shares through
the Global Offering are approximately RMBI,127 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$ 1,427 million upon listing) after excluding the underwriting fees and relevant expenses,
and as at 31 December 2018, the unutilized balance of net proceeds of approximately

RMBI 14.5 million were deposited in the bank account of the Group.

The net proceeds from the Global Offering have been and will be utilized in accordance
with the intended uses as disclosed in the Prospectus of the Company and subsequently
revised announcements issued by the Company dated 16 June 2017, 25 October 2017
and 23 November 2017. The unutilized balance of net proceeds of approximately
RMBI14.5 million consisted of approximately RMB89.8 million to be used in establishing
new hospitals in Xiamen, Zhengzhou, Nanjing, Hangzhou, Suzhou and Fuzhou and

approximately RMB24.7 million to be used in acquiring new hospitals.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (conTINUED)

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group with a total net book value of approximately
RMB20,610,000 were charged as collateral for the Group's borrowings (31 December
2017: approximately RMB Nil).

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(@) Disposal of the 92% equity interest of Shenzhen HarMoniCare Hospital

On 28 April 2019, Guiyang HarMoniCare Hospital, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, as vendor (the “Vendor"), and HarMoniCare Medical Management
and Beijing He An Da Management Consulting Co,, Ltd. (the “Beijing HAD"), as
creditors, entered into the disposal agreement with Shenzhen Renzheng Medical
Management Co, Ltd, as purchaser, pursuant to which the purchaser agreed to
acquire the 92% equity interests in Shenzhen Harmonicare Hospital from the
Vendor for a total consideration of RMB63,000,000 (including a cash consideration
of RMBI1,000,000 and the purchaser agreed to settle an amount of RMB62,000,000
of outstanding debts owed by Shenzhen HarMoniCare Hospital to the creditors).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (conTINUED)
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Disposal of the entire equity interest of three subsidiaries

On 24 July 2019, Guiyang HarMoniCare Hospital, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, as vendor, and HarMoniCare Medical Management, as creditor,
entered into the disposal agreement with Zhenjiang Kelida Information Technology
Service Center (limited partnership), as purchaser, pursuant to which the purchaser
agreed to acquire the entire equity interests of each of Wuhan Modern Obstetrics
and Gynecology Hospital Co,, Ltd, Chongging Wanzhou HarMoniCare Obstetrics
and Gynecology Hospital Co,, Ltd. and Chongging Dushi Liren Hospital Co,, Ltd.
(collectively, the “Target Companies”) from the vendor for a total consideration of
RMB22,000,000 (including a cash consideration of RMB2,200,000 and the purchaser
agreed to settle an amount of RMB19,800,000 of outstanding debts owed by the

Target Companies to the creditor).

Resumption Guidance

The Company announced that there would be a delay in the release of the
2018 Annual Results and despatch of its 2018 Annual Report. Such a delay
was due to the Company requiring time to negotiate on and approve the
proposed settlement of Hibaby and consider implications, if any, on its financial
statements, and to provide the former auditors of the Company, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu (‘Deloitte”), with further information in connection with the foregoing
when available. The equity transfer agreement was given to Deloitte, for their
consideration near to the finalization of the 2018 Annual Results in March 2019.
An audit committee meeting was convened on 26 March 2019 and it was resolved
that the Company would be preparing to engage an independent intemal control
consultant to review the intemal control procedures of the Company. There were
additional steps that Deloitte would need to take before signing off on the 2018
Annual Results, and it was expected that the Company would not be able to (1)
publish the 2018 Annual Results on or before 31 March 2019; and (2) despatch the
2018 Annual Report to the Shareholders on or before 30 April 2019 (the “Delay").
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (conTINUED)

On |5 May 2019, the Company received a letter from the Stock Exchange, in
which the Stock Exchange stated the following resumption guidance for the

Company (“Resumption Guidance”):

(0) publish all outstanding financial results and address any audit modifications;

(ii) conduct an independent internal control review and demonstrate that
the Company has in place adequate interal control and procedures to

comply with the Listing Rules; and

(iil) announce all material information for the Company's shareholders and

other investors to appraise the Company's position.

Consequently, the Audit Committee engaged BDO Financial Services Limited
(‘BDO") as an independent internal control consultant to independently review (the
“Initial IC Review") certain internal control procedures of the Company. The scope
of the Initial IC Review included an independent assessment of the internal control
systems of the Group, covering the transaction process of the Equity Transfer,
anti-fraud management, the administration of contracts and seals, the management
of fund and investment; and the management of cash and payment during the
period of | January 2018 to 31 March 2019, the results of which were published by
the Company in its announcement dated 25 March 2020.

On 17 July 2020, the Company appointed Netis Advisory Limited (“Netis”) as
its internal control consultant (the “Internal Control Consultant”) to conduct a
comprehensive review (the “Comprehensive IC Review") of the Group's internal
control procedures which will cover all of the Group's significant subsidiaries and
to the extent practicable, its major associated companies, for the period between
| January 2018 and 31 July 2020 in order to comprehensively evaluate the Group’s
internal control systems. Netis issued a draft Comprehensive IC Review report
(the “Comprehensive IC Review Report”) containing its findings of the review
and intemnal control recommendations. The Company has since implemented the
internal control recommendations in accordance with the draft Comprehensive

IC Review Report in consultation with Netis. The Audit Committee reviewed the
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (conTINUED)
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(d)

draft Comprehensive IC Review Report and agreed with its findings and internal
control recommendations in a meeting of the Audit Committee attended by Netis.
The final Comprehensive IC Review Report was issued on 3 December 2020.
For more details regarding the Initial IC Review, the Comprehensive IC Review,
the Resumption Guidance and the resumption progress, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 12 June 2019, 28 June 2019, 3 July 2019, 31
July 2019, 29 September 2019, 31 October 2019, 31 March 2020, 30 June 2020,
|7 July 2020, 30 September 2020, 4 December 2020, 4 January 2021 and 8 January
2021.

Others
Reference are made to announcements of the Company dated 21 November
2019, 15 June 2020, 2 July 2020 and 16 October 2020. Terms used hereinafter

shall have the same meaning as defined in the announcements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of

the Company's listed securities during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, none of the Directors, the controlling

shareholders or their respective associates had engaged in or had any interest in any

business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the

business of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (conTINUED)

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2018 (2017: Nil).

THE COMPANY AND AUDIT COMMITTEE’S VIEW ON THE DISCLAIMER
OF AUDIT OPINION

The Board and Audit Committee have reviewed the Disclaimer of Opinion as set out in
the Independent Auditor's Report, and are confident that the Group will have sufficient
liquidity to finance its operations for the next twelve months and therefore is of the
view that the Group would be able to continue its businesses and operations as a going

concern and the qualification issues will be fully resolved in due course as follows:

Limited accounting books and records of subsidiary disposed

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 28 April 2019, the Group
disposed 92% equity interest in Shenzhen HarMoniCare Hospital. Upon the
completion of such disposal, the management of the Company (the “Management”)
ceased to involve in the management of Shenzhen HarMoniCare Hospital.
When the Company's auditor performed their audit which covered the financial
information of Shenzhen HarMoniCare Hospital before the disposal date (i.e
30 May 2019), the new management of the Shenzhen HarMoniCare Hospital
refused to co-operate with our auditors, which resulted to such a scope limitation

qualification by our auditors.

However, since Shenzhen HarMoniCare Hospital had already been disposed by
the Group in 2019, such qualification is limited to the period on or before 30 May
2019. In other words, such qualification shall not have impact to the Company's
consolidated financial position as at 31 December 2019 and any consolidated profit

and loss period starting from 31 December 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (conTINUED)
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Limited accounting books and records of the Hibaby Group

The Group acquired additional 48.53% equity interest in Hibaby on 8 November
2018 (the “Acquisition”), which turned Hibaby Group from an investment in
associated companies to an investment in subsidiaries and Hibaby Group's financial
information was consolidated to the Company's consolidated financial statements
starting from 8 November 2018. However, the Group was unable to complete
its payment for the Acquisition when our auditors were performing their audit
work, which resulted that the sellers of the 48.53% equity interest in Hibaby (the
“Vendors") withheld certain accounting records and evidences related to Hibaby
Group until the Group fully paid for its Acquisition. As a consequence, our auditors

qualified for a scope limitation related to the financial information of Hibaby Group.

The Management is currently actively negotiating with the Vendors at this moment,
and it is expected that the Company will settle the Acquisition consideration
and regain all accounting records of Hibaby Group in the first quarter of 2021.
Therefore, the Management expects that such qualification will not have impact in

the financial year ending 31 December 2021, if not earlier.

Property, plant and equipment and land use right

Nearly all our hospitals were running at a loss, in particular, during the COVID-19
pandemic. Therefore, our auditors were concerned on the carrying value of our
property, plant and equipment and land use rights, the amount of impairment and

corresponding effects on depreciation during the periods of their audit.

The Management is in the process of disposing all hospitals which are unlikely to
regain profitability in a short period of time while adding new scope of services
in order to improve profitability of all remaining hospitals. By doing so, the
Management expects that all hospitals within the Group shall becomes profitable
by the end of 2021. As such, the Management believes that such qualification shall

cease to carry forward on and beyond 31 December 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (conTINUED)

Goodwill and other intangible assets

The amount qualified by the auditors were mainly consisted of RMB4 million
goodwill and RMB44 million other intangible assets related to Nantong Hemeijia
Hospital and RMB7.4 million other intangible assets related to Beijing Baiziwan.
Since both hospitals ran into operating losses starting in 2019, our auditors were

concerned on valuation of such assets.

The Management is in the process of disposing Nantong Hemeijia Hospital and
is expected to complete by the Ist half of 2021. Once the disposal of Nantong
Hemeijia Hospital is completed, such qualification related to Nantong Hemeijia
Hospital shall cease to have carried forward impact in our consolidated financial
statements. Further, based on the latest operating data, the Management believes
that Beijing Baiziwan shall be profitable for the year ending 31 December 2021,
which can then justify the carrying value of its intangible assets. In other words, the
Management is confident that such qualification shall cease to have impact to our
consolidated financial position as at 31 December 2021 and profit and loss for any

period starting from 31 December 2021.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and contingent consideration
receivables

This qualification related to RMBI65 million financial assets held by the Group
against Wuxi HarMoniCare Hospital and RMBI | million contingent consideration

receivables from the minority interest in Nantong Hemeijia Hospital.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (conTINUED)
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For the financial assets held by the Group, it is an amount due from Wuxi
HarMoniCare Hospital, a new obstetrics and gynecology hospital owned by
independent third party. This receivable allows the Group to convert into equity
of Wuxi HarMoniCare Hospital and becomes the controlling shareholder of
Wuxi HarMoniCare. Hospital The Management is in the process of disposing such
financial assets to independent third parties at this moment and will consider to
exercise its rights to convert such financial assets into equity of Wuxi HarMoniCare
Hospital should the Management fails to dispose such financial assets in the next
few months. Regardless of the outcome as described above, such financial assets
shall cease to exist in the Group in 2021 and therefore, the Management believes
that the qualification related to financial asset shall not carry forward to Company’s
consolidation financial position as at 31 December 2021 and profit or loss for any

period starting from 31 December 2021.

Similarly to goodwill as described in 4 above, upon the disposal of Nantong
Hemeijia Hospital as described above, this qualification related to contingent
receivables shall not carry forward to Company's consolidation financial position as
at 31 December 2021 and profit or loss for any period starting from 31 December
2021.

Trade receivable
This qualification is related to trade receivable in the books of Tai He Tang. The
Management is confident that the Group should be able to collect the full amount

of the trade receivable on or before 3| December 2021.

Prepayment, deposits and other receivables, other long-term assets and loan
receivables

This qualification is related to RMBI5 million in the books of Nantong Hemeijia
Hospital and RMB4.6 million in the books of HarMoniCare Medical Management.
Since the Management are in the process of disposing Nantong Hemeijia Hospital,
therefore upon the disposal of Nantong Hemeijia Hospital, the qualification
related to Nantong Hemeijia Hospital trade receivables shall not carry forward to
Company's consolidation financial position as at 3| December 2021 and profit or

loss for any period starting from 31 December 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (conTINUED)

Further, the portion related to HarMoniCare Medical Management was related to
a cooperation with an independent third party to set up a new IVF facilities in the
Jiangxi province and the Group originally invested RMB36 million. This co-operation
had been ceased in 2018 and RMB31 million had been refunded as of today. The
Management is confident that the Group should be able to receive the full amount
of RMB4.6 million on or before 31 December 2021.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

This qualification exists due to the tax effect on other qualifications as described
above. Therefore, once the other qualifications described above are resolved, this
qualification will also be resolved. Therefore, the Management is confident that this
qualification shall not have impact on the financial position as at 31 December 202 |

and profit or loss for any period starting from 31 December 2021.

Provision for onerous contracts

This qualification is related to various long term non-cancellable leases contracts
for lease commitments as at 31 December 2018. However, upon the adoption
of new accounting standards on lease accounting in 2019 by the Group, all future
lease commitments shall be recognized as liabilities and therefore, such provision
for onerous contracts is no longer necessary. In other words, such qualification
will not have any impact to our Company's consolidated financial position as at 31

December 2019 and profit or loss for any period starting from 31 December 2019.

Contingent liabilities

The Group is facing a number of litigation claims, which mainly represented by
the litigation claims for unpaid acquisition consideration of Hibaby and unpaid
construction and service contracts by the Group due to lack of funding in certain

operations.

For all the cases related to Hibaby, the Management is confident to settle all the
claims in the first quarter of 2021, and therefore, the Management believes the
qualification related to Hibaby shall have no carried forward effect to the financial

statements for the year ending 3| December 2021, if not earlier.
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For all other cases, as those cases are related to loss making subsidiaries to be

disposed by the Group in 2021, the Management is confident that such qualification

shall be removed as of 31 December 2021 and profit and loss for any period

starting from 31 December 2019.

Material uncertainty related to going concern

The directors of the Company have prepared the consolidated financial statements

based on going concern on the assumptions and measures that:

@

The Group is actively disposing certain subsidiaries including but not limited
to Nantong Hemeijia Hospital. The management of the Group is confident
that such disposals would generate at least RMBI50 million cash inflow to
the Group and significantly reduce overall capital commitments of the Group

in2021;

The management has ceased or delayed nearly all construction of new
hospitals and new investments until the Group's net current liabilities

situation is resolved;
The Group applies cost control measures in cost of sales, administrative

expenses and capital expenditures; and

The Group s also maximising its sale effort and implementing comprehensive

policies to improve operating cash flows.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Disclaimer of Opinion and the basis

thereof. The Management has reviewed the impact of the Disclaimer of Opinion

and the action plan above. There was no disagreement between the views of the

Audit Committee and the Management in respect of (i) the Disclaimer Opinion,

and (ii) the Company's plan to address the Disclaimer of Opinion above.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Lin Yuming (B EB8), aged 51, founder of our Group, is the chairman of the Board,
an executive Director and the president of our Company, mainly responsible for overall
strategic planning and business development of our Group. He is also the chairman of
the Nomination Committee. Mr. Lin joined our Group in December 2005. He served as
the general manager of Shanxi Modem Hospital from August 2003 to July 2004, and the
executive director and general manager of Beijing Modern Woman Hospital Investment
Management Co, Ltd. LRI R L F B IRE B IR AR 2 F]) from July 2004 to March
2012, both mainly responsible for general management and operation of the two hospitals.
He established Bosheng Medical and has served as its chairman and president since
December 2007, mainly responsible for general management and operation of Bosheng
Medical. Mr. Lin has also served as the executive director of some other members of
the Group, such as (i) Wuhan Modern Hospital since December 2005, (ii) Guangzhou
Woman Hospital since July 2008; (iii) Chongging Wanzhou HarMoniCare Hospital
since March 2009; (iv) Guiyang HarMoniCare Obstetrics and Gynecology Hospital since
May 2009; (v) Chongging Fuling HarMoniCare Hospital since June 2009; (vi) Fuzhou
Modern Hospital since January 2010; (vii) Shenzhen HarMoniCare Hospital since July
2010; (viily Guiyang HarMoniCare Hospital since March 201 1; (ix) Beijing HarMoniCare
Hospital since June 201 [; (x) Chongging Dushi Liren Hospital since August 2013; and
(xi) Chongging Modern Hospital since April 2014. Mr. Lin studied law at Central China
Normal University from March 2008 to January 2010 and obtained a bachelor's degree in
business management in July 2012 through online education. Mr. Lin is the sole director of
Homecare and the brother of Mr. Lin Yuhua and Mr. Lin Yurong, each is our substantial

Shareholder. Mr. Lin is also the brother of Mr. Lin Yuguo, our non-executive Director.
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Mr. Yang Guo (%), aged 37, is an executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer
of our Company since August 2020. He has more than |5 years of working experience.
Mr. Yang worked as a vice president and chief executive officer responsible for strategy
formulation and operation management of Beijing Century Yaolan Network Technology
Co, Ltd. (E R EERE M AR 2 A]) successively. Then he served as a vice
president responsible for assisting the chairman of the group in participating in post-
investment management and innovative integration of group cluster companies of Shanghai
Tianyi Investment (Group) Co, Ltd. (E/@XIEIRE (5£E) AR F]) and acted as a
chief executive officer responsible for strategy formulation and operation management of
Chengdu Tiandiwang Information Technology Co., Ltd. (A #RHABE BRHEARAR)),
which was held by Shanghai Tianyi Investment (Group) Co, Ltd. (BB REBRE (£E)
BBRA7A]). Mr. Yang graduated from Jilin University (FF#AAE8) with a bachelor's degree
in engineering and from China Europe International Business School (FFBXEIFR T &8
BT) with a master's degree in business administration. Mr. Yang was a director of Bencao
Zhenxuan (Chengdu) Network Technology Co,, Ltd. (NEB3&E (A &) SRR BR A
&]), a company established in the People’s Republic of China and engaged in the internet
business, which was deregistered in June 2020 due to voluntary cessation of its business.
Mr. Yang confirmed that the company was solvent at the time of it being deregistered and
there was no wrongful act on his part leading to such deregistration and he is not aware
of any actual or potential claim that has been or will be made against him as a result of the
deregistration, and that his involvement in the above company was part and parcel of his
services as a director of such company and that no misconduct or misfeasance had been

involved in the deregistration of such company.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (coNTINUED)

Mr. Wei Rongda (BR&83&), aged 37, is an executive Director and a vice president of
our Company since August 2020. He is currently the general manager of the operation
management department of the Group. Mr. Wei joined Shanxi Modern Woman Hospital
(LFEIRARIFEEPL) in March 2005 and was the general manager of Weihai Modern
Woman Hospital (Bl/BIRRIBERT) from April 2008 to December 2012. Mr. Wei
acted as the general manager of Heilongjiang HarMoniCare Hospital (28T fIXIRE
EP7), a subsidiary of the Group from December 2012 to July 2020, and a district general
manager of the Group who was in charge of the operation management of Heilongjiang
HarMoniCare Hospital (FR8E)LFMEFEEEFT), Wuhan Modern Hospital (ELERA
EBr) and Wuxi HarMoniCare Hospital (51X E

July 2020, and began to serve as the general manager of the operation management

) from September 2018 to

department of the Group from July 2020. Mr. Wei holds a master's degree in project
management from China University of Geosciences (F1 Bl K £2). Ms. Zhang Jinghua
(SRANEE), the spouse of Mr. Wei, is the sister of Ms. Zhang Qinghua (SREZE), who is
the spouse of Mr. Lin Yuming (the chairman, an executive director and president of the

Company).

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lin Yuguo (PR EEH), aged 48, is the brother of Mr. Lin Yuming and a non-executive
Director. He is also a member of the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Lin joined our
Group in July 2014 and has served as a director of HarMoniCare Management since
July 2014. He also serves as a director of Honeycare Intemnational Investment Limited,
our substantial Shareholder. Mr. Lin is the organizer of Changsha Liren Obstetrics and
Gynecology Hospital (KA BAREERT) since March 2007. Mr. Lin has served as a
director of Bosheng Medical since December 2007. He has also served as the chairman of
the board of Shanghai Mayo Hospital Investment Co, Ltd. (E/8XRBIRIREEEER
A R]) since August 2008, mainly responsible for the general management of the company.
Mr. Lin obtained a certificate of completion in modemn hospital management from PKU-
HKUST ShenZhen-HongKong Institution in May 2006. Mr. Lin also obtained an executive

master of business administration degree from Fudan University in January 2010.
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Mr. Qiu Jianwei (EBE1E), aged 44, is a non-executive Director and a member of
the Audit Committee. Mr. Qiu had been the assistant general manager of the Direct
Investment Department of Taikang Assets Management Co., Ltd. and the investment
director of Taikang Community Investment Company Limited (“Taikang Community")
since he joined Taikang Life Insurance Company Limited (“Taikang”) in 2002. Mr. Qiu has
been the director of TK Harmony Limited since November 2016, the vice president and
chief investor officer of Taikang Healthcare Investment Holdings Limited since April 2018
to December 2019, the general manager of TaiKang Healthcare Fund Management Co.
Ltd since December 2018 and the chief executive officer of Taikang Community since
December 2019, mainly responsible for the investment in and operation management
of commercial real estate, high-end elderly communities, tertiary hospitals, specialist
chain medical institutions, reform of private hospitals and other projects in the first and
second tier core cities in China such as Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou, Shenzhen, Sanya,
Suzhou, Nanjing, Chengdu, Wuhan, Hangzhou, Nanchang, Xiamen, Shenyang, Changsha,
Nanning, Hefei, Wenzhou and Kunming, respectively, which cover an aggregated area of
approximately 4 million m? with a total investment of over RMB70 billion. Mr. Qiu was
graduated in Beijing Normal University and obtained a bachelor's degree in international
economics. He s also a postgraduate of Finance of the Research Institute of The People’s
Bank of China. Mr. Qiu holds the Certification of Fund Professional of Asset Management
Association of China and has become a member representative of Shanghai Insurance

Exchange since 5 December 201 6.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (coNTINUED)

Mr. Xu Jun (#E), aged 52, is a non-executive Director and a member of the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Xu is the managing director/person-in-charge of Strategic Equity Investment
Department of Taikang Assets Management Co., Ltd. since April 2016 and is responsible
for strategic equity investment. He has been appointed as a director of Sichuan He Fu Yi Yi
Group Company Limited (70)I| Fiig B £ E AR5 B R A7) since September 2016, a
director of TK Harmony Limited since November 2016, a legal person and director of Beijing
Tongtai Glory Enterprise Management Company Limited Jt RBRIEE X ERFRA
A)) since April 2017 to March 2019, a director of Beijing Jinsong Dental Hospital Investment
Management Company Limited (3t RE)RARREFHEEERERAA]) from August
2017 to October 2019, a director of TaiKang Healthcare Fund Management Co. Ltd since
December 2018, a director of TK Healthcare Investment Limited since April 2019, a director
and legal representative of Shanghai Shengxu Health Management Consulting Co,, Ltd* (-
BRAERERZABRAF]) since July 2019, a director of Shanghai Jiaoteng Medical
Management Co,, Ltd. (E/BREEEEEBRAF]) since March 2020, a director of TK
Dental Limited since July 2020 and a director of Dingdang Medicine (Beijing) Technology Co.,,
Ltd. (TTISRER LB BIRAA]) since September 2020. Mr. Xu was a senior analyst of
Exis Consulting Company in New York, United States of America from February 1995 to
March 1997 responsible for the analysis of bonds in emerging markets; director of Bank Paribas
in New York, United States of America from April 1997 to May 2002 responsible for bonds
and foreign exchange business; deputy general manager of First-Trust Fund Management
in Shanghai from October 2002 to May 2004 responsible for investment research; general
manager of China Region of Principal Financial Group from June 2004 to October 2005
responsible for the group’s business in China; deputy general manager of the headquarters of
CCB Principal Asset Management, Beijing from November 2005 to January 2010 responsible
for financial engineering and risk management etc.; general manager of China Region of
Ashmore Investment Management Company from February 2010 to April 2016 responsible
for the group’s business in China. Mr. Xu was graduated in Shanghai Jiao Tong University and
obtained a bachelor's degree in Applied Physics. He obtained a doctorate degree in Physics

from Columbia University.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Fang Lan (J3/&), aged 50, joined our Group in March 2015 and is an independent
non-executive Director. She is also the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member
of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee. Prior to joining our
Group, Ms. Fang is the chairman of the board of directors of Shanghai Krdream Consulting
Co,, Ltd. (“Shanghai Krdream”) since August 2010, mainly responsible for overall
management and operation. Ms. Fang served as the finance director of InBev Management
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (RIBMEE L (LE)BMAF]) from June 2007 to June 2010,
mainly responsible for financial management. Ms. Fang has also served as an independent
director of Zhejiang Hexin Industry Group Co,, Ltd, a company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 002343) from May 2014 to August 2015. Ms. Fang
obtained a bachelor's degree in science from Oxford Brookes University in 2007. Ms. Fang
obtained a Certified Public Accountant (CPA) certificate from the Shanghai Institute of
Certified Public Accountants in December 2009, and an Associate of Chartered Certified
Accountant (ACCA) certificate from the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
in March 2006. Ms. Fang also obtained a certificate of completion in independent director

qualification training from the Shenzhen Stock Exchange in April 2014.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (coNTINUED)

Mr. Cai Jiangnan ($818), aged 63, joined our Group in March 2015, is an independent
non-executive Director. He is also a member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Cai assumed
various positions including human services program planner, reimbursement analyst,
and contract program coordinator at the Center for Health Information and Analysis at
Massachusetts from April 1999 to June 2012. Mr. Cai has served as a full-time professor
in economics and the director at the Centre for Healthcare Management and Policy
of China Europe International Business School (71 E{BIBR T &EZ35) since April 2012.
Mr. Cai has also served as an independent director of Zhejiang Dian Diagnostics Co.,
Ltd., a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 300244), from
May 2014 to September 2020 and an independent non-executive director of Shanghai
Pharmaceuticals Holding Co., Ltd,, a company listed on the HKEx (Stock code: 2607)
and the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock code: 601607), since June 2016. Mr. Cai was
appointed as an independent director and independent non-executive director of
WuXi AppTec Co., Ltd, a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock code:
603259) and HKEx (Stock code: 2359) respectively, with effect from March 2017 and
an independent director of Betta Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd., a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 300558), since November 2019. Mr. Cai obtained
a master's degree in economics from Fudan University in 1985 and a doctorate’s degree in
philosophy from Brandeis University in February 1997. Mr. Cai also obtained a certificate
in training for senior management of public companies from the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
in April 2014. He obtained a Sun Yefang Award in economic science paper in 1991 from
Sun Yefang Foundation (A7 & ERIBESE), and an Excellent Paper Award in
Shanghai Federation of Social Science Associations Seventh Annual Academic Seminar
from Shanghai Federation of Social Science Associations (_E/& AL SRR A E) in

20009.
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Ms. Hsu Wai Man Helen (#RZ8), aged 50, is an independent non-executive Director
of our Company since August 2020. She is also the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee.
She has over 20 years' experience in accounting. Ms. Hsu graduated from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree in business administration. Ms. Hsu
had been working in Ernst & Young for 18 years and was a partner of Ermnst & Young
before she retired from the firm in February 201 1. She is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the American Institute of

Certified Public Accountants.

Ms. Hsu is currently an independent non-executive director of Richly Field China
Development Limited (stock code: 0313), Perfect Shape Medical Limited (stock code:
1830), China Display Optoelectronics Technology Holdings Limited (stock code: 334)
and Beijing Gas Blue Sky Holdings Limited (stock code: 6828), the shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of the HKEx, and Perfect Optronics Limited (stock code: 8311),
the shares of which are listed on GEM of the HKEx. Ms. Hsu was an independent non-
executive director of BC Technology Group Limited (the shares of which are listed on
the Main Board of the HKEX, stock code: 0863) from April 2012 to May 2018, and an
independent non-executive director of Circle International Holdings Limited (the shares
of which are listed on the National Stock Exchange of Australia (NSX), stock code: CCH)
from September 2017 to May 2020.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (coNTINUED)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
For the biographical details of Mr. Lin Yuming, Mr. Yang Guo and Mr. Wei Rongda, please

see “— Directors — Executive Directors’.

Mr. Chen Longzhen (FRIE#H), aged 63, is the chief financial officer and a vice president
of our Company since August 2020. Mr. Chen had been the acting chief financial officer
of the Group from December 2019 to August 2020. Mr. Chen served as the finance
manager of Shandong Huimin Huarun Textile Co,, Ltd. (LR EREBHEER L F)
from December 1999 to October 2001. Mr. Chen successively served as an assistant of
general manager and finance director of China Resources Jinhua Co,, Ltd. (R
MBRAT) (currently known as Skyworth Digital Co., Ltd. (BI#EFRHERA
7)), listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000810)) from October 200
to February 2004. Mr. Chen served as a finance director of Shandong Juli Co,, Ltd. (ILIE
EOBRMBRAE]) (currently known as Weichai Heavy Machinery Co., Ltd. (#5¢E&
WA (D B A D), listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000880)) from
March 2004 to August 2005. Mr. Chen served as a finance director of Gaode Zhongcai
Technology Co,, Ltd. (RfERFRHZBMAF]) from August 2006 to March 2008,
and a finance director of Xiamen Tianwei Industrial Co., Ltd. (EFIREEXERA
a]) from March 2008 to May 2010. Mr. Chen served as a vice finance director and vice
director in securities investment department of Bosheng Medical Investment Co.,, Ltd. (1&
HBEIRERNBMAF]) from June 2010 to February 2015, mainly responsible for
management of finance, securities and investment. Mr. Chen served as the chief financial
officer of the Group from March 2015 to August 2017, mainly responsible for general
finance management of the Group. Mr. Chen obtained an associate degree in industry
accounting from Shandong TV University (LR BEERAL) in July 1986, and studied
in economics management at Shandong Cadres Correspondence University (LI 5 # 38 X
FARE) from July 1994 to June 1997. Mr. Chen also obtained the qualification of senior

accountant from Human Resources and Social Security Department of Shandong Province

(LB ANE R IRFEEE) in November 1997.
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Mr. Li Wenfeng (Z3LBl), aged 65, joined our Group in January 2015, is the uncle of
Mr. Lin Yuming and a vice president of our Company. Mr. Li has served as vice president
of HarMoniCare Management since January 2015, mainly responsible for procurement
and internal administration. Mr. Li served as deputy general manager of Shanxi Modem
Hospital from August 2003 to December 2007, and the vice president of Bosheng
Medical from December 2007 to December 2014, mainly responsible for management
of logistics department, audit department, president’s office, information department and
medical management department. Mr. Li has also served as the supervisor of some other
members of the Group, such as (i) Shanxi Wo De Investment since October 2009; (ii)
Tai He Tang since April 2013; (iii) Chongging Wanzhou HarMoniCare Hospital since
December 2013; (iv) Chongging Fuling HarMoniCare Hospital since December 2013;
(v) Beijing HarMoniCare Hospital since December 2013; (vi) Guiyang HarMoniCare
Obstetrics and Gynecology Hospital since August 2014; and (vii) Chongging Modern
Hospital since April 2014. Mr. Li has served as a director of Nantong Hemeijia Hospital,
a member of the Group since July 2017. Mr. Li obtained a certificate of completion in
modem hospital management from School of Continuing Education, Tsinghua University

in September 2010.
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The Directors are pleased to present this annual report and the audited consolidated

financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company, together with its subsidiaries, is mainly engaged in provision of high-quality
healthcare services to women and children. Tai He Tang, our subsidiary, is engaged in
distribution and sales of pharmaceuticals and medical devices (which include medical
consumables) to associated companies and Independent Third Parties. The Company is an
investment holding company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the healthcare

industry specializing in ob-gyn and paediatrics.

A list of the Company's subsidiaries, together with their places of incorporation, principal
activities and particulars of their issued shares/paid up capital, is set out in note 43 to the

consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year, a discussion on the Group'’s
future business development and the financial and operational key performance indicators
employed by the Directors in measuring the performance of our business are set out
in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 6 to 7 of this annual report,
“Financial Summary” on page 8 of this annual report, and “Management Discussion and
Analysis — Business Overview and Outlook” on pages 10 to |3 of this annual report. The
financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group are set out in note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report. Significant events that have an effect
on the Group subsequent to the financial year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in
note 45 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report. Besides, principal
risks and uncertainties faced by the Group, key relationship between the Group and its
employees, customers and suppliers, environmental policies of the Group and compliance

with the relevant laws and regulations which have significant impact are set out below.
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Key Risks and Uncertainties
The Group's results and operations are subject to various factors with the key risks

summarised below:
Reputation risk

Our business depends significantly on the soundness of our reputation. Failure to develop,
maintain and enhance our reputation, or any negative publicity or allegations in the
media against us, may adversely affect the level of market recognition of, and trust in, our
services, and failure to properly manage our physicians’ or other medical staffs clinical
activities may expose us to medical disputes, which could result in a material adverse
impact on our business, financial condition and results of operations. Our reputation and

business may be harmed accordingly.

In order to effectively protect the reputation of the Group, our department responsible
for publicity monitors around the clock and swiftly reacts to public opinions and
information, and actively collects feedback from our customers and employees, with a
view to protecting their benefits and legal rights. In addition, all of our hospitals implement
The Procedures and Management on Complaints Handling to improve satisfaction of our
customers. The Group has an Anti-Corruption Policy in place and relevant departments

assess risk of corruption regularly.

At the end of 2018, Shenzhen HarMoniCare Hospital of the Group was involved in the
“gene-edited baby" incident, which resulted in a large number of negative reports from the
media and had a huge impact on the Company’s brand image. The Company conducted
an internal review and verification on this incident, made clarifications immediately and
actively sought investigation from public security organs. At present, Shenzhen Municipal
Health Commission has found out that the ethics review letter alleged by the media to
have been issued by Shenzhen HarMoniCare Hospital was a forgery. After the incident,
the Group focused on strengthening the internal review of the implementation of the
relevant systems so as to root out the occurrence of adverse events in the future and

maintain the Group's brand reputation.
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Customer risk

As we provide mid-to-high-end healthcare services, our business, financial condition and
results of operations are subject to changes in patient preference, consuming power,

consumer confidence index and general economic conditions in our respective markets.

Adhering to the customer-oriented principle, we actively satisfy our customers” demands
for high-quality healthcare services by providing one-stop and variable services. Meanwhile,
we collect the opinions and suggestions of our customers from various channels to
improve the quality of our healthcare services. In the course of business operation, we
conduct market analysis on existing and potential customers to fully understand the

change of preference, consumption power and other indicators of customers.

Talent risk

If we are unable to attract, train and retain a sufficient number of qualified physicians,
management staff and other hospital personnel, our hospital operations could be
materially and adversely affected. Please refer to the section headed “Staff” below for our

policies regarding recruiting and retaining our staff members.

See the section headed “Staff” below for further details regarding the measures we

undertake to attract, retain and develop talents.

Key Relationships

The Group ardently believes that employees, customers and partners are key to our
sustainable and stable development. We are committed to establishing a close relationship
with our employees, enhancing cooperation with our partners and providing high-quality

services to our customers so as to ensure the Group's sustainable development.
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Staff

Our staff is regarded as one of the most important resources of the Group. The Group
has been endeavouring to provide our staff with a fair and harmonious workplace where
individuals with diverse cultural backgrounds are treated equally. We offer a competitive
remuneration package and opportunities for career advancement based on employees'
performance. The Group grants share options and share awards to outstanding
employees to recognise and reward the employees who have contributed to the Group's
development. The Group also provides our staff with regular trainings, including intemal
trainings and courses offered by professional organisations, so as to keep them abreast of

the latest development of the Company, medical industry and various businesses.

Customers

In order to provide high-quality and safe medical services to customers, we strictly
abide by the health policy for national medical and health industry and the international
standards promulgated by the JCl and adhere to our “customer-oriented” service
philosophy. We provide every patient with experienced medical staff and advanced
technologies and facilities for diagnosis and treatment to best satisfy the medical needs
of our customers. Meanwhile, we value feedback from customers and always seek to
understand their thoughts through services feedback and customer satisfaction surveys.
In addition, we also set up a customer service hotline to respond to any feedback and

complaints from customers.

We generally do not extend any credit period to our patients. We allow a credit period
of approximately 60 to 180 days for the hospital services provided to the patients which
are settled by and due from medical and commercial insurance programs, and less than
90 days for the supply of pharmaceuticals and medical devices after issuing invoice. For an
aging analysis of our trade receivable, please refer to note 29 to the consolidated financial

statements in this annual report.
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Suppliers

We firmly believe that our suppliers are equally important in providing high-quality medical
services. When selecting suppliers, we consider, among other things, their product range,
pricing, reputation, service quality and delivery schedule. We require our suppliers to
obtain requisite licenses and permits to operate their business, such as business licenses
and GMP Certificates and/or GSP Certificates. We proactively communicate with our
suppliers to ensure they are committed to delivering high-quality and high-standard
medical equipment and drugs, and adopt a centralised procurement system to better
control the quality of the medical supplies. We clearly state our professional integrity and
specify various requirements including regulatory compliance, anticorruption and other

business ethics in each contract we entered into with our suppliers.

Trade payables represent outstanding amounts due to our suppliers and other third
parties. Trade payables are non-interest bearing. For an aging analysis of our trade
payables, please refer to note 32 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual

report.

Environmental Policies

We are subject to various PRC laws, rules and regulations with regard to environmental
matters, including hospital sanitation, disease control, disposal of medical waste, and
discharge of wastewater, pollutants and radioactive substances. We have established
systems and procedures in place concerning environmental protection, such as requiring
all our hospitals to engage qualified service providers to dispose of medical waste and
radioactive substances. For further details regarding various environmental policies
applicable to us and our compliance measures, please refer to the Company's 2018
Environmental, Social and Governance Report. During the Review Period, our businesses
were in compliance with all the relevant laws and regulations with regard to environmental

protection in all material aspects.
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group's operations are mainly carried out by the Company's subsidiaries in the
PRC while the Company is a holding company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
its shares listed on the Main Board of the HKEx. Our establishments and operations
accordingly should comply with relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the Cayman
Islands and Hong Kong. During the Review Period, our businesses were in compliance
with all relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the Cayman Islands and Hong Kong in all

material aspects.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in the section
headed "Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income” on

page 90 of this annual report.

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 3|
December 2018 (2017: nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2018 are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements in this

annual report.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group for the year ended 3| December
2018 are set out in the section headed “Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity” on
pages 93 to 94 of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, and subject to the provisions of the
Articles of Association, the share premium account of the Company may be applied for
distribution to shareholders provided that immediately following the date on which the
distribution is proposed to be paid, the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in

the ordinary course of business.
As at 31 December 2018, the aggregate amount of distributable reserves, being share

premium less accumulated loss of the Company was RMB576,983,000 (2017: share
premium plus retained profits was approximately RMBI,304,462,000).
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the Group's property, plant and equipment during the
Review Period are set out in note |9 to the consolidated financial statements in this

annual report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the past five
financial years is set out in the section headed “Financial Summary” on page 8 of this

annual report.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the Review Period amounted
to RMB42,177 (2017: RMB62,000).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 3| December 2018, the Group with a total net book value of approximately
RMB20,610,000 were charged as collateral for the Group's borrowings (31 December
2017: approximately RMB Nil).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, no individual patient has contributed over 5%
of our total revenue. During the Review Period, our five largest customers were corporate
customers engaged in the supply of pharmaceuticals and medical devices business, who in

aggregate contributed to less than 5% of our revenue during the Review Period.

Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers in aggregate accounted for approximately
10.9% (2017: 19.9%) of the total purchases of the Group for the Review Period and
purchases from the largest supplier accounted for approximately 8.73% (2017: 9.6%) of

our total purchases.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors or any of their close
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) or Shareholders that owned more than 5% of
the issued Shares had any direct or indirect interest in the five largest customers or the

five largest suppliers of the Group during the Review Period.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Review Period and up to the date of this Directors’ Report are

as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lin Yuming (Chairman and President)

Mr. Fang Zhifeng (Vice President) (resigned on 31 July 2020)

Mr. Zhao Xingli (resigned on 14 June 2020)

Mr. Yang Guo (Chief Executive Officer) (appointed on |1 August 2020)
Mr. Wei Rongda (Vice President) (appointed on | August 2020)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lin Yuguo
Mr. Qiu Jianwei

Mr. Xu Jun

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Kong Aiguo (resigned on 24 August 2020)

Ms. Fang Lan

Mr. Cai Jiangnan

Ms. Hsu Wai Man Helen (appointed on 24 August 2020)

In accordance with article 84(1) of the Articles of Association, Mr. Lin Yuming, Mr. Xu Jun,
Mr. Qiu Jianwei and Ms. Fang Lan, who have held their offices as directors for more than
three years, as well as Mr. Lin Yuguo and Mr. Cai Jiangnan, shall retire as Directors at the
forthcoming AGM, and Mr. Yang Guo, Mr. Wei Rongda and Ms. Hsu Wai Man Helen,
who were appointed by the Board during the Review Period, shall hold office only until
the forthcoming AGM pursuant to article 83(3) of the Articles of Association. All of the

above retiring Directors are eligible for re-election and will offer themselves for re-election

thereat.
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THE BIOGRAPHY OF THE DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the Company are
set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 25 to 34 of

this annual report.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF THE DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a three-year service contract with the
Company, subject to termination before expiry by either party giving not less than one

month notice in writing to the other.

Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors has
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term of three years
and shall be terminable by either party giving not less than one month notice in writing to

the other.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a service
contract with any member of the Group which is not determinable by the employer

within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid individuals in the Group

are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As of 31 December 2018, the Group had 3,983 employees (31 December 2017: 3,724),
of which 3,948 employees (31 December 2017: 3,689) were involved in the general
hospital services and management sector and 35 employees (31 December 2017: 35) in
the supply of pharmaceuticals and medical devices sector. The remuneration policy and
packages are reviewed annually by the management and the Remuneration Committee.
The Group remunerates its employees based on their performance, work experience
and the prevailing market rate. The remuneration packages include basic salary, double
pay, commission, insurance and mandatory provident fund. The Group has adopted the
Share Option Scheme and the Restricted Share Incentive Scheme to provide incentives
or rewards to eligible participants for their contribution or potential contribution to the

Group.
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The Group also organises professional and vocational trainings to its employees.

The remuneration of the Directors is reviewed by the Remuneration Committee and
approved by the Board. The relevant Director's experience, duties and responsibilities,
time commitment, the Company’s performance and the prevailing market conditions are

taken into consideration in determining the emolument of the Directors.

INDEPENDENCE OF THE INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive Directors
an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company believes that all of the independent non-executive Directors are

independent in accordance with the guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

As disclosed in the Prospectus, Mr. Lin Yuming and Homecare, our then Controlling
Shareholders, have undertaken to the Company in a deed of non-competition that,
subject to and except as mentioned in the Prospectus, they would not, and would procure
that none of their associates (other than any member of the Group) will directly or
indirectly engage in any business which, directly or indirectly, competes or may compete
with the Group's business in the PRC or any other places in which the Group carries on
business. Each of them has confirmed in writing to the Company of their compliance with
the deed of non-competition for disclosure in this annual report during the year ended 31
December 2018. No new business opportunity was informed by them as at 3|1 December
2018.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the implementation of the deed
of non-competition and are of the view that the non-competition undertakings have been

complied with by Mr. Lin Yuming and Homecare for the year ended 3| December 2018.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

Saved as disclosed in this annual report, as of 31 December 2018, none of the Directors
or their respective associates had engaged in or had any interest in any business which

competes or may compete with the business of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF
THE COMPANY OR ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief
executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which were required (a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) to be
recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or (c) as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code

were as follows:

Long positions in Shares
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Mr. Lin Yuming®™® Interest of controlled corporation 218,252,390 2878
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Note: Bzt :

These Shares are held by Homecare, the 100% equity interest of which is owned by Mr. Lin Yuming.

Therefore, Mr. Lin Yuming is deemed to be interested in these Shares.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, so far as is known to the Directors or
chief executive of the Company, none of the Directors or chief executive of the Company
had interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations which (a) were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
to be recorded in the register referred to therein; or (c) were required, pursuant to the

Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Share Option Scheme was conditionally adopted pursuant to a resolution passed by

the Shareholders on 9 June 2015, and became effective on the Listing Date.

Purpose
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme s to provide an incentive or reward for
Eligible Participants (defined below) for their contribution or potential contribution

to the Company and/or any of its Subsidiaries.

2. Eligible participants
Subject to and in accordance with the provisions of the Share Option Scheme and
the Listing Rules, the Board may at its sole discretion grant options to any full-time
or part-time employees of the Company, its subsidiaries or any entities in which
the Group holds any equity interest, including (a) any executive and non-executive
directors (including independent non-executive directors) of the Company, its
subsidiaries or invested entities, (b) any executives (including president, senior vice
president, vice president of the Group), central management (including general
manager, director, deputy general manager and deputy director), management of
president’s office (including officer and deputy officer), department managers of
divisions under respective centres, general managers and department managers
of commercial management companies, senior management (including general
manager and deputy general manager) of project companies and persons holding
managerial positions of respective departments of the Company, its subsidiaries or

invested entities.
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Life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid for a period of six years from 9 June 2015.

Total number of Shares available for issue

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not, in aggregate, exceed
76,722,908, being 10% of the total issued Shares as of the Listing Date (without
taking into account the partial exercise of the over-allotment option) representing
10.12% of the total issued shares as at the date of this annual report. As at the date
of this annual report, there is no outstanding share options of the Share Option

Scheme.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

Unless approved by the Shareholders, the total number of Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of options granted to any participant (including exercised and
outstanding options) under the Share Option Scheme in any |2-month period up

to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the total Shares in issue.

Offer period and amount payable for options

An offer of the grant shall remain open for acceptance by the eligible participant for
a period of not more than |5 days from the date on which it is made. A nominal
consideration of HK$1.00 is payable upon acceptance of the grant of option which

the Company has subsequently waived.

Minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be exercised

The minimum period during which an option must be held before it can be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme shall be one
year after the date on which the option is granted. The Board may in its absolute

discretion impose further restrictions on the exercise of the option.
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Period within which the Shares must be taken up

Subject to the discretion of the Board who may impose restrictions on the exercise
of the option, any option may be exercised one year after the date on which the
option is granted and shall expire on the earlier of the last day of (i) a six-year
period from the date of such grant; and (i) the expiration of the Share Option

Scheme.

Basis of determining the subscription price
The price per Share at which a grantee may subscribe for Shares upon exercise of
an option (the “Exercise Price”) shall be a price determined by the Board but in any

event shall be at least the highest of:

() the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotations sheets on the date on which the option is granted (must be a

business day);

(i) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotations sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the date
on which the option is granted; while if the Company has been listed for less
than five business days, the new issue price shall be regarded as the closing

price for the business day in any period prior to the listing; and

(i) the nominal value of the Share.

No options were outstanding pursuant to the Share Option Scheme as at 31 December

2018. Options previously granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme were all lapsed

and have been cancelled by the Company during the year ended 3| December 2017.
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RESTRICTED SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEME

On 21 December 2017, the RSI Scheme of the Company was approved and adopted by
the Board.

(1

©)

Purpose

The purpose of the RSI Scheme are (i) to recognise and motivate the key
management personnel and persons who made special contribution to the
Company; (i) to enhance the value of the Company and further align the interests
of the selected participants directly with those of the shareholders of the Company
through ownership of Shares; and (iii) to help the Company to retain the selected

participants in attaining the long-term business goals of the Company.

Eligible Persons

Pursuant to the RSI Scheme, the Board may, from time to time, in its sole and
absolute discretion, select eligible persons to be selected participant(s) (the “RSI
Participants”) after taking into various factors as they deem appropriate and
determine the number and the price of award shares to be awarded to each
selected participant. Eligible persons shall cover key management personnel
(including the directors and mid-level and senior management, core experts and

core employees), and persons who made special contribution to the Group.

Administration

The RSI Scheme shall be subject to the administration of the Board and the
Trustee (as defined below) in accordance with rules of the RSI Scheme and the
trust deed in respect of the appointment of the Trustee for the administration of
the RSI Scheme. The Board may act through the authorised representatives of the
Company to give instructions or notices to the Trustee on matters in connection
with the operation and administration of the RSI Scheme and the trust. The
Company has appointed The Core Trust Company Limited as the trustee (the
“Trustee”) to assist with the administration and vesting of award shares granted
pursuant to the RSI Scheme. The Trustee shall hold the Shares under the RS
Scheme and any economic benefits to be derived from such Shares in accordance

with the RSI Scheme Rules and the terms of the trust deed.
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Maximum Limit

The Board shall not make any further award of award shares which will result in the
aggregate number of award shares awarded by the Board throughout the duration
of the RSI Scheme to exceed 5% of the total number of issued Shares of the

Company as at 21 December 2017.

Operation

The Board may, from time to time, in its sole and absolute discretion, select the RSI
Participants after taking into account various factors as they deem appropriate and
determine the number and the price of the award shares to be awarded to each

RSI Participant.

Pursuant to the RSI Scheme Rules, the Board shall cause to pay the Trustee the
purchase price and the related expenses from the Group's internal resources for
the grant of the award shares and the Trustee shall apply the purchase price to
purchase from the open market all of the award shares to be awarded under
the RSI Scheme and shall hold such award shares until they are vested to the RS
Participants in accordance with the RSI Scheme, the Trust Deed and/or terms
of specific grants. For the avoidance of doubt, all Shares purchased as aforesaid
shall only be used for allocation to the RSI Participants in accordance with the RSI

Scheme rules.

Restrictions

No award shall be made to RSI Participants, no payment for the purchase of Shares
shall be made to the Trustee and no directions or recommendation to acquire
Shares shall be given to the Trustee under the RSI Scheme where any Director is in
possession of unpublished inside information in relation to the Company or where
dealings by Directors are prohibited under any code or requirement of the Listing

Rules and all applicable laws from time to time.
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Vesting and Lapse

A RS Participant shall be entitled to receive the award shares held by the Trustee
in accordance with the vesting schedule. Details of the vesting schedule, vesting
conditions and terms of lapse of the grant will be stipulated in individual award

letters to be sent to the RSI Participants by the Company.

Voting Rights

The Trustee shall not exercise the voting rights in respect of any Shares held under

the trust including but not limited to the award shares.

Duration and Termination

The RSI Scheme shall be effective from the 21 December 2017 and shall continue

in full force and effect for a term of 10 years or such date of early termination

as determined by the Board provided that such termination shall not affect any

subsisting rights of any RSI Participant.

Alteration of the RSI Scheme

The RSI Scheme may be altered in any respect from time to time by a resolution of

the Board provided that such alteration shall not affect any subsisting rights of any

RSI Participants.

As at 3| December 2018, an aggregate of 37,858,000 Shares were held by the RSI

Trustee, representing approximately 4.99% of the Shares in issue as at the date of this

annual report, which is also the number of Shares available for grant under RSI Scheme.

As at the date of this annual report and during the year ended 31 December 2018, no

award shares has been awarded or agreed to be awarded under the RSI Scheme, nor has

any awarded shares been cancelled.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2018, so far as was known to any Director or chief executive of the
Company, the following persons (other than the Directors and chief executive of the
Company) had interests and/or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO or as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO.
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Long positions in Shares RBRGAHER
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name of Shareholder Nature of interest Shares held shareholding
RREE EB Rt E BEROHE  EREQNEIH%
Homecare(" Beneficial owner 218,252,390 2878
Es5BEAA
Ms. Zhang Qing Hua® Interest of spouse 218,252,390 2878
REELLO [ e
Honeycare International Investment Limited Beneficial owner 61,824,518 8.15
EaHAA
TK Harmony® Beneficial owner 78,621,620 1037
Es5BEAA
Shanghai Taiyuan® Interest of controlled corporation 78,621,620 1037
FEFRO RIS E R
Beijing Taikang Investment Management Co., Ltd.®  Interest of controlled corporation 78,621,620 10.37
EREEREERERAAO R EE S
Taikang Assets Management Co., Ltd.® Interest of controlled corporation 78,621,620 10.37
ZREEEEARAEMERRO REEEER
Taikang Life Insurance Co,, Ltd.®) Interest of controlled corporation 78,621,620 1037
ZEREASREERETLFC R AE RS
Beneficial owner 121,875,507 16.07
EaHAA
Taikang Insurance Group Inc. © Interest of controlled corporation 200,497,127 2644
ZRRBEBRNHERLEO REEEEER
Harmony Care Beneficial owner 53,669,975 7.08
BB A
Mr. Lin Yuhua® Interest of controlled corporation 53,669,975 7.08
MEELED R EE S
Mr. Lin Yurong® Interest of controlled corporation 53,669,975 7.08
MEREED R LERS
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Notes:

Homecare is wholly owned by Mr. Lin Yuming.

2. Ms. Zhang Qing Hua is the wife of Mr. Lin Yuming and is therefore deemed to be interested
in the Shares that Mr. Lin Yuming is interested.

3. TK Harmony is directly wholly-owned by Shanghai Taiyuan which is in turn owned as to
99.99% by Taikang Life Insurance Co., Ltd. which is owned as to 100% by Taikang Insurance
Group Inc. Beijing Taikang Investment Management Co., Ltd. is the General Partner of
Shanghai Taiyuan and is owned as to 80% by Taikang Assets Management Co, Ltd. which
is in tum owned as to 99.41% by Taikang Insurance Group Inc. Therefore, each of Shanghai
Taiyuan, Beijing Taikang Investment Management Co., Ltd,, Taikang Assets Management
Co,, Ltd, Taikang Life Insurance Co., Ltd. and Taikang Insurance Group Inc. is deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by TK Harmony and Taikang Insurance Group Inc. is deemed to

be interested in the Shares held by Taikang Life Insurance Co., Ltd.

4. As far as was known to the Directors, Harmony Care is owned as to 63.05% by Mr. Lin
Yurong and 36.95% by Mr. Lin Yuhua. Therefore, each of Mr. Lin Yurong and Mr. Lin Yuhua

is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Harmony Care.

Other than as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the Directors have not been
notified by any person (other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) who
had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which shall be disclosed
to the Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or as recorded in
the register required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the Share Option Scheme and the Restricted Share Incentive
Scheme, at no time during the year ended 3| December 2018 was the Company or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement that would enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the

Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION, ARRANGEMENT OR
CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance subsisted in which a Director or an entity connected with a Director was
materially interested, whether directly or indirectly, during or at the end of the Review
Period.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Review Period, there was no connected transaction of the Group which has to

be disclosed in accordance with the Listing Rules.

Related party transactions that occurred during the Review Period, as set out in Note 42
to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report, also fall under the definition
of connected transactions under Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules and are fully exempt

from shareholders’ approval, annual review and all disclosure requirements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

The Company has not entered into any contract with any individual, firm or body
corporate to manage or administer the whole or any substantial part of any business of

the Group during the Review Period.

DIRECTORS’ PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under the Articles of Association, every Director or officer of the Company acting in
relation to any of the affairs of the Company shall be indemnified and secured harmless
out of the assets and profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs and
damages which he may incur or sustain in or about the execution of the duties of his
office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has arranged appropriate directors’

and officers' liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the Group.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme and the Restricted Share Incentive Scheme as
disclosed on pages 46 to 51 of this annual report, no equity-linked agreements were

entered into by the Company, or existed during the Review Period.

EVENTS AFTER THE REVIEW PERIOD

(@)  Disposal of the 92% equity interest of Shenzhen Harmonicare Hospital

On 28 April 2019, Guiyang HarMoniCare Obstetrics and Gynecology Hospital
Co, Ltd. (the “Guiyang HarMoniCare Hospital”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, as vendor (the “Vendor"), and HarMoniCare Medical Management and
Consulting Co,, Ltd. (the “HarMoniCare Medical Management”) and Beijing He An
Da Management Consulting Co,, Ltd. (the “Beijing HAD"), as creditors, entered
into the disposal agreement with Shenzhen Renzheng Medical Management Co,,
Ltd., as purchaser, pursuant to which the purchaser agreed to acquire the 92%
equity interests in Shenzhen Harmonicare Hospital from the Vendor for a total
consideration of RMB63,000,000 (including a cash consideration of RMB 1,000,000
and the purchaser agreed to settle an amount of RMB62,000,000 of outstanding

debts owed by Shenzhen Harmonicare Hospital to the creditors).

(b) Disposal of the entire equity interest of three subsidiaries

On 24 July 2019, Guiyang HarMoniCare Hospital, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, as vendor, and HarMoniCare Medical Management, as creditor,
entered into the disposal agreement with Zhenjiang Kelida Information Technology
Service Center (limited partnership), as purchaser, pursuant to which the purchaser
agreed to acquire the entire equity interests of each of Wuhan Modern Obstetrics
and Gynecology Hospital Co,, Ltd, Chongging Wanzhou HarMoniCare Obstetrics
and Gynecology Hospital Co,, Ltd. and Chongging Dushi Liren Hospital Co,, Ltd.
(collectively, the “Target Companies”) from the vendor for a total consideration of
RMB22,000,000 (including a cash consideration of RMB2,200,000 and the purchaser
agreed to settle an amount of RMB19,800,000 of outstanding debts owed by
the Target Companies to the creditor). The disposal of Chongging Wanzhou
HarMoniCare Obstetrics and Gynecology Hospital Co., Ltd. and Chongging Dushi
Liren Hospital Co,, Ltd. were completed in August 2019.
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Resumption Guidance

The Company announced that there would be a delay in the release of the
2018 Annual Results and despatch of its 2018 Annual Report. Such a delay
was due to the Company requiring time to negotiate on and approve the
proposed settlement of Hibaby and consider implications, if any, on its financial
statements, and to provide the former auditors of the Company, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”), with further information in connection with the foregoing
when available. The equity transfer agreement was given to Deloitte, for their
consideration near to the finalization of the 2018 Annual Results in March 2019.
An audit committee meeting was convened on 26 March 2019 and it was resolved
that the Company would be preparing to engage an independent internal control
consultant to review the internal control procedures of the Company. There were
additional steps that Deloitte would need to take before signing off on the 2018
Annual Results, and it was expected that the Company would not be able to (1)
publish the 2018 Annual Results on or before 31 March 2019; and (2) despatch the
2018 Annual Report to the Shareholders on or before 30 April 2019 (the “Delay”).

On 15 May 2019, the Company received a letter from the HKEx, in which the
HKEx stated the following resumption guidance for the Company (‘Resumption

Guidance”):

() publish all outstanding financial results and address any audit modifications;

(i) conduct an independent internal control review and demonstrate that the
Company has in place adequate internal control and procedures to comply

with the Listing Rules; and

(i) announce all material information for the Company's shareholders and other

investors to appraise the Company’s position.
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Consequently, the Audit Committee engaged BDO Financial Services Limited
(‘BDQ") as an independent internal control consultant to independently review (the
“Initial IC Review") certain intemal control procedures of the Company. The scope
of the Initial IC Review included an independent assessment of the internal control
systems of the Group, covering the transaction process of the Equity Transfer, anti-
fraud management, the administration of contracts and seals, the management of
fund and investment; and the management of cash and payment during the period
of | January 2018 to 31 March 2019, the results of which were published by the
Company in its announcement dated 25 March 2020.

On 17 July 2020, the Company appointed Netis Advisory Limited (‘Netis”) as
its internal control consultant (the “Internal Control Consultant”) to conduct a
comprehensive review (the “Comprehensive IC Review") of the Group's internal
control procedures which will cover all of the Group's significant subsidiaries and
to the extent practicable, its major associated companies, for the period between
| January 2018 and 31 July 2020 in order to comprehensively evaluate the Group’s
internal control systems. Netis issued a draft Comprehensive IC Review report
(the “Comprehensive IC Review Report”) containing its findings of the review
and intemnal control recommendations. The Company has since implemented the
internal control recommendations in accordance with the draft Comprehensive
IC Review Report in consultation with Netis. The Audit Committee reviewed the
draft Comprehensive IC Review Report and agreed with its findings and internal
control recommendations in a meeting of the Audit Committee attended by Netis.

The final Comprehensive IC Review Report was issued on 3 December 2020.
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For more details regarding the Initial IC Review, the Comprehensive IC Review,
the Resumption Guidance and the resumption progress, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 12 June 2019, 28 June 2019, 3 July 2019, 31
July 2019, 29 September 2019, 31 October 2019, 31 March 2020, 30 June 2020,
|7 July 2020, 30 September 2020, 4 December 2020, 4 January 2021 and 8 January
2021. The Company will keep the public informed of the latest developments by

making further announcement(s) as and when appropriate.

(d)  Others

Reference are made to announcements of the Company dated 21 November
2019, 15 June 2020, 2 July 2020 and 16 October 2020. Terms used hereinafter

shall have the same meaning as defined in the announcements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association or the
relevant laws of the Cayman Islands where the Company is incorporated which would

oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Corporate Governance Report is set out on pages 60 to 80 of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the

Company’s listed securities during the Review Period.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and to the best of the
Directors’ knowledge, information and belief, the Company has always maintained

sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules throughout the Review Period.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the Shareholders

by reason of their holding of the Company's listed securities.

AUDITOR

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 14 January 2020 in
relation to Deloitte had tendered their resignation as the auditors of the Company with
effect from |3 January 2020. Pursuant to the note under Rule 13.51(4) of the Listing
Rules, the Company confirmed that the Deloitte had indicated in the Resignation Letter
that there were no circumstances connected with their resignation which they considered
ought to be brought to the attention of the Shareholders or creditors of the Company in
addition to those mentioned in the said announcement. Also, the Board was not aware of
any other matter that should be brought to the attention of the Shareholders or creditors

of the Company regarding the resignation of Deloitte.

On 17 January 2020, the Company announced that ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
(“ZHONGHUI ANDA") was appointed by the Board as the auditor of the Company to
hold office until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company. The
consolidated financial statements in this annual report have been audited by ZHONGHUI
ANDA. A resolution will be proposed for approval by Shareholders at the forthcoming
AGM to re-appoint ZHONGHUI ANDA as the auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Lin Yuming

Chairman, Executive Director and President

Hong Kong, 8 January 2021
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining high corporate governance standards.

The Board believes that good corporate governance standards are essential in providing a
framework for the Group to safeguard the interests of Shareholders, enhance corporate
value, formulate its business strategies and policies, and enhance its transparency and

accountability.
The Company has applied the principles as set out in the CG Code.

The Company has established a set of policies and procedures based on the CG Code.
Such policies and procedures provide the infrastructure for enhancing the Board's ability
to implement governance and exercise proper oversight on business conduct and affairs

of the Company.

In the opinion of the Directors, throughout the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Company has complied with all applicable code provisions as set out in the CG Code,
save and except for code provision A.2.I which states that the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual,
details of which are set out in the section headed “Chairman and Chief Executive” in this

corporate governance report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of conduct for securities

transactions by the Directors.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors have confirmed
that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December
2018.

The Company has also established Written Guidelines on terms no less exacting than
the Model Code for securities transactions by employees who are likely to possess
unpublished price-sensitive information of the Company. No incident of non-compliance

of the Written Guidelines by the employees was noted by the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is headed by an effective Board which oversees the Group's businesses,
strategic decisions and performance and takes decisions objectively in the best interests of
the Company.

The Board regularly reviews the contribution required from the Directors to perform their
responsibilities to the Company, and whether the Directors are spending sufficient time

performing them.

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises nine members as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Lin Yuming  (Chairman, President and Chairman of the Nomination Committee)
Mr. Fang Zhifeng  (resigned on 31 July 2020)

Mr. Zhao Xingli  (resigned as an executive Director and a member of the Remuneration
Committee on 14 June 2020)
Mr. Yang Guo (Chief Executive Officer) (appointed on |1 August 2020)

Mr. Wei Rongda  (Vice President) (appointed on |1 August 2020)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lin Yuguo (Member of the Remuneration Committee)
Mr. Qiu Jianwei  (Member of the Audit Committee)
Mr. Xu Jun (Member of the Nomination Committee)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Kong Aiguo (resigned as an independent non-executive Director and the
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and Member of
the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee on
24 August 2020)

(Chairman of the Audit Committee and Member of the

Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee)

Ms. Fang Lan
Mr. Cai Jiangnan (Member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee)

Ms. Hsu Wai Man Helen  (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and Member
of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee)

(appointed on 24 August 2020)

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section headed “Directors and
Senior Management” on pages 25 to 34 of this annual report. The relationships between
the members of the Board are also disclosed under the same section.
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Chairman and Chief Executive

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual. In
2018, Mr. Lin Yuming was the chairman and chief executive officer of the Company. In
view of Mr. Lin Yuming being one of the founders of the Group, and his responsibilities
in corporate strategic planning and overall business development, the Board believed that
it was in the interests of both the Group and the shareholders to have Mr. Lin Yuming
taking up both roles for effective management and business development. The Board
also met regularly on a quarterly basis to review the operation of the Group led by Mr.
Lin Yuming. Accordingly, the Board believed that this arrangement will not impact on the
balance of power and authorisations between the Board and the management of the
Company. Having said that, as announced on || August 2020, Mr. Yang Guo is appointed
as an executive director and chief executive officer of the Company, and the Group now

is in compliance with the CG Code.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended 3| December 2018, the Board at all times met the requirements of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors representing one-third of the Board with one of whom possessing appropriate

professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the independent
non-executive Directors in respect of his/her independence in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the

view that all independent non-executive Directors are independent.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Code provision A4.| of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive directors shall
be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election, whereas code provision A4.2
states that all directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment and that every director,
including those appointed for a specific term, shall be subject to retirement by rotation at

least once every three years.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Each of the executive Directors is appointed under a services contract and each of the
non-executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors is appointed under a
letter of appointment for a term of three years, which is subject to renewal upon expiry
of the terms and terminable by either party by giving one month’s written notice to the
other party.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, all Directors are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at the AGM at least once every three years. Any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general
meeting and any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the Board shall hold
office until the next following AGM after his/her appointment subject to re-election at
such meeting.

As no annual general meeting of the Company was held since the last annual general
meeting held on 12 June 2018, Mr. Lin Yuming, Mr. Xu Jun, Mr. Qiu Jianwei and Ms. Fang
Lan, who have held their offices as directors for more than three years, will be subject to
retirement by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the Board and Management

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control of the Company; and
is collectively responsible for directing and supervising its affairs. Directors take decisions
objectively in the interests of the Company.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, provides direction to
management by laying down strategies and overseeing their implementation, monitors the
Group's operational and financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control
and risk management systems are in place.

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and
professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.

The independent non-executive Directors are responsible for ensuring a high standard
of regulatory reporting of the Company and providing a balance in the Board for bringing
effective independent judgement on corporate actions and operations.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the Company as well as
the services and advice from the senior management. The Directors may, upon request,
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company's
expenses for discharging their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held by them and
the Board regularly reviews the contribution required from each Director to perform his
responsibilities to the Company.
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The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy matters, strategies
and budgets, internal control and risk management, material transactions (in particular
those that may involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of Directors
and other significant operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities relating to
implementing decisions of the Board, directing and co-ordinating the daily operation and

management of the Company are delegated to the management.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors
Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes in order to
effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that their contribution to the Board

remains informed and relevant.

Every newly appointed Director has received formal and comprehensive induction on the
first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of the business
and operations of the Company and full awareness of director’s responsibilities and

obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. Internally-facilitated briefings for Directors
would be arranged and reading material on relevant topics would be provided to
Directors where appropriate. All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training

courses at the Company's expenses.
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The record of continuous professional development relating to director’s duties and
regulatory and business development that have been received by the Directors for the

year ended 31 December 2018 are summarized as follows:

3 'A\Aﬁi(

BEEREZE2018F N A3 BIEFEMKEE
HEEHNENETHERARNEETEY
R srtaia T

Type of Training"°*®
Directors Es B IR
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Lin Yuming MEREE A&B ANB
Mr. Fang Zhifeng Palosz Firka A&B ANB
Mr. Zhao Xingli HE A A
Non-executive Directors HHTEE
Mr. Lin Yuguo MEBR AL A
Mr. Qiu Jianwei EpR{E st A
Mr. Xu Jun RELE A
Independent Non-executive Directors BYHETEE
Mr. Kong Aiguo HLERESE A&B ANB
Ms. Fang Lan AEZT A
Mr. Cai Jiangnan BETRLE A
Notes: PHEE -
Types of Training AR
A Attending training sessions, including but not limited to, briefings, seminars, conferences and A: HFEEIIRE - B (BETRRN) HHRE - #
workshops e gEkIES
B: Reading relevant news alerts, newspapers, journals, magazines and relevant publications B: MEEMMEES - 85 - 87 #ERE

Relevant reading materials including legal and regulatory update have been provided to

the Directors for their reference and studying.

Mr. Zhao Xingli and Mr. Fang Zhifeng have resigned as executive directors of the
Company with effect from 14 June 2020 and 31 July 2020 respectively, and Mr. Kong
Aiguo has resigned as an independent non-executive director of the Company with effect
from 24 August 2020.

T

HHEMEMHBRERREERNENER
HIEZUHKELEREE -

HE NS ER A EBEEBBERATNT
BE HRIR2020%6 A 148 &2020%7 A3
BAEX - ABREEBHIARABIUIEY
1TEE  R2020F8 24 4ER -
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee for overseeing particular
aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees are established with defined
written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees are posted
on the Company's website (www.hemeiyl.com) and the website of HKEx (www.

hkexnews.hk) and are available to the Shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are independent non-executive
Directors and the list of the chairman and members of each Board committee is set out

under “Board of Directors” in this corporate governance report.

Audit Committee
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no less exacting terms than those

set out in the CG Code.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in reviewing the financial
information and reporting process, risk management and internal control systems,
effectiveness of the internal audit function, scope of audit and appointment of external
auditors, and arrangements to enable employees of the Company to raise concerns
about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other matters of the

Company.
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The Audit Committee held two meetings to review the annual financial results and report
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2017, the interim financial results and report
in respect of the six months ended 30 June 2018, and significant issues on the financial
reporting, operational and compliance controls, the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems and internal audit function, appointment of external auditors
and relevant scope of works, and arrangements for employees to raise concerns about

possible improprieties.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditors twice during the year ended 3|
December 2018.

Remuneration Committee
The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are of no less exacting terms

than those set out in the CG Code.

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include reviewing and making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management, the remuneration policy and structure for all Directors
and senior management; and establishing transparent procedures for developing such
remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates

will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee met twice during the year ended 31 December 2018 to
review and make recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy and structure
of the Company, the remuneration packages of the Directors and senior management
and other related matters as well as the revision of terms of the service contracts of the

executive Directors and letters of appointment of the non-executive Directors.

Details of the remuneration of the senior management by band are set out in note 16 to

the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

Nomination Committee
The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no less exacting terms than

those set out in the CG Code.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the Board
composition, developing and formulating relevant procedures for the nomination and
appointment of Directors, making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and succession planning of Directors, and assessing the independence of independent

non-executive Directors.
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In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee would take into account
various aspects as well as factors concerning Board diversity as set out in the Company’s
board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”). The Nomination Committee would
discuss and agree on measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board, where

necessary, and recommend them to the Board for adoption.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships, the Nomination
Committee would consider the candidate’s character, qualifications, experience,
independence, time commitment and other relevant criteria as set out in the director
nomination policy adopted by the Company during 2018 (the "Director Nomination
Policy”) that are necessary to complement the corporate strategy and achieve Board

diversity, where appropriate, before making recommendation to the Board.

The Nomination Committee met once during the year ended 31 December 2018 to
review the structure, size and composition of the Board and the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors and to consider the qualifications of the retiring

Directors standing for election at the AGM.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy which sets out the approach to
achieve diversity of the Board. The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of
having a diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential

element in maintaining the Company’'s competitive advantage.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination Committee will review
annually the structure, size and composition of the Board and where appropriate, make
recommendations on changes to the Board to complement the Company's corporate

strategy and to ensure that the Board maintains a balanced diverse profile.
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In relation to reviewing and assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
is committed to diversity at all levels and will consider a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, race, age, cultural and educational background, professional

qualifications, skills, knowledge and industry and regional experience.

The Company aims to maintain an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives that
are relevant to the Company's business growth and is also committed to ensuring
that recruitment and selection practices at all levels (from the Board downwards) are

appropriately structured so that a diverse range of candidates are considered.

At present, the Nomination Committee considered that the Board is sufficiently diverse.
The Board will consider setting measurable objectives to implement the Board Diversity
Policy and review such objectives from time to time to ensure their appropriateness and

ascertain the progress made towards achieving those objectives.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate and on

a regular basis, to ensure its effectiveness.

Director Nomination Policy

The Board has delegated its responsibilities to the Nomination Committee for
identification and selection of candidates to stand for election as Directors. The Company
has adopted a Director Nomination Policy which sets out the selection criteria and
process and the Board succession planning considerations in relation to nomination and
appointment of Directors of the Company and aims to ensure that the Board has a
balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company and

the continuity of the Board and appropriate leadership at Board level.
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The Director Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the suitability and the
potential contribution to the Board of a proposed candidate, including but not limited to

the following:
. Character and integrity;

. Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience

that are relevant to the Company’s business and corporate strategy;

. Diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to gender, race, age (18 years
or above), cultural and educational background, professional qualifications, skills,

knowledge and industry and regional experience;

0 Requirements of independent non-executive Directors on the Board and
independence of the proposed independent non-executive Directors in accordance

with the Listing Rules; and

. Commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest to discharge duties
as a member of the Board and/or Board committee(s) of the Company.

The Director Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for the selection and

appointment of new Directors and re-election of Directors at general meetings.

The Nomination Committee will review the Director Nomination Policy, as appropriate,

to ensure its effectiveness.
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Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in code provision D.3.1 of

the CG Code.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board had reviewed the Company'’s
corporate governance policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, compliance of the Model
Code and the Whritten Guidelines, and the Company's compliance with the CG Code and

disclosure in this corporate govemance report.
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ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS B HfERDE

The attendance record of each Director at the Board and Board committee meetings and BRESHREARARNEBZE20I18F12A3181E
AGM of the Company held during the year ended 31 December 2018 is set out in the FERICESEREZZELGRRERE
table below: BEREHFETHEEFIN TR -

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HERER BB

Audit  Remuneration Nomination
Name of Director Board Committee Committee Committee AGM
BEEps EEg® ENRZERE® FHMZEEe® REZET RREFAE
Executive Directors
BITEE
Mr. Lin Yuming 8/8 N/A N/A [/1 I/
MERLE N TER
Mr. Fang Zhifeng 718 N/A N/A N/A I/
HEERE TER TER TERA
Mr. Zhao Xingli 8/8 N/A 22 N/A I/
HE k4 NEA RiEH
Non-executive Directors
HHTEE
Mr. Lin Yuguo 718 N/A 12 N/A I/
MEB LA TER TER
Mr. Qiu Jianwei 5/8 12 N/A N/A [/
Rt TEA TEMA
Mr. Xu Jun 8/8 N/A N/A /1 I/
RERE NEA i
Independent Non-executive Directors
BUFHTEE
Mr. Kong Aiguo 8/8 212 202 [/1 I/
HLEBRSSE
Ms. Fang Lan 8/8 212 212 /1 [/
a)-
Mr. Cai Jiangnan 6/8 212 |12 [/1 [/
EImkE
Note: BFsE -

Mr. Zhao Xingli and Mr. Fang Zhifeng have resigned as executive directors of the BN A R E B A EEBHERARIRT
Company with effect from 14 June 2020 and 31 July 2020 respectively, and Mr. Kong ~ EFE + D 518202056 A 148 %2020 7 A 31
Aliguo has resigned as an independent non-executive director of the Company with effect BAX - LEBEEDBERARRIBELIEH
from 24 August 2020. 1TEE - M2020F8A214BAEM »
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The attendance records of the following Directors at the relevant meetings by their

alternates are set out below:
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TIESNAR SR TS (ARENE
EAMRE) SFIT

Number of Meetings

BERY

Audit  Remuneration Nomination
Name of Director Name of Alternate Director Board Committee Committee Committee
EEpE BRESHE EExg® EHRZEEE® FMZEEE REZES
Mr. Lin Yuguo Mr. Kong Aiguo /8 N/A 112 N/A
MEBEE HLEBRSE i TiEH
Mr. Qiu Jianwei Mr. Xu Jun 1/8 N/A N/A N/A
ifeaEd e RELAE i TiEH TiEH
Mr. Cai Jiangnan Ms. Fang Lan /8 N/A N/A N/A
EIfxsE FREZT N i TEM
Note: BisE

Mr. Kong Aiguo has resigned as an independent non-executive director of the Company
with effect from 24 August 2020.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held a meeting with the non-
executive Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) without the

presence of executive Directors during the year ended 31 December 2018.

Independent non-executive Directors and non-executive Directors have attended AGM

to gain and develop a balanced understanding of the view of shareholders.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management and internal control
systems and reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide

reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the nature and
extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Company's strategic objectives,
and establishing and maintaining appropriate and effective risk management and internal

control systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the management and overseeing their
design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management and internal control

systems.
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The Company has developed "Risk Management System”, “Anti-Fraud Management

System”, “Internal Control Manual”, etc., and carries out risk management according to

relevant systems.

The Risk Control and Audit Department of the Company is responsible for organizing and
implementing the development of the “Internal Control Manual” and conducting training
and publicizing within the Group, and conducting targeted intemnal control evaluation of
its subordinate units and preparing internal control evaluation reports to the management
for review. It is also responsible for organizing, coordinating and supervising functional
departments of the Company and business personnel of each unit to carry out risk
identification and risk assessment in key business areas of healthcare industry, assess the
possibility and effects of risks, and provide treatment plans and monitor risk management

progress.

The Risk Control and Audit Department also conducts status assessment tests on major
risk points of key business operations and major risk areas of key business matters in
accordance with the Group's requirements; and reviews the control points in each process,
analyzes the risks that may exist in each control point and describes control measures
in detail. It performs audit regularly on all units and business departments, incorporates
potential fraud risk points into regular audit and conducts extended investigations on the
potential fraud risks existed in each unit; and evaluates and responds to key risk matters

and reviews the development and implementation of relevant systems.

The Risk Control and Audit Department also assists in developing “Major Risk
Management and Control Measures” and organizing relevant functional departments and
units in our headquarter to conduct evaluation of the Company's major risks, follows up
major risks and reports to the management in a timely manner. The units and departments
that have encountered related risk matters should identify and analyze related risks
through weekly meetings, monthly business meetings, ad hoc meetings etc. and actively

take countermeasures to resolve existing risks.

Based on the “Internal Control Manual” and other guidance notes, the Risk Control
and Audit Department conducts targeted internal control evaluation on the design and
implementation of internal control of its subordinate units and issues internal control

evaluation reports.
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The Risk Control and Audit Department issues an “Internal Audit Report” on related
areas to the Audit Committee every six months to review relevant matters, which
includes summary of risk management and anti-fraud work, development and operation of

internal control system and audit and other work etc.

All divisions conducted internal control assessment regularly to identify risks that
potentially impact the business of the Group and various aspects including key operational
and financial processes, regulatory compliance and information security. Self-evaluation
has been conducted to confirm that control policies are properly complied with by each

division.

The management, in coordination with division heads, assessed the likelihood of risk
occurrence, provide treatment plans, and monitor the risk management progress, and
reported to the Audit Committee and the Board on all findings and the effectiveness of

the systems.

The management has confirmed to the Board and the Audit Committee on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems for the year ended 3|

December 2018.

In view of the Delay, the Audit Committee engaged BDO as an independent internal
control consultant to conduct the Initial IC Review on certain internal control procedures
of the Company. The scope of the Initial IC Review included an independent assessment
of the internal control systems of the Group, covering the transaction process of the
Equity Transfer, anti-fraud management, the administration of contracts and seals, the
management of fund and investment; and the management of cash and payment during
the period of | January 2018 to 31 March 2019, the results of which were published by
the Company in its announcement dated 25 March 2020.
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Further, on |7 July 2020, the Company appointed Netis as the Internal Control
Consultant to conduct the Comprehensive IC Review of the Group's internal control
procedures which will cover all of the Group's significant subsidiaries and to the extent
practicable, its major associated companies, for the period between | January 2018 and
31 July 2020 in order to comprehensively evaluate the Group's internal control systems.
Netis issued a draft Comprehensive IC Review report containing its findings of the review
and intemnal control recommendations. The Company has since implemented the internal
control recommendations in accordance with the draft Comprehensive IC Review Report
in consultation with Netis. The Audit Committee reviewed the draft Comprehensive IC
Review Report and agreed with its findings and internal control recommendations in a
meeting of the Audit Committee attended by Netis. The final Comprehensive IC Review
Report was issued on 3 December 2020.

For more details regarding the Initial IC Review and the Comprehensive IC Review,
please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 12 June 2019, 31 July 2019, 31
October 2019, 17 July 2020, 4 December 2020 and 8 January 2021.

The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee as well as the management report
and the internal audit findings, reviewed the risk management and internal control
systems, including the financial, operational and compliance controls, for the year
ended 3| December 2018, and considered that such systems after the adoption of all
recommendations as suggested by Initial IC Review and Comprehensive IC Review are
effective and adequate. The annual review also covered the financial reporting, internal

audit function and staff qualifications, experiences and relevant resources.

Whistleblowing procedures are in place to facilitate employees of the Company to raise,
in confidence, concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control

or other matters of the Company.

The Company has developed its disclosure policy which provides a general guide to the
Directors, the Company's officers, senior management and relevant employees in handling
confidential information, monitoring information disclosure and responding to enquiries.
Control procedures have been implemented to ensure that unauthorized access and use

of inside information are strictly prohibited.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial statements of

the Company for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The Group incurred a loss of approximately RMB785,211,000 for the year ended 31
December 2018 and as at 31 December 2018, the capital commitments for acquisition of
property, plant and equipment of the Group was approximately RMB258,301,000. These
conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. Save as disclosed above, Directors
are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast

significant doubt upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the “Independent Auditor's Report”

on pages 81 to 89 of this annual report.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the external auditor of the Company, Zhonghui ANDA CPA

Limited, for the year ended 31 December 2018 is set out below:

BRI €
ARRMEZE2018F 12A3I BIEFEERAR
AN P E R ESMEBAARA
AXZMEHIT

Service Category Fees Paid/Payable
R 5 B/ EBRER
RMB'000

ARETT

Audit Services Bk 2230
Non-audit Services FEZRSG -
2,230

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chen Wei has resigned as a joint company secretary and vice president of the
Company on 29 September 2020. Following Mr. Chen's resignation as a joint company
secretary, Ms. Cheung Yuet Fan of Tricor Services Limited, external service provider,

continues to serve as the company secretary of the Company since 29 September 2020.

Ms. Cheung was appointed as a joint company secretary in place of Ms. Siy Ling Lung

following Ms. Siy's resignation as a joint company secretary on 28 May 2018.

Ms. Cheung's primary contact person at the Company is Mr. Chen Longzhen (Chief
Financial Officer).

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the company secretary on

corporate governance and board practices and matters.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company engages with Shareholders through various communication channels.

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolution will be proposed for
each substantially separate issue at general meetings, including the election of individual
Director. All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant
to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of the Company and

HKEx after each general meeting.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association, any one or more Shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of
the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be
held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days
of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the

requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There are no provisions in the Articles of Association or the Companies Law of the
Cayman lIslands for putting forward proposals of new resolutions by Shareholders at
general meetings. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the Company
to convene a general meeting in accordance with the procedures set out in the preceding
paragraph to consider the business specified in the requisition. For proposing a person
for election as a Director, please refer to the “Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a

Person for Election as a Director” posted on the Company's website.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board
For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, Shareholders may send written enquiries
to the Company. The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous

enquiries.
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Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above to the following:

Address:  No. A2 Xiaoguan Beili

Beiyuan Road

Chaoyang District, Beijing, China

For the attention of Mr. Chen Longzhen
Fax: 86 10 87766997
Email: chenlongzhen@| 88.com/ir@hemeiyl.com

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholder(s) must deposit and send the original duly signed
written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above
address and provide their full name, contact details and identification in order to give

effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS/INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders is essential
for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding of the Group's business
performance and strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue
with Shareholders and in particular, through AGMs and other extraordinary general
meetings. At the AGM, Directors (or their delegates as appropriate) are available to meet

Shareholders and answer their enquiries.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company has not made any changes to
its Articles of Association. An up to date version of the Company's Articles of Association

is available on the Company's website and HKEx's website.

POLICIES RELATING TO SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has in place a shareholders’ communication policy to ensure that
Shareholders’ views and concerns are appropriately addressed. The policy is regularly

reviewed to ensure its effectiveness.

The Company has adopted a policy on payment of dividends pursuant to code provision
E.I.5 of the CG Code that has become effective from | January 2019. The policy sets
out the principles and guidelines that the Company intends to apply in relation to the

declaration, payment or distribution of dividends to the Shareholders.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

g

ZHONGHUI

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HARMONICARE MEDICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of Harmonicare Medical
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 90 to 198, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 3|1 December 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the

consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
Because of the significance of the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of
Opinion section of our report, we have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these consolidated financial
statements. In all other respects, in our opinion, the consolidated financial statements have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

l. Limited accounting books and records of subsidiary disposed
As disclosed in note 45(a) to the consolidated financial statements, Shenzhen
HarMoniCare Gynecology and Paediatrics Hospital Co,, Ltd, a subsidiary of the
Company (the “Shenzhen HariMoniCare Hospital”’) have been disposed subsequent
to the year ended 3| December 2018. Due to the insufficiency of supporting
documentation and explanations for accounting books and records in respect of
Shenzhen HariMoniCare Hospital for the years ended 31 December 2018 and
2017, we were unable to carry out audit procedures to satisfy ourselves as to
whether the following income and expenses for the years ended 3| December
2018 and 2017 and the assets and liabilities as at those dates, as included in the
consolidated financial statements of the Group, have been accurately recorded and

properly accounted for in the consolidated financial statements:
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2018 2017
2018%F 20175
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AEEFT
Income and expenses WARBEX
Revenue Yza 75,893 89,020
Cost of sales and services HE R IRRAR (57,522) (49,731)
Gross profit EM 18,371 39,289
Other income HA A 335 1,071
Other gains and losses Hitlzs KRR (37) (17)
Selling and distribution expenses HE R HFAX (38,205) (36,514)
Administrative and other operating expenses  {TEU R AL F % (12,004) (10,623)
Impairment on various assets BEBERE 42) -
Loss for the year FREE (31,582) (6794)
Assets and liabilities EEREE
Property, plant and equipment W - BE k& 31,477 26922
Other intangible assets HinmpEE 17 143
Rental deposits Heke 2,712 3,098
Other long-term assets HitREEE 1,340 3,500
Inventories FE 2,553 1,883
Trade receivables BHREMIA 1,015 1,601
Prepayment, deposits and other receivables B R REMERFE 2,375 1613
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 437 1,386
Trade payables B HENTIE (511 (690)
Other payables and accruals BN FIE N B (22,030) (21,457)
Accrued rental expenses et SR % (12,674) (15,145)
Net assets BEFE 6811 2,854
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Limited accounting books and records of the Hibaby Healthcare Co., Ltd.
(“Hibaby”) and its subsidiaries (“Hibaby Group”)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group owned 49.47% of equity interest of Hibaby
and recognised as associate which the Group has significant influence. On 8
November 2018, the Group, as the purchaser, entered into an equity transfer
agreement with other shareholders of Hibaby, as the sellers, on acquisition of
48.53% of equity interests of Hibaby from other shareholders of Hibaby for cash
consideration in aggregate of approximately RMB30,242,000 (the “Acquisition”).
The Group holds 98% of equity interests of Hibaby upon the completion of
acquisition. The Acquisition of 48.53% equity interests of Hibaby by the Group was
accounted for the acquisition of subsidiaries in a business combination achieved in

stages in the Group's consolidated financial statement.

We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to satisfy ourselves
as to (i) whether the carrying amount of interest in an associate of approximately
RMB21,007,000 as at 31 December 2017 are fairly stated; and (i) whether share of
loss of an associate of approximately RMB,991,000 and RMB2,967,000 respectively
for the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 are properly stated.

Also, we have not been provided with sufficient evidence about the fair value of
identifiable assets and liabilities of Hibaby Group arising from the acquisition of
48.53% equity interests of Hibaby at the date of acquisition and we were unable
to evaluate whether the acquisition method has been appropriately applied on the
acquisition and after acquisition. Further, we were unable to satisfy ourselves as to
whether the income and expenses from acquisition date to 3| December 2018
and the following assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2018, as included in the
consolidated financial statements of the Group, have been accurately recorded and

properly accounted for in the consolidated financial statements:

2.
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From acquisition date to

3| December 2018

HWEAHE

2018 12H31H

RMB’000

AREFT

Income and expenses WA RBX

Revenue WS 5,757
Cost of sales and services HE RARFEA A (8,072)
Gross loss E7 (2,315)
Other income Hipdg A I
Selling and distribution expenses HE KD #HAX (1,626)
Administrative and other operating expenses TR EME R (10,166)
Finance costs BEKA (4,484)
Loss for the year FAEE (18,590)
2018

20185

RMB’000

ARKFT

Assets and liabilities BEREE

Property, plant and equipment e 80,423
Goodwil B 18,425
Other non-current assets HM3EneEE 5,000
Inventories 78 406
Trade receivables B 5 REUGRIE 34
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BAR - ke REMEKIE 49,471
Cash and bank balances Be RIRITE 3,546
Trade payables EHRENFIE (7,883)
Other payables H fth T 5008 (15,658)
Other loans HinE (23,700)
Net assets EEFE 110,064
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and land use right

Apart from the property, plant and equipment mentioned in points | and 2 above,
we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to satisfy ourselves
as to the (i) carrying amount of the certain property, plant and equipment and land
use right of approximately RMB257,283,000 and RMB1 16,713,000 respectively as
at 31 December 2018 and of approximately RMB75,519,000 and RMBI 19,156,000
as at 31 December 2017 are fairly stated; (ii) whether provision for impairment
losses on such property, plant and equipment and land use right of approximately
RMB 107,189,000 and RMBnil for the year ended 31 December 2018 are properly
stated; (iii) whether provision for impairment losses on such property, plant and
equipment and land use right of RMBnil and RMBnil respectively for the year
ended 31 December 2017 are properly stated; (iv) whether the depreciation of
property, plant and equipment and amortisation of land use right of approximately
RMBS, 162,000 and RMB2,443,000 respectively for the year ended 31 December
2018 are properly stated; and (v) the accuracy of the disclosures in relation to the

property, plant and equipment and land use right.

Goodwill and other intangible assets

Apart from the goodwill and other intangible assets mentioned in points | and 2
above, we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to satisfy
ourselves as to (i) whether the carrying amount of the goodwill and other intangible
assets of approximately RMB4,019,000 and RMB56,419,000 respectively as at
31 December 2018 and of approximately RMB72,981,000 and RMB45,812,000
as at 31 December 2017 are fairly stated; (i) whether provision for impairment
losses on goodwill and other intangible assets of approximately RMB68,962,000
and RMB135,199,000 respectively for the year ended 3| December 2018 are
properly stated; (iii) whether provision for impairment losses on goodwill and
other intangible assets of RMBnil and RMBnil respectively for the year ended
31 December 2017 are properly stated; (iv) whether the amortisation of other
intangible assets of approximately RMBI,864,000 for the year ended 3| December
2018 are properly stated; and (v) the accuracy of the disclosures in relation to the
goodwill and other intangible assets.
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Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and contingent consideration
receivables

Included in the consolidated financial statements were financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of approximately RMB165,845,000 and RMB99,723,000
as at 3| December 2018 and 2017 and contingent consideration receivables of
approximately RMB10,990,000 as at 31 December 2018, which are measured
based on valuation from an external valuer. In the absence of robust evidences
for us to assess the appropriateness of the estimates, judgements and assumptions
adopted in the valuation on the Group's financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and contingent consideration receivables, we were unable to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to satisfy ourselves as to (i) the fair value
measurement and recoverability of the financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss and contingent consideration receivables as at 3|1 December 2018 and
2017, (i) fair value change of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
of approximately RMB6,222,000 and RMB3,391,000 during the year ended 31
December 2018 and 2017 and fair value change of contingent consideration
receivables of approximately RMB10,990,000 and RMBnil respectively for the year
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017; and (iii) related disclosures of the fair value

measurement in the consolidated financial statements.

Trade receivables

Apart from the trade receivables mentioned in points | and 2 above, we were
unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to satisfy ourselves as to the
(i) recoverability of and the carrying amount of the certain trade receivables of
approximately RMB3 1,723,000 and RMB 18,910,000 respectively as at 31 December
2018 and 2017 are fairly stated; and (i) whether provision for impairment losses
on above-stated trade receivables of RMBnil and RMBnil respectively for the year

ended 3| December 2018 and 2017 are properly stated.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Prepayment, deposits and other receivables, other long-term assets and loan
receivables

Apart from the prepayment, deposits and other receivables and other long-term
assets mentioned in points | and 2 above, we were unable to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to satisfy ourselves as to the (i) recoverability of and
the carrying amount of the certain prepayment, deposits and other receivables
of approximately RMB47,818,000 and RMB15,000,000 respectively and other
long-term assets of approximately RMB4,600,000 as at 31 December 2018 and
2017 are fairly stated; and (i) whether provision for impairment losses on certain
prepayment, deposits and other receivables and loan receivables of approximately
RMBI 16,465,000 and RMB6,500,000 respectively for the year ended 31 December
2018 are properly stated.

Deferred tax liabilities

We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to satisfy ourselves
as to the (i) the carrying amount of the deferred tax liabilities of approximately
RMB35,417,000 and RMB33,555,000 respectively as at 31 December 2018 and
2017 respectively are fairly stated; and (i) whether the income tax credit of
approximately RMB28,837,000 for the year ended 3| December 2018 are properly
stated.

Provision for onerous contracts

Due to the uncertainties in respect of the Group's financial position and financial
performance during the year, we have been unable to obtain robust supportable
evidence for us to assess whether the Group's various long term non-cancellable
lease contracts of lease commitments of approximately RMB679,156,000 and
RMB234,118,000 respectively as at 31 December 2018 and 2017 in relation to
the Group's specialised hospital services are onerous contracts as defined under
International Accounting Standard 37. If that executory lease contracts are onerous
contracts, a provision is required to the extent for which the related unavoidable
costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits

expected to be received.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B ZEENRSE @

Contingent liabilities
No sufficient evidence has been provided to satisfy ourselves as to (i) the carrying
amount of the provision for contingent liabilities and (ii) the existence and

completeness of the disclosures of contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2018,

Material uncertainty related to going concern

We draw attention to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements which
mentions that the Group incurred a loss of approximately RMB785,2 11,000 for
the year ended 3| December 2018. Also, as at 31 December 2018, the capital
commitments for acquisition of property, plant and equipment of the Group was
approximately RMB258,301,000.

These conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which may
cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis,
the validity of which depends upon the successful outcome that certain financing
plans and measures as stated in note 2 of the consolidated financial statements
to improve its consolidated financial position, to provide liquidity and cash flows.
The consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments that would
result from the failure to fulfill the financing plans and measures. We consider that
the material uncertainty has been adequately disclosed in the consolidated financial

statements.

However, in view of the extent of the uncertainty relating to the successful
outcome that certain financing plans and measures to improve its consolidated
financial position, to provide liquidity and cash flows, we disclaim our opinion in

respect of the material uncertainty relating to the going concern basis.

Any adjustments to the figures as described from points | to || above might have a

significant consequential effect on the Group's consolidated financial performance and

its consolidated cash flows for the year ended 3| December 2018 and 2017 and the

consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018 and 2017, and the

related disclosures thereof in the consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial

statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no

realistic alternative but to do so.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group's consolidated financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA™) and to issue an auditor's report. However,
because of the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our
report, we were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis

for an audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical

responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Pang Hon Chung

Audit Engagement Director
Practising Certificate Number P05988
Hong Kong, 8 January 202 |
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mERmRkEMEERER

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BEWNIBFIA3IBLFE

2018 2017
20185 20175
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Bzt AR¥FT AEEFT
Revenue e 8 1,014,990 924,151
Cost of sales and services HE RRBHA (621,388) (496,548)
Gross profit E 393,602 427,603
Other income HipgA 10 7812 13,063
Other gains and losses, net Hit iz REEFE Il 18,602 (14,078)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAX (300,023) (242,422)
Administrative and other operating expenses TR REME LR (257,703) (143,118)
Impairment losses on various assets REBENRERR 15 (558,626) (2476
Provision for onerous leases EREMHERE 34 (41,337) -
Share of loss of associates FElEEEARER (6,460) (4625)
Operating (loss)/profit BE (B8R)/FE (744,133) 33947
Finance costs REKAK 12 (5.220) -
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRATEHIAT (B1R) /7 (749,353) 33947
Income tax expense FEHFX 14 (35,858) (4,509)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(ER)/ 7 15 (785,211) 29,438
Other comprehensive income: Hit2EBA
Item that may be reclassified to profit or loss: BN ETRHZEA -
Share of other comprehensive income of associates  FEA & A FIE M2 EKA 138 £
Total other comprehensive income for the year ~ FRE 2 KA LE 138 9
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year ~ ERZH (B518) / WMABE (785,073) 29,480
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to: UTEHEEFR (F58) /58
Owners of the Company i/NCTZZEUN (725,299) 27,394
Non-controlling interests RS (59,912) 2,044
(785.211) 29438
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year ~ U T & AEMGEERZE (BE),/
attributable to: WAL
Owners of the Company /NGIE DN (725,161) 27436
Non-controling interests R ER (59.912) 2,044
(785,073) 29,480
(Loss)/earnings per share Bk (58)/ &7
Basic and diluted (RMB cents) EAREE (ARED) 18 (98.18) 36
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ma PR R

At 31 December 2018
2018F12A31A

2018 2017
20185 017%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
s ARETT ANEEFT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ER S 19 369,183 300,784
Land use right Tt A 20 116,713 119,156
Goodwil mE 2| 22,444 122,283
Other intangible assets Hitmpy & 2 56,536 136,180
Interests in associates RREEE DA 23 7,465 27342
Rental deposits Heke 11,921 10299
Deferred tax assets ERRBAE 36 2,595 54,277
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BROHEFARR ((RATE
('FVTPL") ATARR]) 2 eREE 24 165,845 99,723
Contingent consideration receivables EUHARE 25 4,087 =
Other long-ter assets HitRHIEE 26 57,801 81,989
814,590 952,033
Current assets REBEE
Inventories RE 27 33,746 22,300
Contingent consideration receivables T AA(E 25 6,903 -
Loan receivables EBER 28 - 130,957
Trade receivables B S EWE 29 54,299 46,295
Prepayment, deposits and other receivables B REREMERE 30 166,821 134,162
Amounts due from related parties FEN R T 5R0R 42 = 29,378
Time deposits EHER - 45,000
Cash and cash equivalents BeLReEEN 31 133,846 466,995
395,615 875,087
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade payables BHEMNTIE 3 33,056 16,020
Other payables and accruals HfENHIRRETER 33 261,487 128,543
Amount due to a related party JE AR 7T TR 12 1,225 924
Tax payable ANE 14332 21,990
Other borrowings H e 35 32,770 -
Provision Bk 34 44238 900
387,108 168377
Net current assets RBEERE 8,507 706,710
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRDAR 823,097 658,743
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (coNTINUED)
e B ARR R @)

At 31 December 2018
72018612831 R

2018 2017
20185 2017%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Pzt ARETT AREFT
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Accrued rental expenses iagiikasba 40,113 28710
Other borrowings HifEm 35 69,396 -
Deferred tax liabilities BIEHIERE 36 35417 47925
144,926 76,635
NET ASSETS EEFE 678,171 1,582,108
Capital and reserves EXR G
Share capital BRA 37 598 598
Reserves & 560,444 1,353,507
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ARRER NEEER 561,042 ,354,105
Non-controlling interests TR 117,129 228,003
TOTAL EQUITY BRER 678,171 1,582,108

The consolidated financial statements on pages 90 to 198 were approved and authorised FEIBAZEAMBREDBEZTEN

for issue by the Board of Directors on 8 January 2021 and are signed on its behalf by: 20215 | AsHBERKETRIAEANTES
RREF
Director Director
5= -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Attributable to owners of the Company

REEREER
For the year ended 3| December 2018
HEWNIBFI2A3IBIEFE

KATREARGE
Retained
Treasury Statutory profits/ Non-
Share Share Other share Share  Translation surplus — (accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve option reserve reserve loss)  Subtotal interests equity
FERG HERR REWR/
Bk BRitEE  HiEE B BRE 8GR i (BHER) MtOFBRER S8R
RYBOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOMO  RMBUORD  RMBOO)  RMBOWO  RVMBOW  RMBUM  RMBOO  RMBOW
AT NEBTR AGRTT ARETR ARETL ARETT ARETL AGRTT AGETL ARETT ABETZ
(note i) (note i)
(W) (i)
Balance t | January 2017 VI7EIRIRKER 5% 1302087 (8198) = 4656 PUL] 70476 19241 138909 717 1383381
Proft forthe year Ll - - - - - - - UM 7394 2084 143
Other comprehensive income for the year  FREMZAHA S S S S S 4 > > 1 = bl
Tota comprenensieeincome for the year ~ EREENALZE - - - - - 4 - 3% 4% 204 2480
Appropnations £ = = = = = = 6339 (6339) - - -
Dividends recognsed as distrbution BRRARNRE - (9 - - - - = - -9
Purchase of shares under BARMRAH B2
Resticted Share Incentive Scheme BERD - = - (3&0) = = = - (13650) - (136%)
Reversal o equity-setted BENRELE IR AER
share-based payments Lafi s - = = = (4656) - = = (4656) G) @0
Acquisttion of non-controling interest ks
(rotei) (i) - S 510 - - - = B Sl ) (o)
Recogniton of non-controling nterest ~~ EEsBEDAIE BN
Zhenghou HarMoniCare Hosprta AR ER
(note i) (Riski) - - - - - - - = = 14400 14400
Acquition of 2 non-wholl owned subsidry  AEEFE2 AR - - - - - - - - - Wl 217881
Adustments to non<ontroling inerest ~ FFERERNE - = = = = = = = = M 3
Balance at 31 December 2017 WTENR3IBHES 598 1264166 (1430  (13650) - m 76815 4029 1354105 08003 1582108
Balance at | January 2018 WI8EI B I A 59 1264166 (1439 (13,650) - m 76815 4029 1354105 08003 1582108
Loss for the year EhER - - - - - - - sy (529 (99 (es)
Other comprehensive income for the year  FREMZARA - - - - - 138 - - 138 - 138
Tota comprehensive incomel(oss) forthe ERZEKA /(E1E)
year - - - - - 138 - (52%9)  (slel) (39912 (785073)
Approprietons 1 - - - - - - 2180 (2180) - - -
Purchase of shares under RERHIERHE
Restricted Share ncentive Scheme EERH - - - (61900 - - - - (1) - (6790)
Increase capital from non-controling FEhERIEE
Interests - - - - - - - - - 5,600 5,600
Acquistion of non-wholly owned subsidares 52 EMBAT
(note 13) (HizE13) - - - - - - - - - (6% (3656
Balance at 31 December 2018 WISF A3 ANES 598 1264166 (1439  (81552) - 408 7899 (687,183) 561,042 719 eml7l
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CoNTINUED)
FEEREHR @

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BZEWNISFIA3IBILFE

Notes:

(il

)

94

Exchange differences arising on foreign currency translation of a foreign associate are

recognised in other comprehensive income.

According to the PRC Company Law and the Articles of Association of the PRC subsidiaries
of the Group, these companies are required to transfer 10% of their respective after-
tax profits, calculated in accordance with China Accounting Standards (‘CASs"), to the
statutory surplus reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered capital. The
statutory surplus reserve can be utilised, upon approval of the relevant authorities, to offset
accumulated losses or to increase registered capital of these companies, provided that such

fund is maintained at a minimum of 25% of the registered capital.

On 10 April 2017, Guiyang HarMoniCare Hospital acquired 3.5% non-controlling interest of
Guiyang Modem Hospital at a consideration of RMBI,131,000. On 22 May 2017, Guiyang
HarMoniCare Hospital acquired 3% non-controlling interest of Guangzhou Woman Hospital
at a consideration of RMB2,620,000. On 27 May 2017, Guiyang HarMoniCare Hospital
acquired 4.5% non-controlling interest of Chongqing Liren Hospital at a consideration of
RMB2,486,000. The consideration with a total amounts of RMB6,237,000 was fully paid in
October 2017.

On 23 December 2017, Guiyang HarMoniCare Hospital acquired 3% non-controlling interest
of Chongging Wanzhou HarMoniCare Hospital at a consideration of RMB850,000. The

amount of consideration payable for acquisition of non-controlling interest is RMB850,000.

Zhengzhou HarMoniCare Hospital was set up on | March 2017 with injection of share

capital amounting to RMB36,000,000, including non-controlling interest of RMB 14,400,000.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 3| December 2018
HEWNIBFI2A3IBIEFE

2018 2017
2018%F 20175
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARKEFT ABETT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHMEHERE
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETE AT (B518) / FI (749,353) 33947
Adjustments for: HATEIEELRE -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment n¥k  BERRERE 70,605 51,200
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hitmy EEgH 11,758 7454
Amortisation of land use right ik AR 2443 1,019
Share of loss of associates FEEEEARER 6,460 4625
Gain on disposal of interests in an associate & — RS D Al A = (60)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HENE - BFERZENEE 553 357
Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment n¥ - BEKRERERE 107,189 =
Impairment losses on trade receivables B RNFIEZ REEE 2,015 2476
Impairment losses on prepayments, deposits and other BAR - B REMERTIELZ
receivables HEEE 116,465 =
Impairment losses on goodwill B2 7 REERE 189,978 -
Impairment losses on intangible assets BYEAERERE 135,199 =
Impairment losses on loan receivables EWERZRERER 6,500 =
Impairment losses on amount due from related parties PRy OB R B 1R 1,280 =
Provision for onerous leases and medical dispute claims EFRURERBEUNRERE 44,434 358
Foreign exchange (gains)/losses B (&), BE (222) 20336
Equity settled share-based payments MAIRIERE B AR AT K = (4,708)
Finance cost REKA 5220 =
Interest income from bank deposits RITETZFEBRA (1,321) (8,301)
Interest income from loan receivables FRETMEHA (631) (774)
Interest income from amounts due from an associate FEN— RIS D RIFIER S (3,454) (539)
Fair value gain on contingent consideration receivables U AREBN LT EYS (10,990) —
Net gain arising on financial assets at FVTPL BRATEFABR  EREEEE
G (6222) (3,391
Net gain arising on bank financial products RITERER R TR (1,734) (3283)
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 2EESEHANLLRESRE (73,828) 100,716
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CoNTINUED)

HEEERER @)

For the year ended 3| December 2018
BZEWNISFIA3IBILFE

2018 2017
20185 0175
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFT ANEEFT
Change in inventories FE% (6,860) 3,639
Change in trade receivables BHRYHIEE (9,056) (16,899)
Change in prepayment, deposits and other receivables AR ke REMEKTES (68,154) (27,397)
Change in amounts due from related parties FEVR AR RS B - (363)
Change in trade payables BHENTEZE) 7,165 (4396)
Change in other payables and accruals HihERTUE R ETERE (146,671) (13,324)
Change in amount due to a related party e T IR E E) 301 269
Change in rental deposits HERSEH 1,427 (999)
Change in accrued rental expenses gk 1,403 (1,657)
Payment in provision BEER (1,09) I
Net cash (used in)/generated from operations mE () /GRS FE (285,369) 39,078
Income tax paid ERFEHR (20,944) (29,525)
Interest received from bank deposits ERRITERZHE 1,321 9,141
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities mgEe (FA)/ FERLFE (304,992) 18,694
Cash flows from investing activities REEDHEHERE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BENE  BFEREB (107,176) (119.936)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment  (EW% » BERREMEHER 430 176
Purchase of other intangible assets BEHMELEE (2513) (1,189)
Purchase of bank financial products BARTEVER (43,000) (340,000)
Redemption of bank financial products BERITEMER 44,734 343283
Redemption of time deposits B iR 45,000 70,000
Acquisition of investments in associates WERBE AR ZRE (5,600) (25002)
Deposits for acquisitions of business W EBNEE - (79,643)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) on acquisition of subsidiaries KEMBARZESRA /() 58 8,574 (25,084)
Capital contribution from non-controlling interests FERESIE 5,600 14,400
Loans to third parties ME=HREER - (120,957)
Repayment of loan from third parties F=HENEER 124,457 5,000
Payments to acquire financial assets at FVTPL KRR TFEABR 2REENR (59,900) (48,000)
Loans to associates B A AR AR (45,741) (29,000)
Withdrawal of loan from an associate BN ISEN - 4000
Net cash used in investing activities RETHAREFE (35,135) (351952)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CoNTINUED)
FmEEEREXR®@®

For the year ended 3| December 2018
HEWNIBFI2A3IBIEFE

2018 2017
20185 0175
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥FT ANEETFT

Cash flows from financing activities RETHMGHERE
Consideration paid for acquisitions of non-controlling WERMB AR 2 MR

interest in subsidiaries ERRE - (6:237)
Dividends paid ERRE - (37,849)
Interest paid on other borrowings EREMERHE (5,220) -
Other borrowings raised EESEMER 79,466 -
Repayments to related parties ENTEE - (69,598)
Repayments to third parties BRTE=T = (4,000)
Purchase of ordinary shares, including transaction costs BALRR  BERIKK (67,902) (13,650)
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities RETBRE (R BLFE 6,344 (131,334)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents REeRRLEEMALFE (333,783) (464,592)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ExEHsTE 634 (20,409)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year EORERRLEED 466,995 951,996
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year represented FREERBEEEY (BRTR

by bank and cash balances Rei) 133,846 466,995
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents REeRALEENAN
Bank and cash balances RITRRE B 133,846 466995
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GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands on 26 August
2014. The address of the registered office of the Company is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KYI-1111, Cayman Islands, and its
principal place of business is located in the PRC. The Company is an investment
holding company and the Group are principally engaged in provision of specialised
hospital services, especially in obstetrics and gynaecology and supply chain business
in the PRC.

The shares of the Company have been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) with the effect from 7 July 2015.

Reference to the announcement dated on | April 2019, the trading of ordinary
shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange has been suspended with effect
from | April 2019 pending the publication of the annual results of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2018.

Reference to the announcement dated on |2 June 2019, the Company received
a letter from the Stock Exchange on 15 May 2019 in relation to resumption
guidance for the Company including (i) publish all outstanding financial results
and address any audit modifications; (i) conduct an independent interal control
review and demonstrate that the Company has in place adequate intemal control
and procedures to comply with the Listing Rules; and (iii) announce all material
information for the Company's shareholders and other investors to appraise
the Company's position. If the Company fails to remedy the issues causing the
suspension and fully comply with the Listing Rules to the Stock Exchange's
satisfaction and resume trading in the Shares by 30 September 2020, the Listing
Department of the Stock Exchange will recommend the Listing Committee of the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Committee”) to proceed with the cancellation of the
Company's listing, subject to the Stock Exchange’s right to impose a shorter specific

remedial period under Rule 6.10 of the Listing Rules where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

GENERAL INFORMATION (Continued)

On 26 November 2020, the Listing Committee considered the Company's
resumption and listing status. The Company received a letter from the Stock
Exchange dated 27 November 2020 stating that the Listing Committee has decided
to cancel the Company's listing under Rule 6.01A of the Listing Rules (the "Delisting
Decision”). It is indicated in the letter that unless the Company applies for a review
of the Delisting Decision pursuant to Chapter 2B of the Listing Rules, the last day of
listing of the Shares would be on || December 2020, and the listing of the Shares
would be cancelled with effect from 9:00 am. on 14 December 2020.

The Company has submitted an application on 4 December 2020 requesting the

Delisting Decision be referred to the Listing Review Committee for review.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB"), which is
also the functional currency of the Company. All values are rounded to the nearest

thousand except when otherwise stated.

GOING CONCERN BASIS
The Group incurred a loss of approximately RMB/85,2 11,000 for the year ended

31 December 2018 and as at 31 December 2018, the capital commitments for
acquisition of property, plant and equipment of the Group was approximately
RMB258,301,000. These conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty
which may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concemn. Therefore, the Group may be unable to realise its assets and discharge
its liabilities in the normal course of business. The directors of the Company have
prepared the consolidated financial statements based on going concern on the

assumptions and measures that:

(@)  The Group is actively disposing certain subsidiaries including but not limited
to Nantong Hemeijia Hospital. The management of the Group is confident
that such disposals would generate at least RMBI50 million cash inflow to
the Group and significantly reduce overall capital commitments of the Group
in 2021;
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GOING CONCERN BASIS (Continued)

(b)  The management has ceased or delayed nearly all construction of new
hospitals and new investments until the Group's net current liabilities

situation is resolved;

(c)  The Group applies cost control measures in cost of sales, administrative

expenses and capital expenditures;

(d)  The Group is also maximising its sale effort and implementing comprehensive

policies to improve operating cash flows.

The directors of the Company have reviewed the Group's cash flow projections
prepared by management. The cash flow projections cover a period of not less
than twelve months from 31 December 2018. After taking into account the above
assumptions and measures, the directors of the Company consider that the Group
will have sufficient working capital to finance its operations and to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due within twelve months from 31 December
2018 and believe that the Group will continue as a going concern and consequently

have prepared the consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and revised International
Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRSs") issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB") that are relevant to its operations and effective for its
accounting year beginning on | January 2018. IFRSs comprise International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS™); International Accounting Standards (“IAS"); and
Interpretations. The adoption of these new and revised IFRSs did not result in
significant changes to the Group's accounting policies, presentation of the Group's
financial statements and amounts reported for the current year and prior years

except as stated below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

The Group had applied IFRS 15 in accordance with the transition provisions and
methods not to restate comparative information for prior period and resulted
in changes in the consolidated amounts reported in the consolidated financial

statements as follows:

3.
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| January 2018

20181 A1H

HK$'000

FET
Decrease in other payables Hip RN ZIER D (75,173)
Increase in contract liabilities BHE B 75,173

The Group has not applied the new IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective. The Group has already commenced an assessment of the impact of these
new IFRSs. Except for the following new IFRS 16 “Leases” to be effective from
| January 2019, the Group expects that these IFRSs except for IFRS 16 “Leases”

would have no material impact on its results of operations and financial position.

IFRS 16 “Leases”

The Group as lessee

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and corresponding lease liabilities when
the leased assets are available for use by the Group. Right-of-use assets are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Depreciation of right-
of-use assets is calculated at rates to write off their cost over the shorter of the

asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

IFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liabilities, lease payments prepaid, initial direct costs and
the restoration costs. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the lease
payments discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate can
be determined, or otherwise the Group's incremental borrowing rate. Each lease
payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is
charged to profit or loss over the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic

rate of interest on the remaining balance of the lease liability.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised as expenses in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Short-term leases are leases with an initial lease term of 12 months or less.

On adoption of IFRS 16, the Group recognised right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities in relation to leases which had previously been classified as ‘operating

leases’ under IAS |7 “Leases”.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has non-cancellable operating lease
commitments in respect of premises leased for hospitals and offices amounted to
RMB972 million as disclosed in note 40. A preliminary assessment indicates that
these arrangements will meet the definition of a lease. Upon the application of IFRS
16, the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability in

respect of all these leases unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs
issued by the IASB accounting and the applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial assets at FVTPL and
contingent consideration receivables which are carried at their fair values. The
preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires
the use of certain key assumptions and estimates. It also requires the directors
to exercise its judgements in the process of applying the accounting policies. The
areas involving critical judgements and areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to these consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in note 5 to the

consolidated financial statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated

financial statements are set out below.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries are entities
over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable retums from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those retums through its power over the entity. The Group
has power over an entity when the Group has existing rights that give it the current
ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity's

returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential voting rights as well as
potential voting rights held by other parties, to determine whether it has control.
A potential voting right is considered only if the holder has the practical ability to

exercise that right.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the

Group. They are de-consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in a loss of control
represents the difference between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the
sale plus the fair value of any investment retained in that subsidiary and (i) the
Company's share of the net assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill
relating to that subsidiary and any related accumulated foreign currency translation

reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed

where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries not attributable,
directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position and consolidated statement
of changes in equity within equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the year between

the non-controlling shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling shareholders even if this

results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company's ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions (i.e. transactions with
owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling and
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is

recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition of a subsidiary in
a business combination. The cost of acquisition is measured at the acquisition-
date fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred and
contingent consideration. Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses
in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the services are received.
Identifiable assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at

their acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company's share of the net fair
value of the subsidiary's identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any
excess of the Company's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or loss as a

gain on bargain purchase which is attributed to the Company.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the previously held equity interest in
the subsidiary is remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain
or loss is recognised in consolidated profit or loss. The fair value is added to the

cost of acquisition to calculate the goodwill.

If the changes in the value of the previously held equity interest in the subsidiary
were recognised in other comprehensive income (for example, equity investments
at fair value through other comprehensive income), the amount that was
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised on the same basis as

would be required if the previously held equity interest were disposed of.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired. Goodwill is measured at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. The method of measuring impairment losses
of goodwill is the same as that of other assets as stated in the accounting policy
below. Impairment losses of goodwill are recognised in consolidated profit or loss
and are not subsequently reversed. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition for the purpose
of impairment testing.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially measured at the non-
controlling shareholders’ proportionate share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s

identifiable assets and liabilities at the acquisition date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of an entity but is not control or joint control over those policies. The existence
and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible,
including potential voting rights held by other entities, are considered when
assessing whether the Group has significant influence. In assessing whether a
potential voting right contributes to significant influence, the holder's intention and

financial ability to exercise or convert that right is not considered.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
by the equity method and is initially recognised at cost. Identifiable assets and
liabilities of the associate in an acquisition are measured at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share of
the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as
goodwill. The goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is
tested for impairment together with the investment at the end of each reporting
period when there is objective evidence that the investment is impaired. Any
excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and

liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or loss.

The Group's share of an associate’s post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised
in consolidated profit or loss, and its share of the post-acquisition movements in
reserves is recognised in the consolidated reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group's share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate. If the associate subsequently reports profits, the Group resumes
recognising its share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the

share of losses not recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Associates (Continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that results in a loss of significant
influence represents the difference between (i) the fair value of the consideration
of the sale plus the fair value of any investment retained in that associate and (i)
the Group's share of the net assets of that associate plus any remaining goodwill
relating to that associate and any related accumulated foreign currency translation
reserve. If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture,
the Group continues to apply the equity method and does not remeasure the

retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and its associates are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests in the associates. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed where

necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group'’s entities are
measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in RMB, which is the Company's functional and

presentation currency.

(i) Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial statements
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency
on initial recognition using the exchange rates prevailing on the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at
the exchange rates at the end of each reporting period. Gains and losses

resulting from this translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CoNTINUED)
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For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HEWIBFENA3NALEFE

4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(i)

Translation on consolidation
The results and financial position of all the Group entities that have a
functional currency different from the Company's presentation currency are

translated into the Company's presentation currency as follows:

= Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented
are translated at the closing rate at the date of that statement of

financial position;

= Income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the exchange rates on the

transaction dates); and

= All resulting exchange differences are recognised in the foreign

currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the
net investment in foreign entities and of borrowings are recognised in the
foreign currency translation reserve. When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in consolidated profit or loss as part of

the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign
entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated

at the closing rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as
a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit

or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the

following estimated useful lives:

Estimated useful lives
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The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed and

adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Construction in progress represents buildings under construction and plant
and machinery pending installation, and is stated at cost less impairment losses.

Depreciation begins when the relevant assets are available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset, and

is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CoNTINUED)
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For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HEWIBFENA3NALEFE
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried
at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on

a prospective basis.

Other intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Other intangible assets acquired in a business combination are medical licenses
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair value at

the acquisition date.

Subsequent to initial recognition, other intangible assets acquired in a business
combination with finite useful lives are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as other

intangible assets that are acquired separately.

Derecognition of other intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic
benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets, are recognised in profit or

loss when the asset is derecognised.

Leases

The Group as lessee

Obperating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group all the risks and rewards of
ownership of assets are accounted for as operating leases. Lease payments (net of
any incentives received from the lessor) are recognised as an expense on a straight-

line basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined using the first-in-first-out method. The cost of finished goods comprises
raw materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of all production
overhead expenditure, and where appropriate, subcontracting charges. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the

sale.

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statement of financial
position when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to receive cash flows
from the assets expire; the Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets; or the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets but has not retained control on
the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received is recognised in profit

or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in the relevant
contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid is

recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis where the
purchase or sale of an asset is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the
asset within the timeframe established by the market concered, and are initially
recognised at fair value, plus directly attributable transaction costs except in the
case of investments at fair value through profit or loss. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of investments at fair value through profit or loss are

recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CoNTINUED)
mERBEBRERME @

For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HEWIBFENA3NALEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets of the Group are classified under the following categories:

112

Financial assets at amortised cost; and

Investments at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost
Financial assets (including trade and other receivables) are classified under

this category if they satisfy both of the following conditions:

= the assets are held within a business model whose objective is to hold

assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

= the contractual terms of the assets give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the

principal amount outstanding.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest method less loss allowance for expected credit losses.

Investments at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are classified under this category if they do not meet the
conditions to be measured at amortised cost and the conditions of debt
investments at fair value through other comprehensive income unless the
Group designates an equity investment that is not held for trading as at fair

value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition.

Investments at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently measured
at fair value with any gains or losses arising from changes in fair values
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value gains or losses recognised in profit
or loss are net of any interest income and dividend income. Interest income

and dividend income are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Loss allowances for expected credit losses
The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets
at amortised cost. Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses

with the respective risks of a default occurring as the weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group measures the loss allowance for
a financial instrument at an amount equal to the expected credit losses that result
from all possible default events over the expected life of that financial instrument
('lifetime expected credit losses”) for trade receivables, or if the credit risk on that

financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk on a financial instrument (other
than trade receivables) has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal
to the portion of lifetime expected credit losses that represents the expected credit
losses that result from default events on that financial instrument that are possible

within 12 months after the reporting period.

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to adjust the loss allowance at
the end of the reporting period to the required amount is recognised in profit or

loss as an impairment gain or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents represent
cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
Bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group's cash management are also included as a component of cash and cash

equivalents.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument under IFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract
that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and equity

instruments are set out below.

Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred,

and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional
right to defer settlement of the liability for at least |2 months after the reporting
period.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are initially recognised at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method unless the effect of

discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received,

net of direct issue costs.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a
customer with reference to the customary business practices and excludes amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. For a contract where the period between the
payment by the customer and the transfer of the promised product or service
exceeds one year, the consideration is adjusted for the effect of a significant

financing component.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a performance obligation by
transferring control over a product or service to a customer. Depending on
the terms of a contract and the laws that apply to that contract, a performance
obligation can be satisfied over time or at a point in time. A performance obligation

is satisfied over time if:

= the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided

by the Group's performance;

= the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer

controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

= the Group's performance does not create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for

performance completed to date.

If a performance obligation is satisfied over time, revenue is recognised by reference
to the progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance obligation.
Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains

control of the product or service.

Other revenue
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest

method.

Government grants
A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to it and that the grant will be

received.

e BBRME @

For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HEWIBENA3IALEFE

FTEEHBE (H)

EFEHNNE (&

AR BR B BRI R
EXPMETRABERERRE - ]
FROGTLERRZENNER B
RV B AE R DATE — BB R A S IR P
BT - WENRUTRER  BHORME
RE—BRERANET

- ZEPRARESKHEEASEED
FATR LRI ¢

- AREBROTERIEAALKE
AEANEE - BREELE
4 SERK HO B #05 5R % B A 5 1l
TTHORER

WEBNEEE—BRERAET W&
N2RENE TEMTRAERER -
BRI - WS E P RS E m RG]
AR R -

Hitoess
S AR L BIEE - RIBERF
E RN

BT
B BHRTABREAEHSLAE
HIB Gl - BAERA R B

27
o

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 « 2018 &% 115



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CoNTINUED)
mERBEBRERME @

For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HEWIBFENA3NALEFE

4.

116

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits

@

(i)

(i)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a result of services

rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and matemity leave are not recognised

until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement schemes which
are available to all employees. Contributions to the schemes by the Group
and employees are calculated as a percentage of employees’ basic salaries.
The retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents

contributions payable by the Group to the funds.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of the dates when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when
the Group recognises restructuring costs and involves the payment of

termination benefits.

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to certain directors,

employees and consultants.

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors and employees are measured at

the fair value (excluding the effect of non market-based vesting conditions) of the

equity instruments at the date of grant. The fair value determined at the grant date

of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over

the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate of shares that will eventually vest

and adjusted for the effect of non market-based vesting conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payments to consultants are measured at the fair value
of the services rendered or if the fair value of the services rendered cannot be
reliably measured, at the fair value of the equity instruments granted. The fair value
is measured at the date the Group receives the services and is recognised as an

expense.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the

borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for the purpose of
obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation
is determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset.
The capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable
to the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding during the period, other than

borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which

they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differs from profit recognised in profit or loss because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be utilised.
Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor

the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will

not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
when the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is

also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle

its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

A

®)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Group

if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Company or of

a parent of the Company.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions applies:

The entity and the Company are members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which the other
entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group.
If the Group is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in

().
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)
(B)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions applies:
(Continued)

(vii) A person identified in (A)(i) has significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity).

(viii)  The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides
key management personnel services to the Company or to a parent

of the Company.

Segment reporting

Operating segments and the amounts of each segment item reported in the
financial statements are identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group's most senior executive management for the purpose of allocating

resources and assessing the performance of the Group's various lines of business.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for financial reporting
purposes unless the segments have similar economic characteristics and are similar
in respect of the nature of products and services, the nature of productions
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material may be aggregated if they

share a majority of these criteria.

Impairment of assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or not yet available for use are
reviewed annually for impairment and are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount may not be

recoverable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of its tangible and other intangible assets except goodwill, deferred tax assets,
investments, inventories and receivables to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of any impairment loss. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the

cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market

assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the
asset or cash-generating unit is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation)
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset or cash-generating unit in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the

reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the
Group has a present legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditures expected

to settle the obligation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or
the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability

of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional information about the
Group's position at the end of the reporting period or those that indicate the going
concem assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and are reflected in the
consolidated financial statements. Events after the reporting period that are not
adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements

when material.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the directors have made
the following judgements that have the most significant effect on the amounts

recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

(a)  Going concern basis
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis, the validity of which depends upon the assumptions and

measures as explained in note 2 to consolidated financial statements.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the

next financial year, are discussed below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

@)

()

©

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and land use right

Property, plant and equipment and land use right are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of the assets exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is determined with reference to the present value
of estimated future cash flows. Where the future cash flows are less
than expected or there are unfavourable events and change in facts and
circumstance which result in revision of future estimate cash flows, a material
impairment loss may arise.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual values and related
depreciation charges for the Group's property, plant and equipment. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual useful lives
and residual values of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. The Group will revise the depreciation charge where useful lives
and residual values are different to those previously estimated, or it will
write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold.

Impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets

Determining whether goodwill and other intangible assets is impaired
requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating unit to
which goodwill has been allocated and other intangible assets. The value
in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value. The carrying amount of goodwill
and other intangible assets at the end of the reporting period were
approximately RMB22,444,000 and RMB56,536,000 (2017: approximately
RMB122,283,000 and RMBI36,180,000), respectively. Impairment losses on
goodwill and other intangible assets of approximately RMB189,978,000 and
RMBI35,199,000 had been recognised during the year ended 31 December
2018 (2017: nil), respectively. Details of the impairment loss calculation are
provided in note 2| and note 22 to consolidated financial statements.
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

@

()

Recoverability of trade receivables and prepayment, deposits and other
receivables

Allowance for doubtful debts is made when there is objective evidence that
the recoverability of trade receivables due from customers and prepayment,
deposits and other receivables becomes doubtful. As at 31 December 2018,
the carrying amounts of trade receivables and prepayment, deposits and
other receivables are approximately RMB54,299,000 and RMB 66,821,000
(2017: RMB46,295,000 and RMB134,162,000) respectively. In determining
the recoverability of overdue trade and other receivables, management
makes assumptions and applies judgements in assessing the recoverability
of trade and other receivables, based on certain of these factors including
debt aging, historical settlement experience, subsequent settlements, future
expected settlement plan, business relationship with the debtors and credit
assessment of debtors. The directors of the Company believe that there will
not be a material change in the estimates or assumptions which are used
in the calculations of recoverable amounts of trade and other receivables.
However, when the actual outcome or expectation in the future is less or
more than the original estimates, additional or reversal of impairment loss
may arise.

Fair value of financial assets at FVTPL

As disclosed in note 7 to the consolidated financial statements, the fair
values of the financial assets at FVTPL at the date of issue and the end of
the reporting period were determined using binomial model. Application
of binomial model requires the Group to estimate the prominent factors
affecting the fair value, including but not limited to, the expected life of the
financial assets, the expected volatility, and the discount rate. Where the
estimation on these factors is different from those previously estimated, such
differences will impact the fair value gain or loss of the financial assets at
FVTPL in the period in which such determination is made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign currency risk,

credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The Group's overall risk management

programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to

minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

@)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk as certain assets
are denominated in United States dollars (‘USD") and Hong Kong dollars
(“HKD"), which are not the functional currencies of the Group entities. The
directors of the Company manage its currency risk by closely monitoring the
movement of the foreign currency rates and considering hedging significant

foreign currency exposure should such need arise.

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5% increase and
decrease in RMB against USD and HKD. 5% is the sensitivity rate represents
the directors’ assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation to RMB
at year end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. A positive number
below indicates an increase in profit where RMB weakens 5% against the
USD and HKD. For a 5% strengthening of RMB against the relevant currency,
there would be an equal and opposite impact on the profit for the year, and

the amounts below would be negative.
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6.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

126

Credit risk

The carrying amount of the time deposits, bank deposits, trade and
other receivables, loan receivables, financial assets at FVTPL, contingent
consideration receivables and amounts due from related companies included
in the consolidated statement of financial position represents the Group's

maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to the Group's financial assets.

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event that
counterparties fail to perform their obligations at 31 December 2018 in
relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the carrying amounts
of those assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.
The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade and other
receivables, loan receivables, financial assets at FVTPL and amounts due
from related companies. In order to minimise credit risk, the directors have
delegated a team to be responsible for the determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures. In addition, the directors
review the recoverable amount of each individual debt regularly to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are recognised for irrecoverable debts. In
this regard, the directors consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly

reduced.

The credit risk on time deposits and bank deposits is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by credit-rating

agencies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)
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6.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group considers whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk of financial assets on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period
by comparing the risk of a default occurring as at the reporting date with
the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information. Especially the

following information is used:

= internal credit rating;

= external credit rating;

= actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant change

to the borrower's ability to meet its obligations;

= actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the

borrower;

= significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments of the

same borrower; and

- significant changes in the value of the collateral or in the quality of

guarantees or credit enhancements; and

- significant changes in the expected performance and behaviour of the

borrower, including changes in the payment status of borrowers.

A significant increase in credit risk is presumed if a debtor is more than 30
days past due in making a contractual payment. A default on a financial asset
is when the counterparty fails to make contractual payments within 60 days

of when they fall due.

For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HEWIBENA3IALEFE

6. THEBREE (&)

(b)

FERR (&)
AEEUBEREENFSAY
ZENRRENNRERAHZ
EHRR - UHEEBEEZE
ERMBEEREREPARFE
BEERRIEM - XAEEEEAF
RENREERBXFHZAEMLE
Bt o LEERATER :

- RMEMEERAR

- SMEMEERHAR

- RHERERARTEE
MENHREREH X
% BHIEEMRRZE
PR TRERE A

- BRARZERENERR
RHMERED

- RA-—fERANEMLERT
EEERRBEREM :

o

- EASEERERLEE
R EELREA
28 R

- HEZARHEBERTAY
EXEY  BEERAZ
AR EE

W RAEDNRERARSE
B30 - AIREEERRAEE
e BR5HFEAREHMNK
BIHART 60 A AR - AR
BELRED -
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For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HEWIBFENA3NALEFE

6.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued)

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan with the
Group. The Group normally categorises a loan or receivable for write off
when a debtor fails to make contractual payments greater than 360 days
past due. Where loans or receivables have been written off, the Group, if
practicable and economical, continues to engage in enforcement activity to

attempt to recover the receivable due.

The Group uses two categories for non-trade loan receivables which reflect
their credit risk and how the loan loss provision is determined for each
of the categories. In calculating the expected credit loss rates, the Group

considers historical loss rates for each category and adjusts for forward

6.

SREREE (&)
(b) FERK(E)

TREENAEBRYEZLD
(B AR B AR BE AR TR
ATED) B o HESARNES
RiBB360 R EAEL AN -
AKEBE MBI BEFRK
FENCRIA - i B TR M IR
W AAKEEERATRGA
REBENBERT - EERRR
577 B B R 0 B B R U KO -

AEBERMERRNIFEE S E
BREF - NRREEERR W
IS BREEERE R -
AEBRMEEERRE  AKE

looking data. ZREBRINBEFRELAR

ATIE L8R -

Category Definition Loss Provision

g5l pock 5 BERE

Performing Low risk of default and strong capacity to pay 12 month expected losses

B4 KB ARER RS M6 + A A EHEE

Non-performing Significant increase in credit risk Lifetime expected losses

FEEA) BT E EHEHER
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AN BRERMET @

6.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6.
()  Liquidity risk
The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet

its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The maturity analysis, based on undiscounted cash flows, of the Group's

financial liabilities is as follows:

For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HEWIBENA3IALEFE

SRAREE ()
O HBESAR

AEBOREATHEREER
RS ELER - LRERH
44 75 B A0 4 BB LA IR I
REBORBHESER -

AEESRABENRERRS
REZBHBERIMIAT :

Less than
| year or Total
repayable on Between Between  undiscounted Carrying
demand | to2years  2to5years cash flows amount
EANE1 FRBHE

REXER |1FE)F 2 E5F MELE FREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETT

At 31 December 2018 R2018F12831H
Trade payables BORENFIE 33,056 - - 33,056 33,056
Other payables HhERTIA 87,281 - - 87,28 87,28l
Amount due to a related party FER AR 7T 500R 1,225 = = 1,225 1,225
Other borrowings Hb g3 38,327 34613 38,923 111,863 102,166
Total st 159,889 34613 38,923 233,425 223,728

At 31 December 2017 R2017§ 128318
Trade payables BHRMNTE 16,020 - - 16,020 16,020
Other payables Hith EfT50R 15,200 - - 15,200 15,200
Amount due to a related party FEIRRE 75 500R 924 = = 924 924
Total @t 32,144 - - 32,144 32,144

(d)  Interest rate risk d) FEER

The Group exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate

bank balances, which carry prevailing market interest. The management will

consider hedging significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

The management considered that the exposure to cash flow interest rate

risk in relation to bank balances and bank borrowings is minimal, accordingly,

no sensitivity analysis is presented for both years.

AEEHHRAERBEDF RS
(BRITMBA R E) WRITE
BpOHERENXER - EEE
HRARERE B HEAF X
R o

BEERAABRITHERILIRIT
BN R RE N KRR -
EE - IR E 2 2 5 8%
ERLI
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mERBEBRERME @

For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HEWIBFENA3NALEFE

6.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. SHEMBERE(H)
(e)  Fair values () 2¥E
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities AEENCREERSREBEN
as reflected in the consolidated statement of financial position approximate FREE (REGRE M BRARM
their respective fair values. ) EEEE 2 ATFEREE °
(f)  Categories of financial instruments at 31 December H RIAIBEZEMIAER
2018 2017
20184 2017F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥Fr AEHTT
Financial assets: EREE
Financial assets at amortised cost (including cash and ~ TREESERX AGTER SR EE
cash equivalents) (RRERERREEED) 276,442 775538
Investments at fair value through profit or loss: B TFEGIABRZRE -
Financial assets at FVTPL BAHEFABSNEREE 165,845 99,723
Contingent consideration receivables RS AR E 10,990 -
453,277 875261
Financial liabilities: ERBE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REEKATTENTRRE 223,728 32,144
7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 7. AVEEE
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a NHERMB2EERGERRESF
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement RoPHEEEMRIEZEENY
date. The following disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair value hierarchy MRER - U TATENERERAA
that categorises into three levels the inputs to valuation techniques used to HEER  BRARFELTENGER
measure fair value: MEBABE D BR=(EFH :
Level | inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or F-RBARE  NEERGERMA
liabilities that the Group can access at the measurement date. BEEREES B BN ERTISNRE

(CREEHE) °

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included within level | that are F_RBAEE - B—RAEREUI
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. A EESEEERNEESBERNEA
2z -
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For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HE018F 2R3 BLLEE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. DVEFE (&)

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of any of the AEENHREAHESNERN S 4K
three levels as of the date of the event or change in circumstances that caused the BRES B BREARBLER=
transfer. EHE4R -

(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 December @ RNAJINBNATEERANE

Fair value measurements using: Total

ERAUTRENATETE EH

Level | Level 2 Level 3 2018

-8R B B/ 2018F

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETZT

Recurring fair value measurements: KEMATERE:
Investments at fair value through profit orloss: R AFEFTABRZKE
Financial assets at FVTPL RATEABRNEREE = = 165,845 165,845
Contingent consideration receivables PRk AR (B = = 10,990 10,990
Total recurring fair value measurements BEE N EFELE - - 176,835 176,835
Fair value measurements using; Total
ERNTRENATETE - @5t
Level | Level 2 Level 3 2017
£ E- E=H 20175
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANEETFT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Recurring fair value measurements: KEMAVLERE:
Investments at fair value through profit or loss: ~ RATFEFFABRIIRE :
Financial assets at FVTPL BRATEFABRNEREE = = 99,723 99,723
Total recurring fair value measurements BEERNHEFERE = = 99,723 99,723
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e BHRRME @

For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HEWIBFENA3NALEFE

7.  FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(@) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 December (Continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, there were no
transfer between Level | and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3. The
Group's policy is to recognise transfer between levels of fair value hierarchy

as at the end of the reporting period in which they occur.

The Group's financial controller is responsible for the fair value

measurements of assets and liabilities required for financial reporting

purposes, including level 3 fair value measurements. The financial controller

reports directly to the board of directors for these fair value measurements.

Discussions of valuation processes and results are held between the financial

controller and the board of directors at least twice a year.

(b)  Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based on level 3:

Financial assets

7.

DNVERE (&)

(@)

RINAIBNAFESERANS
REE (&)

REZE2018FR2017F12A3
ALEFE  F—HRE-HZE
BMEEE  FE-RANESAGE
He REBZBERARNR T ERE
REFXER s REBRBREHA

B -

ALEE

mEa s

o mm R A

BT 75 R 4R

ETARCEERBERFER
E(BRFE=-QQTEFE) M
BREERENEESERUER

FEFE - B

40 B i

WG MO SN

EFeE

FELMRTmEERF XA

+
éu °

(b) BEF=HRLAFEFAENEE

¥R -

Contingent

consideration

at FVTPL receivables Total
BROFEFA FE ik
BENEMEE HARE #ct
2018 2018 2018
20184 20184 20185
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBFT AR¥FT
At the beginning of year REH] 99,723 = 99,723
Total gain recognised in profit or M E R K]
loss (#) W BEE (#) 6,222 10,990 17,212
Issue 1T 59,900 - 59,900
At the end of reporting period ¥ HiR 165,845 10,990 176,835
(#) Include gains for assets held at (#) & &GRS HIR
the end of reporting period BIESE=T- Pl Cin 6,222 10,990 17,212
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7.  FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based on level 3:

(Continued)

The total gains recognised in profit or loss are presented in other gains and

losses (Net gain arising on financial assets at FVTPL and fair value gain on

contingent consideration receivables) in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss and other comprehensive income.

AN BRERMET @

For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HEWIBENA3IALEFE

7. DVEFE (&)

b) RBREE=FRAVEFENEE
iR ()
ARRKEMEEKERAIE
Hih s REE (BATEFTA
B e REE e FE R E
Wk AREHATERE) -

Contingent
Financial assets consideration
at FVTPL receivables Total
mAFHERA el
BamEeREE HARRME #B5t
2017 2017 2017
20174 20174 2017
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AE®TT AEETT AEETT
At the beginning of year REA) 48,000 - 48,000
Total gain recognised in profit or P 1B I MR H]
loss (#) o i 4R (#) 3391 - 3,391
Issue 1T 48,332 = 48,332
At the end of reporting period ~ FAIREHIAR 99,723 - 99,723
(#) Include gains for assets held at (#) B IEFH RS HR
the end of reporting period P& B 2 W 3391 - 3391

The total gains recgonised in profit or loss are presented in other gains

and losses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.

B 2R AR ek AR B T IR
ARARAMEEKERAFIE
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For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HEWIBFENA3NALEFE

7.  FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7.

(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group and valuation
techniques and inputs used in fair value measurements at 3| December

2018 and 2017:

Key unobservable inputs used in level 3 fair value measurements are mainly:

DNVERE (&)

(©

R20I18FR2017F 12831 HAE
BRRANGERFRAFERT
BFRANGERTREAYE
HEE

FRATEFAEMRANERE
TABRBARBEER

Effect on fair

value for increase

Description Valuation technique Unobservable inputs Range  of inputs Fair value
BARBEM
] L ER TUBERBAYE #E HATENTE AVE
2018
20185
RMB’000
ABRTT
Financial assets at FVTPL Binomial Model Volatility 42.69% —45.12%  Increase
BEATESABRNERNEE  —EAER R 0
Discount rate 14.63% — 14.74%  Decrease 165,845
HRZ Hy
Contingent consideration Scenario-based Revenue growth rate [3.00% - 21.00% Increase
method
HAKE BR* (63 J oS 2
Discount rate 13.00% Decrease 10,990
HRE A
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For the Year ended 31 December 2018

BEW0I8FENA3IBILEE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. DVEFE (&)
(c) Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group and valuation (0 TA20I8FER20I17F12A3IAEXE
techniques and inputs used in fair value measurements at 3| December BARANEERFRDVER
2018 and 2017: (Continued) BB EERNREAHE
NERE : (&)
Key unobservable inputs used in level 3 fair value measurements are mainly: E=ZRATEAERNKANEERE
TABRBARBEER
Effect on fair
value for increase
Description Valuation technique Unobservable inputs Range  of inputs Fair value
BABEEM
#1E EER T EEEAHE BE HATPENRE AVE
2017
0175
RMB’000
AREFT
Financial assets at FVTPL Binomial Model Volatility 46.57%
BRAVEFABSNEREE —AAEL il
Discount rate 13.20% 99,723
EES
Contingent consideration Scenario-based Revenue growth rate 10.00% - 2500% Increase
method
HARME (5= Wi fe ok il
Discount rate 1300%  Decrease =
BERE B
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For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HEWIBFENA3NALEFE

REVENUE

Revenue represents the amount received or receivable from provision of
specialised hospital services and supply of pharmaceuticals and medical devices

business, net of discount and sales related taxes, are as follows:

The Group's revenue is analysed as follows:

L6

Wean te R (L F R B B AR M (B B i %
ERERIEEBHC I B RFRRITH
FHEMRBEMIE - ST

AEBRREATIT -

2018 2017
20184 20176
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFT AEETFT
Specialised hospital services: =R AR

Provision of healthcare services R BERS 870,438 792,731
Sales of pharmaceuticals and medical devices HE B R BER I11,526 95,071

Supply of pharmaceuticals and medical devices HEZR R BRREES
business 33,026 36,349
Revenue from contracts with customers REBFE O 1,014,990 924,151

For the years ended 3| December 2018 and 2017, all revenue is recognised at a

point in time.

Provision of healthcare services
The Group provides healthcare services to the customers. Revenue from provision
of healthcare services are recognised when the services are rendered and there is

no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer's acceptance of the services.

Supply of pharmaceuticals and medical devices business

The Group sells pharmaceuticals and medical devices to the customers. Sales are
recognised when control of the products has transferred, being when the products
are delivered to a customer, there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the

customer's acceptance of the products.

HARMONICARE MEDICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED * FEERIZERERLD =

BHE2018FK2017F 12831 AIEE
& AN ER X ERREIER -

ROBERE
AEBNEFRMBARY - KoiR
AR UGN A BT R
R EE PR ORI ARTR S
R -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

REVENUE (Continued)

Supply of pharmaceuticals and medical devices business (Continued)
Sales to customers are normally made with credit terms of 30 days. Deposits

received are recognised as a contract liability.

A receivable is recognised when the products are delivered to the customers as
this is the point in time that the consideration is unconditional because only the

passage of time is required before the payment is due.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Mr. Lin Yuming, Mr. Zhao Xingli and Mr. Fang Zhifeng, the directors of the
Company, are identified as the chief operating decision maker (the “CODM") of
the Group for the purposes of resources allocation and performance assessment.
The CODM reviews operating results and financial information on a company
by company basis. This is also the basis upon which the Group is organised.
Accordingly, each company is identified as an operating segment. When the group
companies are operating in similar business model with similar target group of
customers, and under the same regulatory environment, the Group's operating
segment are aggregated and the Group's reportable segments for segment

reporting purposes are as follows:

Specialised hospital services

at hospitals within the Group

e BBRME @

For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HEWIBENA3IALEFE

Wz ()

HERER R BRRIERS (5)
MEPELNHEE - REK0BEMNEER
H - BUBZERRAR/AHNAR -

S IEEA%DDQN%%:)EB%EE% al=:
RNFEHREAGREBE - R E
%%Mﬁ%ﬁﬁ%#°

PEHEFR
RAPEERETEREAMNS - AAT
BEEMERALE  BENEERAEE
RERAAEENFELEREE ([
BRERFE]) - TEREREERR
AEEEHNCEXERIBER - It
MEMHREAREE 5 il - FAlt - SAF
HEER—ELENE - MEEQRR
REUEBEXLE  AEEUBER
PHEAENREEERE  ~A5ER|
ENZELENT - AEER S HImE
BRR A AREDEMAT

provision of specialised hospital services, especially in obstetrics and gynecology, provided

REFHERRT - LERASERERRERNBERRS

ER B IR

Supply of pharmaceuticals and medical devices  sales of pharmaceuticals and medical devices other than those supply as part of the
business specialised hospital services

e B M BRI RS LAY

RIERHE (T EEERER B RGAEK D HE)
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e BHRRME @

For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HEWIBFENA3NALEFE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. ZDEEH (&)

Py

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by operating and AEBREERIRE D HE D 2 W
REZ2DFWT -

reportable segment.

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BZE20I8FE A3 BLEE

Supply of

Specialised pharmaceuticals

hospital and medical
services devices business Total

HERER R
ERERRS BRREXESR Mzt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREFT
External revenue ShSR IR 981,964 33,026 1,014,990
Inter-segment revenue e - 53,059 53,059
Segment revenue pax: G 981,964 86,085 1,068,049
Eliminations 3 - (53,059) (53,059)
Consolidated revenue RNl Gt 981,964 33,026 1,014,990
Segment results DEREE (697,198) (6,003) (703,201)
Unallocated results AOBEE (46,152)
Loss before income tax BRETSRRE B (749,353)
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9.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

AN BRERMET @

For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HE018F 2R3 BLLEE

9. AHEHRH)

BE2017FE12A3IBLEEE

Supply of
Specialised pharmaceuticals
hospital and medical
services devices business Total
f#REsm &
BRI B RY L st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANEETFT ANEETFT AEETFT
External revenue ShSR IR 887,802 36,349 924,151
Inter-segment revenue e - 46,678 46,678
Segment revenue paN: G 887,802 83,027 970,829
Eliminations Eafis - (46,678) (46,678)
Consolidated revenue o= Nl Gt 887,802 36,349 924,151
Segment results DEPEE 74,458 8972 83430
Unallocated results AOBEE (49.483)
Profit before income tax BR TS 25 BT A 33,947
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For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HEWIBFENA3NALEFE

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. HEH (&)
BZ2017F12A3 ALFE (F)
AEBREERAIBENHED 2 EE
REBEZAWIT -

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Continued)
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by operating and
reportable segment.

As at 31 December 2018 2018512831 H

Supply of

Specialised pharmaceuticals

hospital and medical
services devices business Total

HEERK
ENBRRE BRREER £y
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKEFIT ARKFIT ARKFT
Segment assets DEEE 650,524 57,572 708,096
Goodwill SRS 22,444 = 22,444
Unallocated assets KOBEE 479,665
Consolidated assets GEBE 1,210,205
Segment liabilities HEEE 388,943 5,194 394,137
Unallocated liabilities RAHELa’E 137,897
Consolidated liabilities reaE 532,034
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
As at 31 December 2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

Specialised
hospital

services

ERBERRY
RIMB'000
ARETT

AN BRERMET @

For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HE018F 2R3 BLLEE

PEER (&)
20175128318

Segment assets
Goodwill

Unallocated assets

791,700
122,283

Consolidated assets

Segment liabilities

Unallocated liabilities

123,290

Consolidated liabilities

Supply of
pharmaceuticals
and medical
devices business Total
HREEm &
BERMER st
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
64,125 855,825
- 122,283
849,012
1,827,120
15,195 138,485
106,527
245,012
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For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HEWIBFENA3NALEFE

9.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Other segment information

For the year ended 3| December 2018

9. AHEHRH)

Hittn &R

BZE20I8FE12A3IBLLEE

Supply of
Specialised  pharmaceuticals
hospital and medical
services device business Unallocated Total
HEHERK
ENBERRE BERERE R B #st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARE T AREFT AREFT
Depreciation and amortisation FrEREH 83,566 642 598 84,806
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BER
plant and equipment RIENER 552 | = 553
Addition to non-current assets FERENEEE
(note) (B3E) 404,133 46 449 404,628
Impairment losses on property, ME - BE RZEN
plant and equipment FEEE 107,189 - - 107,189
Impairment losses on goodwill BENREER 189,978 — - 189,978
Impairment losses on other Hi M & E
intangible assets REEE 135,199 - - 135,199
Fair value gain on contingent M AR B
consideration receivables N RELEN 10,990 = = 10,990
Impairment losses on trade B 5 RUGRIER)
receivables DERIEN R ] 2,015 - - 2,015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

9.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017

e BBRME @

For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HEWIBENA3IALEFE

9. AHEHRH)

BE2017FE12A3IBLEEE

Supply of
Specialised pharmaceuticals
hospital and medical
services device business Unallocated Total
S &
EMBRRS — BRREES ADE Bt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AE¥FT ANEEFT AEETFT ARETT
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH 55,155 697 3,821 59,673
Loss on disposal of property, plant &% ~ BB K&
and equipment HENEE 356 | - 357
Addition to non-current assets (note)  FERENE 1L AN (FH5E) 339,080 3 NEY 340252
Note: Bz

Non-current assets consist of property, plant and equipment, land use right, other intangible assets

and goodwill.

The accounting policies of the operating and reportable segments are the same as the Group's
accounting policies described in note 4. Segment results represent the profit before tax eared by
each segment, without allocation of central administration costs, directors’ emoluments and share
of loss of associates not directly related to the respective segment, which represents the internally
generated financial information regularly reviewed by the CODM. This is the measure reported to

the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance.

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and allocating resources between segments,
all assets, liabilities and expenses of the Company and other holding companies are presented as

unallocated.

Income tax expenses have been allocated to segments as additional information regularly provided
to the CODM but not included in the measure of segment results while the relevant deferred tax
assets, deferred tax liabilities and tax payables have been allocated into the segment assets and

liabilities.

No geographical information is presented as all of the Group's revenue is derived from activities in

the PRC, and all of the Group's operations and major non-current assets are located in the PRC.

No revenue from individual external customer contributing over 10% of total revenue of the Group.

BRDEEDENE « BERERE - Hi0EmHE -
i EEREE -

RAI$RE D B B SRR B 4P A R E
TR e DEFERRED WA iR
SRR AP RITHAA - EEME REG
BEQRBRNGTANE  BEREERRET
REBONLHBER - ARDEEREFED
BRAMNTBLERFEZROTIE

Dkt

R
k)

N

RERNBRARDEASBRER » ARA REM
BERARZEERE - AERFASIHNARNE -

ERAXCEOEERDH - FAEHRERLE
ARERENHREM B ENBRER LR
A MAEEEHEEE - EXHARRREMNH
BANREDHEERARE

ARARE2 RSB TENESAARERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

HmEMBERRMET @

For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HEWIBFENA3NALEFE

10. OTHER INCOME 10. EfprA
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AEETFT
Interest income from bank deposits RITERZFEWA 1,321 8,301
Government grants B8 1,227 1,602
Interest income from loan receivables JE W E T B A 631 774
Interest income from amount due from an associate W —fElEE & A B R
FBHA 3,454 539
Others Hi 1,179 1,847
7812 13,063
Il.  OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET . HtEREEFE
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFT AEETF T
Foreign exchange gain/(loss) B 5 e/ (B518) 222 (20,336)
Fair value gain on contingent consideration receivables FEUS S ARB R A B 10,990 =
Net gain arising on financial assets at FVTPL BATHEGABRZ
TREE MR 6,222 3,391
Net gain arising on bank financial products RITEVER 2 WEFE 1,734 3283
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME - BERRENER (553) (357)
Others HAh (13) (59)
18,602 (14,078)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

AN BRERMET @

For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HEWIBENA3IALEFE

12.  FINANCE COSTS 2. BEKA
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TFT AREFT
Interest on other borrowings H AR 2 5,220 -
13. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 13. WEHBATE

For the year ended 3| December 2018

@)

Acquisition of Beijing Baiziwan HarMoniCare Hospital (the “Beijing
Baiziwan’)

On 31 March 2018, the Group acquired 51% of equity interests of Beijing
Baiziwan for cash consideration of RMB12,043,000. This acquisition has
been accounted for using the purchase method. Beijing Baiziwan is engaged
in the provision of obstetrics and gynecology specialty hospital services. It
was acquired so as to continue the expansion of the Group's obstetrics and

gynecology specialty hospital services.

Acquisition-related costs amounting to RMB878,000 have been excluded
from the consideration transferred and have been recognised as an expense
within the “administrative expenses” line item in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

BZE2018FE 1283 HLEEE

@
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R2018F3A318  AEBEUR
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WEEAR - ERBFERER
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EREBTRASENGESZH
B R o

EEERECHREERREKKR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

HmEMBERRMET @

For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HEWIBFENA3NALEFE

3. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Continued)
@)

Baiziwan’) (Continued)

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Beijing Baiziwan

acquired as at its date of acquisition is as follows:

Acquisition of Beijing Baiziwan HarMoniCare Hospital (the “Beijing

WEB S A =] ()

BZ20I18F12A3IALFE (F)

() KEILREFEFZEE (1R
BE7E]) (&)
RIERE - B RE FE
AHNEERBBEZ ATERT

3.

PR
RMB'000
ARBTT
Net assets acquired: BIKEEEEFE -
Property, plant and equipment ER T 19,502
Other intangible assets Hih\m & E 64,800
Rental deposits Heke 3,049
Inventories FE 2,129
Trade receivables g HREWGIE 939
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables AR e RE M EKKRIE 13,483
Cash and cash equivalents RekHAeEED 4,280
Trade payables B HRENRIE (5,402)
Other payables H it fEf50IR (203,453)
Deferred tax liabilities BLERBERE (16329)
Total identifiable net liabiliies at fair value BAFEAEANE ERFE (117,002)
Non-controlling interests IR 57,331
Goodwil HE 71714
Cash consideration transferred EEEHERE 12,043

The cash consideration of RMB12,043,000 was paid in 2017.

Net cash inflow on acquisition for the year ended 3| December 2018:

HERE AR 12,043,000LE R
2017F 1 o

EHZE2018F 12 A3 BIEEE W
BEmAFaE

RIMB'000
AEETT

Cash and cash equivalents acquired

BUWEIE S MRS EEY 4280
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

e BBRME @

3. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Continued)

@)

()

Acquisition of Beijing Baiziwan HarMoniCare Hospital (the “Beijing
Baiziwan”) (Continued)

Beijing Baiziwan contributed approximately RMB48,647,000 and
RMB67,399,000 to the Group's revenue and loss for the year respectively
for the period between the date of acquisition and the end of the reporting

period.

If the acquisition had been completed on | January 2018, total Group
revenue for the year would have been RMBI,075,432,000, and loss for
the year would have been RMB819,087,000. The proforma information
is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of the
revenue and results of operations of the Group that actually would have
been achieved had the acquisition been completed on | January 2018, nor is

intended to be a projection of future results.

Acquisition of Hibaby Healthcare Co., Ltd. (“Hibaby’)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group owned 49.47% of equity interest of
Hibaby and recognised as associate which the Group has significant influence.
On 8 November 2018, the Group acquired 48.53% of equity interests of
Hibaby for cash consideration of approximately RMB30,242,000. The Group
increased the shareholding of Hibaby to 98% upon the completion of the
acquisition. This acquisition has been accounted for using the step acquisition
method. Hibaby is engaged in the provision of assisted matemity consultant
management consulting. It was acquired so as to continue the expansion of

the Group's obstetrics and gynecology specialty hospital services.

For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HEWIBENA3IALEFE

13. WEHBLE (&)
BZE20I18F 12831 HIEEE (F)

@)

®)
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WELEREFENZEER (1R
BE7E]) (&)
LtRBFELAEEERERS
EREBRIEBEF AR RE
B RIH B AR 48,647,0007C &
AR ¥67399,0007T

U B 20184 1 A1 HFERK - Al
FEENFARGEERAAR
#1,075,432,0007C & F B 1B
A ARGI9,087,0007 © i%iEE
BRHMEMFIA - R0 R MU RS
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FTERR SRS c W RIS EEE -
T EERIREE 2 TRH -

WBAEREEERRA A
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R2017F 128318 A& E#
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8o R20I18F 11 A8H ' AEE
MBREREBLARE30242,0007T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BHRRME @

For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HEWIBFENA3NALEFE

13.  ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 13. WEEHEAR (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Continued) BZ20I18FE 12831 HILLEEE (8)
(b)  Acquisition of Hibaby Healthcare Co., Ltd. (“Hibaby’) (Continued) b) WEHEBRESEERAT
(TSR ]) (&)
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Hibaby acquired as at RUBE A - PRy B IS ar
its date of acquisition is as follows: RIEERAEBY ATENTHR
T~
RMB'000
AREFT
Net assets acquired: BEEEEFE -
Property, plant and equipment ERN NG 83525
Other non-current assets HipIEmENEE 5,000
Inventories & 2,457
Trade receivables B HRIKRIE 24
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables AR Re REMERRE 49,711
Cash and bank balances R RIBITHEE 4,294
Trade payables B HRENRIE (4,469)
Other payables and accruals Hip T IE R B (8,947)
Amount due to the parent company e R RIFIR (772293)
Other borrowings HAfE R (22,700)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BATEEZAIRAIEEARE 31,602
Fair value of consideration given for controlling interests FER R (48.53%) ENRE 2 ATE
(48.53%) 30,242
Fair value of previously-held interest (49.47%) BERERR947%) 2 A FE 19,016
Non-controlling interests JErERR RS 769
Sub-total INEE 50,027
Less: fair value of net assets of acquiree B BB EEFEC ATE (31,602)
Goodwill Bk 18,425

The cash consideration of approximately RMB30,242,000 had yet been
settled up to the date of the report and recorded in other payables and
accruals.

Net cash inflow on acquisition for the year ended 31 December 2018:

HEAREHE BERELHA
R#30242,000 LM AREE - RE
o FEART B M B AT B PR AR o

EHZE2018F 12 A3 BILEEWE
BemAFE

RMB'000
ARETT

Cash and cash equivalents acquired

BWBERe RAEEEY

4294
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

AN BRERMET @

3. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Continued)
(b)  Acquisition of Hibaby Healthcare Co., Ltd. (“Hibaby’) (Continued)

Hibaby contributed approximately RMB5,757,000 and RMB 17,258,000

to the Group’s revenue and loss for the year respectively for the period

between the date of acquisition and the end of the reporting period.

If the acquisition had been completed on | January 2018, total Group

revenue for the year would have been RMBI,037,049,000, and loss for
the year would have been RMB826,801,000. The proforma information

is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of the

revenue and results of operations of the Group that actually would have

been achieved had the acquisition been completed on | January 2018, nor is

intended to be a projection of future results.

4. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HEWIBENA3IALEFE

13. WEHBLE (&)
BZE20I18F 12831 HIEEE (F)

()

WD REREEEFRA A
([HI2#)) (&)
SERMEASERKERRER
SHRIEHEF AR R REES
K AARES757,000L R AR
#17,258,0007C °

iU BER 20184 | A1 B7EAk » Al
AEENFARGEERAAR
#1,037,049,0007C & F A BB
BARES26,801,0007T ° ZEZE
BRHEMER - R RG0S
ER20I18FI AIBREK - A%E
FTERR SRS c W RIS EEE -
MBHERRER 2 TR

14. Fr8HiBxX

2018 2017
20184 20176
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AEET T

The PRC Enterprise Income Tax B E SR

Current tax in the PRC B BN EAT IR 13,013 26924

Under provision in prior years BEFEEBIR = 242

13,013 27,166

Deferred tax (note 36) BIERIA (FiEE36) 22,845 (22,657)
Income tax expense PSR 35,858 4,509

The Company is a tax exempted company incorporated in the Cayman lslands.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the Group did not have

assessable profit subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax during the current year (2017:

Nil).

ARRARHEHEEMALNEHRR
AL YNCTI

HRAEBRANEE Y BERNE BT
SEROERHAE - BT EAEEEF
BRRE (20174 : &) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CoNTINUED)

HmEMBERRMET @

For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HEWIBFENA3NALEFE

4.  INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Under the EIT Law and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law in the PRC, the
statutory EIT rate in the PRC is 25% (2017: 25%). In accordance with the approval
from the local taxation bureau in the PRC, certain PRC subsidiaries of the Group

were entitled to a preferential income tax rate of 15% for the years ended 3|

December 2018 and 2017.

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and (loss)/profit before tax is

as follows:

14. FrSBiMx< (&)
BREFECERESTERCEMREDE
BiRB - PEEEEREMEHHE
£25% (20174 : 25%)  RERE T
HERRE - B E2018F R2017F12A
3IHEFEAREERSTEMERARZ
B IS%HBEMEHHE o

FIEBR RERBA (B1R),/ 7B
HERINT AR

2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFT AEEFT
(Loss)/profit before tax BREGAT (E518)/ FIHE (749,353) 33,947
Tax at the applicable EIT rate of 25% RERTEMEH
M EIS%tE 2 HIE (187,338) 8,487
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax TR A BT E
purpose 121,102 8,020
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised SRR R B 1B A
BBTE 53,128 7353
Utilisation of tax loss previously not recognised B A 5L AT AR R A
MIAEE (1,395) (3,076)
Tax effect of the preferential income tax rate BEAEHRMENTIETE (1,321) (2,822)
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences  ARIEFR AT HIR E B 258 AY
not recognised MG E - 2,060
Utilisation of deductible temporary difference B) A e AT AR R Y
previously not recognised AR ERERE - (587)
Tax losses and deductible temporary difference  5CATTERR R B B HFHIEEE &
previously recognised and reversed AT R =R 51,682 =
Under provision in respect of prior years BEFEEETR - 242
Others (note) H A (BtsE) - (15,168)
Income tax expense TSR 2 35,858 4509

Note:

Others is an amount of RMBI5,168,000 tax effect in relation to unused tax losses and

deductible temporary differences from Heilongjiang HarMoniCare Hospital. In 2017,

Heilongjiang HarMoniCare Hospital generated taxable profits and the management

reassessed whether sufficient future taxable profits and taxable temporary differences will be

available.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

AN BRERMET @

For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HEWIBENA3IALEFE

Fr(BR),FHE
AEENFER (BR)/ FBENR,

5. (LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 5.

The Group's (loss)/profit for the year is stated after charging/(crediting) the

following:

(FEA) AT SR ZE

2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFT AEETFT
Cost of inventories recognised as expense R ARAXHAFENAR 168,699 140,351
Auditor's remuneration ZEE & 2,230 2610
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BERREBTE 70,605 51,200
Amortisation of other intangible assets Himy B g [1,758 7,454
Amortisation of land use right o 35 AR 2,443 1,019
Total depreciation and amortisation WEN#HER 84,806 59,673
Impairment losses on various assets EHEENREER
Property, plant and equipment ERN BT 107,189 -
Goodwil HE 189,978 -
Other intangible assets Hipmp & E 135,199 =
Amounts due from related parties FEL FaEsE 75 5R0B 1,280 -
Trade receivables g HEWGIE 2,015 2476
Loan receivables EE R 6,500 -
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables R Re REMERRE 116,465 =
558,626 2476
Operating lease rentals in respect of rental premises 1SV EENL2HER S 139,915 78,46
Directors’ emoluments (note 16) BEHM (M=t 16) 2,017 348
Other staff costs Hh{E &R
Salaries, bonus and allowances & e R 409,319 312,772
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RRRAET BT 42,993 31,762
Reversal of share-based payments BEIARR D BERER - (3,165)
452,312 341,369
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

HmEMBERRMET @

For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HEWIBFENA3NALEFE

6. DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS 6. BEERANESHATTMH

The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31 December 2018 is set HRESHZ0I8F AN ALEFELH
out below: R LN
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits scheme Share-based
inkind  contributions payment Total
e RER EBIRER RGO AER
BRI ST EIfR :OANEA wst
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AREFT ARETT ARETFT

Executive Directors HITEE

Mr. Lin Yuming MEREE 576 9 - 585
Mr. Zhao Xingli ks 447 12 - 459
Mr. Fang Zhifeng HEBREE 366 7 - 373
Non-Executive Directors HHITEE

Mr. Lin Yuguo MEBLESE - - - -
Mr. Qiu Jianwei EELE = = = =
Mr. Xu Jun RESLE - = = —
Independent Non-executive Directors 7 BT TEE

Mr. Kong Aiguo LEBELSE 200 - - 200
Ms. Fang Lan R 200 - - 200
Mr. Cai Jiangnan BETR%E 200 - - 200
Total 85t 1,989 28 - 2,017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

[6.  DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

e BBRME @

For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HE018F 2R3 BLLEE

l6. EERBNURSHALHM (E)

The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31 December 2017 is set BEEHENI7TENANALEEZE
out below: R LN
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits scheme Share-based
in kind contributions payment Total
e REK RIGEN ARG RER
EYHa AT BB GOEREA #gst
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTT AREFT AREFT ARETT
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Lin Yuming MEREE 512 7 = 519
Mr. Zhao Xingli ks 387 12 (682) (283)
Mr. Fang Zhifeng HEBREE 362 I (861) (488)
Non-Executive Directors HHITEE
Mr. Lin Yuguo MEBEE - - - -
Mr. Qiu Jianwei BEELE - - — =
Mr. Xu Jun BELE = = = =
Independent Non-executive Directors 7 BT TEE
Mr. Kong Aiguo LEBELE 200 - - 200
Ms. Fang Lan ARzt 200 - - 200
Mr. Cai Jiangnan BETR%E 200 = = 200
Total ot 1,86 30 (1,543) 348
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

HmEMBERRMET @

For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HEWIBFENA3NALEFE

16.  DIRECTORS  AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 6. EBRANESHALHMN (F)
Five highest paid individuals ANEEHALT
The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year not included (2017: AEERFAZEMNESHEALTTE
one) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. BEHMRMERN EXR2IN2HMNES
The emoluments of the five (2017: remaining four) individuals are set out below: (2017%F + —f1) » AL (2017 - T

Pfz) A2 FmEFImT

2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARHFT AREFT
Salaries and allowance a2 3,867 2,048
Performance related bonuses FIFHMATEA - 222
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIKIEFIETEI R 16 42
3,883 2,312

The emoluments fell within the following band: FHNFATEHE :

Number of individuals

N |

2018 2017

2018%F 20174

Below HK$ 1,000,000 1,000,000/ 7T A T 4 4

HK$ 1,000,000 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,00078 72 | 50000078 7T | -

5 4
During the years ended 3| December 2018 and 2017, no directors waived or BE20I18FEN2017F 12831 BILEF
agreed to waive any emoluments, and no emoluments were paid by the Group to B HEEEREIRAERELMH
the directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon B AEEVEAEEIAMRSHA
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. TXAHERBE (A IAR S BRI

A 00 SERY SRR E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

AN BRERMET @

For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HEWIBENA3IALEFE

7. DIVIDENDS 7. BRE
2018 2017
2018%F 2017F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥Fr AEETT
Dividends recognised as distributions FRERRDIEERE
during the year 2017 Final — Nil 017FRHPKRE —F
(2016: RMB5.0 cents per share) (2016F : BIRAR®S09) = 37,921
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Board doesnt recommend any REEHRE - BE2018F12A31H
payment of a final dividend for the year ended 3| December 2018. LFE B2 TERRNERRER
E\ o
18. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 18. BR(&8E) BF
Basic(loss)/earnings per share SREX (FB) 27

The calculation of basic (loss)/earings per share attributable to owners of the
Company is based on the loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company
of approximately RMB725,299,000 (2017: profit for the year attributable to owners
of the Company of approximately RMB27,394,000) and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 738,776,000 (2017: 758,402,000) in issue during the

year.

Diluted loss per share

There is no dilution factor for the year ended 31 December 2018. The effects of all
potential ordinary shares are anti-dilutive for the year ended 31 December 2017.
The computation of diluted earings per share in 2017 is same with basic eamings

per share.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of basic and
diluted earnings per share has been adjusted with taking into account the shares
purchased and held by the trustee of Company's Restricted Share Incentive Scheme
for the year ended 3| December 2018 and 2017.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

HmEMBERRMET @

For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HEWIBFENA3NALEFE

9. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

19. ¥% - BERRE

Leasehold land Leasehold Medical Motor Furniture  Construction
and buildings  improvements equipments vehicles and fixtures in progress Total
BELIHR BENE
£ 1 AR fE  GERKE ERIR a3t
RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
AREFE  AREFL  AREFL  AREFL  AREFT  AREFT  AREFR
COST BA
At | January 2017 UPERLE 37234 26368 170813 11,166 515% 3183 500320
Addtons AE - 15750 0,31 1672 3573 4860 83986
Transfer 23 = 7904 = = = (7904) =
Acquired on acquiston of asubsidiry BB R AREA - 884 614I 785 543 6916 15269
Disposdls e - = (2049) (467) (3501) = (6017)
At 31 December 2017 and | January 2018 K207 12431 BR
WISEIAIA 3723 250926 195036 13,15 52,151 45,055 593558
Addtions AE 2915 26869 14723 1189 549 99| 14149
Transfer ZE - 2496) - - - (2496)) -
Acquired on acquistion of subsidiaries ~ WEERTB A FIBSEE A
(note 13) (Bsk13) - 36434 9,085 3 7181 49944 103027
Disposals e - - (4314 (1277) (1.580) - @171
At 31 December 2018 R0I8E12A318 40,149 3,91 214530 13450 63245 16299 833563
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND  RHE R B
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES
At | January 2017 R0I7E1A1A 9313 101456 8609 9507 40666 - 247058
Charge for the year Rz 1697 29518 1586] 94] 3083 - 51,200
Eiminated on disposals HERESH - - (19%) (#)) (3052) - (5484)
At 31 December 2017 and | January 2018 R2017£ 12831 B R
WISEIAIA 11010 130974 %9967 10026 40797 - 192774
Charge for the year Rz N 41337 21,606 66 4578 - 70605
Eiminated on disposdls it ER - - (3669) (114) (13%) - (6189)
Impaiment osses AEERE 12075 50264 28349 74l 5213 10547 107,189
At 31 December 2018 08§ 12A318 25,507 M5T5 144253 10305 9193 10547 464,380
CARRYING AMOUNTS RE
At 31 December 2018 R0I8E 128318 14642 116616 68277 3145 14052 152451 39,183
At 31 December 2017 M0I7E1A3I18 2624 119952 95,09 3130 11,354 45,055 300784
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9. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

During the year ended 3| December 2018, the Group carried out review of
the recoverable amount of its property, plant and equipment as a result of the
deterioration of the markets of the Group's business. These assets are used in the
Group's specialised hospital services segment. The reviews led to the recognition
of an impairment losses of approximately RMB107,189,000 (2017: nil) have been
recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2018. The recoverable
amount of the relevant assets of RMB369,183,000 has been determined on the
basis of their value in use using discounted cashflow method (level 3 fair value

measurements). The discount rate used was |8 per cent.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)
mEBMBEBRRMTE @

For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HEWIBENA3IALEFE

19. ¥% - BERRKRE (&)

BZE2018F12A3BIEE  ANK
SEEFMERL  AEEHEDE -
BEREFENTKE S EETRGT ©
ZEEERARASENER B RS
D BRABHBRAMEBEROAR
#107,189,0007T (20174 : ) BERE
Z0I18F12A3IBIEFECBEARE
R MHAESENTKREBSERARKE
369,183,000 LREAUBRRERE)

(B=RATENE) NEREEEEE

T o FRMBREA 8% -

20. LAND USE RIGHT 20. TiufERARE
RMB’000
AREFT
COST 2N
At | January 2017 2017F 1 A1 B -
Acquired on acquisition of a subsidiary WEE — T B 2 R A 120,175
At 31 December 2017, | January 2018 and 31 December 20176124318 ~ 2018F |1 A 1B K
2018 20185 12 A3 H 120,175
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION BT
At | January 2017 F2017F 1 A 1R -
Charge for the year FRFEH 1019
At 31 December 2017 and | January 2018 R2017€12A31BR20I18F 1 A 1R 1,019
Charge for the year FRLH 2,443
At 3| December 2018 720184 12 H31 H 3,462
CARRYING AMOUNT REE
At 3| December 2018 720184 12 31 H 116,713
At 3| December 2017 2017812 A31 B 119,156

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

- 2018 8 157



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

HmEMBERRMET @

For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HEWIBFENA3NALEFE

21. GOODWILL 21, B8
RMB’000
ARETFT
COST B
At | January 2017 R2017F1 A 1R 49,302
Avrising on acquisition of a subsidiary Rk —Rf B A RIREE 72981
At 31 December 2017 and | January 2018 2017812 A31 B R2018F 1 AIH 122,283
Avrising on acquisition of subsidiaries (note |3) RUEENTE A mlRrE A (MfEE13) 90,139
At 31 December 2018 72018512 A31 B 212,422
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT LOSSES 2R RERE
At | January 2017, 31 December 2017 and | January 2018 7201761 A1 H 2017124318 K&
2018F 1 A1 H =
Impairment losses HEEE 189,978
At 31 December 2018 720185 12 A31 B 189,978
CARRYING AMOUNT IREE
At 3| December 2018 2018%F 12 A31 B 22,444
At 3| December 2017 2017% 1231 H 122,283
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

e BBRME @

For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HEWIBENA3IALEFE

21. GOODWILL (Continued) 21. &8 ()
Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at acquisition, to the REBEHTMERESRIER S
cash generating units (‘CGUs") that are expected to benefit from that business FHBRISRNZEBE O REESE
combination. The carrying amount of goodwill had been allocated to specialised B ([ReE+sEM]) - BEREED
hospital services segment and had been allocated to two individual CGU (2017: DEEEZRBERRBEHE - WHET LA
two) as follows: TREMERNREEEER (2017F - M
&) :

2018 2017

20184 2017

RMB’000 RMB'000

ABMFE  ARKFE

Heilongjiang HarMoniCare Hospital (‘\CGU A")  BREIMEERR ([IREEELBRA]) - 49,302

Nantong Hemeijia Hospital (‘\CGU B") MENMERBR ([ReEEBMB]) 4,019 72,981

Beijing Baiziwan (‘CGU C”) ItRBFE(ReEELBRC]) = -

Hibaby (‘CGU D") SR (ReELEMD]) 18,425 —

22,444 122,283

CGU A - Heilongjiang HarMoniCare Hospital

The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined based on a value in use
calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a 5-year period, and discount rate of 18% (2017:
13.5%). CGU A's cash flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using a
steady 3% growth rate. This growth rate is based on the forecast inflation rate of
China, considering that the growth rate will not exceed the forecast inflation rate
of the country. Other key assumptions for the value in use calculations relate to
the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted sales and gross
margin, such estimation is based on the unit's past performance and management’s

expectations for the market development.

At 31 December 2017, Management believes that any reasonably possible change
in any of the above assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying amount of

CGU A to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of CGU A.
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21.

160

GOODWILL (Continued)
CGU A — Heilongjiang HarMoniCare Hospital (Continued)

At 31 December 2018, before impairment testing, goodwill of approximately
RMB49,302,000 were allocated to CGU A. Due to changes in market condition,
the goodwill allocated to CGU A has therefore been reduced to nil through
recognition of an impairment loss against goodwill of approximately RMB49,302,000
during the year.

CGU B — Nantong Hemeijia Hospital

The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined based on a value in use
calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a 8-year period, and discount rate of 18 %
(2017: 13.5%). CGU B's cash flows beyond the 8-year period are extrapolated
using a steady 3% growth rate. This growth rate is based on the forecast inflation
rate of China, considering that the growth rate will not exceed the forecast inflation
rate of the country. Other key assumptions for the value in use calculations relate
to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted sales and gross
margin, such estimation is based on the unit's past performance and management’s

expectations for the market development.

At 31 December 2017, Management believes that any reasonably possible change
in any of the above assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying amount of

CGU B to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of CGU B.

At 31 December 2018, before impairment testing, goodwill of approximately
RMB72,981,000 were allocated to CGU B. Due to changes in market condition,
the goodwill allocated to CGU B has therefore been reduced to its recoverable
amount of RMB4,019,000 through recognition of an impairment loss against

goodwill of approximately RMB68,962,000 during the year.
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AR®49302,000 TR BRI TNLE
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REBRE/BENARE49302,0007T
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21.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

GOODWILL (Continued)
CGU C - Beijing Baiziwan

The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined based on a value in
use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a 5-year period, and discount rate
of 18%. CGU C's cash flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using a
steady 3% growth rate. This growth rate is based on the forecast inflation rate of
China, considering that the growth rate will not exceed the forecast inflation rate
of the country. Other key assumptions for the value in use calculations relate to
the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted sales and gross
margin, such estimation is based on the unit's past performance and management's

expectations for the market development.

At 31 December 2018, before impairment testing, goodwill of approximately
RMB71,714,000 were allocated to CGU C. Due to changes in market condition,
the goodwill allocated to CGU C has therefore been been reduced to nil through
recognition of an impairment loss against goodwill of approximately RMB71,714,000

during the year.

CGU D - Hibaby

The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined based on a value in
use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a 5-year period, and discount rate
of 18%. CGU D's cash flows beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using a
steady 3% growth rate. This growth rate is based on the forecast inflation rate of
China, considering that the growth rate will not exceed the forecast inflation rate
of the country. Other key assumptions for the value in use calculations relate to
the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted sales and gross
margin, such estimation is based on the unit's past performance and management's

expectations for the market development.

At 3| December 2018, Management believes that any reasonably possible change
in any of the above assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying amount of

CGU D to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of CGU D.

21.
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BmE (&)
REELXEUC-tREFE
ZEM AR &R EE B EER
HET - ZrEERREEEEBIENR
ESFHNMBEENR S IRER KRB
BRI18%IEL - REELEMCHER
E%i%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ@%%iﬁﬁﬂ%
B ZERERDEARTENERBR
KERRZERETSBBTEAEA
BIRE - StEERABENELEIERR
BREERA/ R (REEEH
ERERN) ARG DERZELN
BERBNEEBETSEROARIE
H oo

R20I18F 128318 - WIRERIFAT - £
ARM71,714000 R B BRI E
BENREREELEMNC HEESR
SELABNCHEERLBRNE AR
REBREBEBRAOARET1,714,0007T

MmHLEE o

REeELEMD-HAS
ZEM AR E SRR EE R EER
BET - it EERREEEEIER
ESFHMMBEENR R IR KA
BE 8% - REELEMDHOEE
EZS@H\HE}Uﬁi7)|LE@ﬁH%EiE%3%
8 ZERER AR ENERBER
KERRZEREIGBBTENEAR
BIRE - FAEERAEENEMERRR
ﬁ&ﬁimh)\/muﬁﬁu‘l‘ BIETRE
EREMN) - BRAMGT HERZEMLD
BERRLEEBHM S EROELIE
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MERENER SRR e E BTG BUL
ReEXEUDNA AREERRERS
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22.  OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 2. HthBIEE
Medical
licenses
Software Trademark (note) Total
BRIAR
B 1 (BH=E) #st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F7 ARETT AREFr AER®F7r
CoST B A
At | January 2017 R2017F 1 AI1H 11,278 33,200 61,900 106,378
Additions NE 974 = = 974
Acquired on acquisition of P —BRTE A Al
a subsidiary BA 267 = 46,600 46,867
At 31 December 2017 P017F 124318 K
and | January 2018 2018F 1 A1H 12,519 33,200 108,500 154,219
Additions WE 2513 = = 2513
Acquired on acquisition of RIS — KT B A Rk
a subsidiary (note 13) A (BIEE13) - - 64,800 64,800
At 31 December 2018 2018 12 A31 B 15,032 33,2200 173,300 221,532
ACCUMULATED RitBERAESR
AMORTISATION AND
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES
At | January 2017 R2017F1A 1B 4499 6,086 - 10,585
Charge for the year FRXIH 882 3320 3252 7454
At 3| December 2017 R20I17F 12831 B K
and | January 2018 2018F 1 A1H 5,381 9,406 3,252 18,039
Charge for the year FAXH 2,154 3320 6,284 11,758
Impairment losses R EEE 2,323 20474 112,402 135,199
At 31 December 2018 2018 12831 9,858 33,2200 121,938 164,996
CARRYING AMOUNTS ARE{E
At 31 December 2018 720184 12A31 B 5,174 — 51,362 56,536
At 31 December 2017 20174 12A31 B 7,138 23,794 105,248 136,180
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22.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Note:

At 31 December 2017, the amount of medical license identified and derived from the
acquisition of Heilongjiang HarMoniCare Hospital during the year ended 3| December 2016
and Nantong Hemeijia Hospital during the year ended 31 December 2017 of approximately
RMB6 1,900,000 and RMB46,600,000 respectively.

At 31 December 2018, before the impairment and amortisation, the amount of medical
license identified and derived from the acquisition of Beijing Baiziwan, Heilongjiang
HarMoniCare Hospital and Nantong Hemeijia Hospital of approximately RMB64,800,000,
RMB6 1,900,000 and RMB46,600,000 respectively.

Management considered that the above other intangible assets have finite useful lives. Such
other intangible assets are accordingly amortised on a straight-line basis over the following

periods:

Software

EIGES
Trademark
Gl

Medical licenses

EEHR

The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amount of its other intangible assets in
2018 as a result of the deterioration of the markets of the Group's business. These assets are
used in the Group's specialised hospital services segment. The review led to the recognition
of an impairment loss of RMB 135,199,000 for other intangible assets that have been
recognised in profit or loss. The recoverable amount of the relevant assets of RMB56,536,000
has been determined on the basis of their value in use using discounted cash flow method

(level 3 fair value measurements). The discount rate used was |8 per cent.

e BBRME @

For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HEWIBENA3IALEFE

22. HiEREE ()
Bt

R2017F 128318 - BE2016F 127831
BLEFEREBZE2017F12A3I BEFER
R R IAMEER R RMERE
immENEELREEIRNARARE
61,900,0007C J2 A R #6 46,600,000 7T °

M08 12A31 8 - WREREHER - R
RUELREFE  RRINEERKER
MERBEREMIEHNBEAREESIFINA
AR#64,800,0007T « AR 61,900,0007T &
AR #46,600,0007T ©

EEERRLAEMEREEREBRAE
REY - 2FHEMETEERULN T HHE

B -
5—10 years

SZEI0F

10 years

105

25 years

255

20185 - ARAEEEB TSR - A5E
HHEMBEREENTTRESEETR
DEEERMAEBNENERREH
B EEERLMER EEREBEARYE
135,199,0007T B R B2 AR o (BRI EER
AT 5 58 A A R 56,536,000 0IZ{E AR
BREREX(FZROTETE) HERE
BB - FAMBIREA18% -
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For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HEWIBFENA3NALEFE

23. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 23 RBEQTZE
2018 2017
2018%F 201746
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AEEFT
Cost of investments in associates — unlisted X EBEE A B Z KA - K LT 37,921 32,460
Share of post-acquisition losses and other D EUHER BB &
comprehensive income Hip2ElaE (11,440) (5,118)
26,481 27,342
Less: Disposal of an associate (note |3) B HERE AR (FHEEI3)
— Cost of investments in associates — REBERE 2R
— unlisted — R (24,735) =
— Share of post-acquisition losses and — DR EERER R
other comprehensive income HAh 2 E U E 5719 -
7,465 27,342
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23.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

AN BRERMET @

For the Year ended 31 December 2018

Details of each of the Group's associates at the end of the reporting period are as

follow:

Country of
incorporation/

registration and

BEWIBENA3IBLEFE

AR E IR H B

principal place Proportion of ownership  Proportion of voting rights Nature of
Name of the entity of business interest held by the Group held by the Group business
ML ERER FEEMEEZ FEERERLZ
BEEE RERERBH PRl RERLA RBME
2018 2017 2018 2017
20185 2017F 20185 017F
Hibaby The PRC N/A 49.47% N/A 49.47% Assisted maternity
consultant management
consulting
Y i TER TEA PEBREEAA
Harmonicare International Hong Kong 34% 30% 34% 30% IVF International
Medical Group Limited referral platform
FHREREREEERAA B AERRERED Yo
Selford Medical Technology The PRC 20% 20% 20% 20% Technical extension
(Beijing) Co, Ltd. service provision of
enterprise [T products
and services
ERREENMR (LX) BRAF SE REORTERKREH
BT RS
Beijing DeepHealthcare The PRC 30% 30% 30% 30% IVF Intemnational
Management and Consultation referral platform
Co, Ltd
ITREREREEXAGRAR HE AEERERED Yo
Shenzhen DeepHealthcare The PRC 40% 40% 40% 40% IVF International
Overseas Medical Service referral platform
Co, Ltd.
AEEENEEREERAR FE AEEREREY TR
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For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HEWIBFENA3NALEFE

23.  INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 23 REERRzRER (&)
On 8 November 2018, the Group acquired 48.53% of equity interests of Hibaby R20185F 11 A8E  AREURERE
for cash consideration of RMB30,252,500. The Group obtained control by AE#30,252,500 T4 i 5 B #848.53%
increased the shareholding of Hibaby to 98%. Details of the acquisition are set out BRI - AEBRBEEE R B REE
in note 13. E9%EFIEHIE - WREFHBEEN IR
13
The following table shows, in aggregate, the Group's share of the amounts of all TRIAERT R A EEE A ERE
individually immaterial associates that are accounted for using the equity method. AR EERZEEREE R RIMA S
B o
2018 2017
20185 2017F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFT AEETT
The Group's share of loss from continuing NS B EGFF4E
operations RERBER (4,470) (1,537)
The Group's share of other comprehensive AN EIE(F E b2 EULA
income 138 42
The Group's share of total comprehensive AEBEEZEERESE
loss (4,332) (1,495)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Groups ~ NEEEIRZEHE A A
interests in these associates ¥R 2 AETEREE 7,465 6,335

24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL

24, BATEFTAERCZERMEE

2018 2017

2018%F 201746

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARE T ARETT

Loan to Wuxi HarMoniCare Hospital BT EHNEER 28X 165,845 99,723
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (Continued)

In October 2016, the Group entered into a cooperation agreement and a
supplementary agreement (the “Agreements”) with the equity owners of Wuxi
HarMoniCare Hospital. According to the Agreements, the Group agreed to lend
an aggregate amount of RMB64,000,000 to Wuxi HarMoniCare Hospital in three
batches, subject to the fulfilment of certain criteria stated therein, including that
Wuxi HarMonicare Hospital will obtain the medical license before 30 June 2019.
The loan is secured by the 80% equity interest of Wuxi HarMoniCare Hospital.
Under the Agreements, the Group has the right to exercise one of the three
options: (1) to request for the loan repayment with interest; (2) to convert the loan
into the equity interest of Wuxi HarMoniCare Hospital based on the audited result;
or (3) to acquire the 80% equity interest of Wuxi HarMoniCare Hospital from its

equity owners based on the actual capital fully paid up by the equity owners.

In October 2016, pursuant to the Agreements, the Group entered into a loan
agreement (the “Loan Agreements ") with Wuxi HarMoniCare Hospital. Up to
31 December 2016, the Group had advanced the first two batches of loan with
an aggregate amount of RMB48,000,000 to Wuxi HarMoniCare Hospital. The loan
bears prevailing bank borrowing interest rate at 4.75% per annum, with maturity
date on 30 June 2019.

In April 2017, the Group entered into a supplementary agreement (“the
Supplementary Agreement |") modified the payment clause of the Loan
Agreement |, which stipulates that the Group would pay the remaining amount of
RMB16,000,000 to Wuxi HarMoniCare Hospital ten days after the supplementary

agreement was signed.

According to the Agreements signed in October 2016, the Group will provide a
loan to Wuxi HarMoniCare Hospital at 80% of investment amount that exceeds
RMB80,000,000. In June 2017, pursuant to the Agreements, the Group entered
into a new loan agreement ("‘the Loan Agreement II") with an aggregate amount of

RMB32,000,000 to Wuxi HarMoniCare Hospital.

24.
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For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HEWIBENA3IALEFE

BRAFEFABRZEREE ()
R2016F 108 AEEEEHNERE
b2 IRERE AGT L — D & fEE R —
7 ([ZEHE] - REZEH

RHEE B AR 64,0000007T + #
RRAMEMEE TIHRFEERE T A
1EE - BREEHNERRER2019F6
A0 B ARG BEHNR - ZEXE &G
FEE BT 2 80% R EMEE I - RIZZSF
ek - ARBERITE T ZIHRERE
MEF—F: (WVEXERFEHEE:
QRBEZERGETERAEHNE
Bl 2R Q) RREREAER
BROBRMBESREEHNERR 2
80% MR 1 o

R2016F 108 - RIEZFHR - A5E
REHMERR IV —HERRBE (B
RaEI]) c EE2016F 128318
AEBERESNEBRINEME
B3 5 A AKH48,000,0007T © 5
EREFRBITRITEERNE475%5
B 201966 30 EH -

R20175F48 - REBT L HTHZE
(MExRHRE )  HERHR X E
FETER  EPHAEAEEERNEE
MR BEE T AX M REBNE B IR
HEAIEREEA R 16,000,0007T ©

REBER2016FI0AEZENZE W
AEEBRESNEBRIZHIGRESE
(#BiB AR ¥80,000,0007T K E 5 ) 80%
MER - R2017F68 - BEZZEH
Z - AREFCHERGE ((EXikE
) - mEHNERRRERAEARE
32,000,0007T °
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For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HEWIBFENA3NALEFE

24.

168

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (Continued)

In January 2018, the Group entered into a supplementary agreement (the
“Supplementary Agreement II") modified that the Group will provide a loan
to Wuxi HarMoniCare Hospital at 96% of investment amount that exceeds
RMB160,000,000. The loan is revised to be secured by 96% equity interest of Wuxi
HarMoniCare Hospital. Under the Supplementary Agreement I, the Group has the
right to exercise one of the three options: (1) to request for the loan repayment
with interest; (2) to convert the loan into the equity interest of Wuxi HarMoniCare
Hospital based on the audited result; or (3) to acquire the 96% equity interest of
Wuxi HarMoniCare Hospital from its equity owners based on the actual capital

fully paid up by the equity owners.

In February 2018, pursuant to the Supplementary Agreements Il, the Group
entered into a new loan agreement (“the Loan Agreement IlI") with an aggregate
amount of RMB56,000,000 to Wuxi HarMoniCare Hospital. The loan bears
prevailing bank borrowing interest rate at 4.75% per annum, with maturity date on
6 February 2020.

In November 2018, pursuant to the Supplementary Agreements Il, the Group
entered into a new loan agreement (“the Loan Agreement IV") with an aggregate
amount of RMB30,000,000 to Wuxi HarMoniCare Hospital, in which approximately
RMB3,900,000 had been paid by the Group to Wuxi HarMoniCare Hospital.
The loan bears prevailing bank borrowing interest rate at 4.75% per annum, with

maturity date on 30 November 2020.

As at 31 December 2018, Wuxi HarMoniCare had not obtained the medical
license and had not commenced operation. The loan granted under the four loan
agreements and three supplementary agreements contain embedded derivatives

and is classified as a financial assets at FVTPL upon initial recognition.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)
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For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HEWIBENA3IALEFE

25. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLES EWSARKE
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥FT ARETFr
Profit guarantee — Non-current BARRE — IERB 4,087 -
Profit guarantee — Current S AREE — e 6,903 -
10,990 =

Profit guarantee represents the guarantee provided by the guarantors, in favour
of the Group, as a purchaser in respect of the acquisition of Nantong Hemeijia
Hospital (note |3), of which audited net profit of Nantong Hemeijia Hospital for
each of the years ended 31 December 2017, 2018, 2019 and 2020 shall not be
less than RMB18,000,000 respectively. In event of non-fulfillment of the Profit
Guarantee, the Guarantors shall compensate to the Group by 51% of the aggregate

amount of shortfall of the relevant guarantee period(s) in cash.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's management considered that Nantong
Hemeijia Hospital could achieve performance requirements in the next few
years, so the fair value of contingent consideration as at acquisition date and 3|

December 2017 were minimal.

As a result of the deterioration of the markets of the Group's specialised hospital
services segment and the decline of Nantong Hemeijia Hospital's financial
performance, the fair value of the contingent consideration receivables of
approximately RMB10,990,000 at 31 December 2018 is estimated based on the
valuation carried out by an independent professional valuer not connected with
the Group. In result, fair value change of contingent consideration receivables of
approximately RMB 10,990,000 had been recognised during the year ended 3|
December 2018. The fair value measurement of the contingent consideration

receivables is stated in note 7 of the consolidated financial statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

HmEMBERRMET @

For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HEWIBFENA3NALEFE

26. OTHER LONG-TERM ASSETS 26. HttRMEE
2018 2017
20185 2017F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AEEFT
Deposits of acquisitions of businesses ES s 37,600 44,643
Deposits of other borrowings HMERES 8,000 -
Prepayment of operating lease rentals AR EEERS 6,289 -
Advance for purchase of property, HEEYE - BE K&
plant and equipment 5912 37,346
57,801 81,989
At 26 May 2017, the Company entered into an agreement with SH.T Healthcare M201765H268 - RAREEEE
Group to acquire 36% equity interest of Shangrao S.H.T Healthcare Industry BESEURE  UNEHEARK
Investment Co,, Ltd. with a contribution of RMB37,600,000. By the end of 2017, the 37,600,000 7T 45 B - £2Th BE 08 = B {2
Company has paid RMB32,600,000 to S.H.T Healthcare Group and this transaction REEZEREER D AINI6BIIE - 1
has not been completed as changes in the registration are not accomplished and a 017FE - AARIEMEBEBEELE
key medical license has not been acquired. =T AREE32,600,0007C © R RKRTE
REEERFE  hWARBEIEERH
R MRIBRZWATHK °
27.  INVENTORIES 27. BH
2018 2017
20184 201746
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFIT AEEFT
Pharmaceuticals A 23,102 14,748
Medical devices and consumables BERE L BREREN 10,644 7,552
33,746 22,300
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

e BBRME @

For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HEWIBENA3IALEFE

28. LOAN RECEIVABLES ERER
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT
Interest-free loan receivables R EERER - 120,957
Fixed-rate loan receivables TFEEKER 6,500 10,000
Less: Impairment losses B OREEE (6,500) =
- 130,957

All of the loan receivables are unsecured credit borrowings and with maturity of
one year. As at 3| December 2018 and 2017, the fixed-rate loan receivables was 8%

per annum.

Before accepting any new borrower, the Group carries out research on the
creditability of the new borrower and assesses the potential customer's credit
quality and defines loan terms with borrower. The credit of the borrowers granted

with loans are reviewed once a year.

There were no loan receivables past due for the year ended 3| December 2017.
The Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual loan receivable
at the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amount. Accordingly, the directors of the Company
believe that there is no allowance or impairment required. For the year ended 3|
December 2018, the reviews led to the recognition of an impairment losses of

approximately RMB6,500,000 have been recognised in profit or loss.

FrERWEZRY EEIBFEAER
—FE|E - PB2018F K20175F 12831
H BUEREFETHELES% -

REMNEMFERAR - AEEEHE
HERAEE  HEEERFZIEEE
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BZE17F 12831 BILFE  #HER
BEIZ ERER - AEBERRERK
ZREERIEKRER 2 TRE S5 - %
FE(R ATt AT B £ BE 1R R SR E &S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

HmEMBERRMET @

For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HEWIBFENA3NALEFE

29. TRADE RECEIVABLES 29. BHERWFEIR
2018 2017
2018%F 2017F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T AEETT
Trade receivables B 5 RNE0E 58,279 48260
Less: allowance for doubtful debts o REREE (3,980) (1,965)
Trade receivables, net B HRYGIE - F8 54,299 46,295
The Group allows a credit period of approximately 60 days to 180 days (2017: 60 AEBERRBAREENER RS REKE
days to 180 days) for the specialised hospital services to the patients which are due BREERREEFIENEER KL
from medical and commercial insurance program, and O day to 90 days (2017: 0 BE0ZE 180K (2017F : 60E180K) °
days to 90 days) for the sale of pharmaceuticals and medical devices after issuing MiHEEmRBERENEERRFAE
invoice. BREH0EIOR (20175 : 0EI0K) °
The aging analysis of trade receivables, based on the invoice date, and net of BHRWIARERHH (HREE)
allowance, is as follows: ZERROITWT
2018 2017
2018%F 20176
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T ARETT
Within 90 days 90RA 21,095 42,255
91 to 180 days 9IZE 180K 3,218 635
181 daysto | year 18I REIF 1,445 2726
Over | year BB | F 18,541 679
54,299 46,295
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

AN BRERMET @

For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HE018F 2R3 BLLEE

29. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 29. EBZEWNIE (&)
Reconciliation of loss allowance for trade receivables: g H RN EREHE
2018 2017
20184 20176
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AEETT
At the beginning of year REA 1,965 783
Increase in loss allowance for the year FREEREILM 2,015 1224
Amounts written off EH TR - 42)
At the end of year RER 3,980 1,965
The Group applies the simplified approach under IFRS 9 to provide for expected AEE KA HREEREIHIEA
credit losses using the lifetime expected loss provision for all trade receivables. To TZEHETE - A R SRR
measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based A2 R HEREE R E AR
on shared credit risk characteristics and the invoice date aging. The expected credit R - AT ERMERER  BHE
losses also incorporate forward looking information. KFHEEREAZERRBRFHRER
RHRRETHAE - RREEEERNE
TERIEIEER -
Within 91 to 181 days Over
90 days 180 days to | year | year Total
0KA 9IEIBOX IBIXREIF EBIF At
At 31 December 2018 2018512431 A
Weighted average expected loss rate  JIIEFIITRHIE LXK 0% 0% 0.4% 17.5%
Receivable amount (RMB'000) e IESE (ARBTIT) 21,095 3218 11,494 22,472 58,279
Loss allowance (RMB'000) EERE (ARBTT) - - 49 3,931 3,980
Within 91 to 181 days Over
90 days 180 days to | year | year Total
OKRA IIZEIBOK IBIREIF  BBIF st
At 31 December 2017 2017124318
Weighted average expected loss rate A9 FEERIB R K 0% 0% 33.3% 47.0%
Receivable amount (RMB' 000) U FEEE (ARETT) 42,255 635 4,088 1282 48,260
Loss allowance (RMB'000) EERE (ARBTT) - - 1,362 603 1,965
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BHRRME @

For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HEWIBFENA3NALEFE

30. PREPAYMENT, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 30, MR RERHMERKIE
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBF T ARET T
Deposits paid for the proposed RENBEXBENEZES
acquisitions of businesses 15,000 44,000
Prepaid rental ERMEE 24,380 41,571
Prepayments to suppliers R HERN I 65,134 35,678
Deposits to suppliers NTrHEEzRe 24,865 8,177
Consideration receivable for B N R ERAE
interests of an associate 2,031 2,031
Interest receivable FEULRI B = 1313
Other receivables = A E O] 35411 1392
166,821 134,162
31.  BANK AND CASH BALANCES 3. SRITRREER

Bank balances carried interest at prevailing market rates which range from 0.01% to
0.53% per annum as at 31 December 2018 (2017: 0.01% to 1.30%).

As at 31 December 2018, the bank and cash balances of the Group denominated
in RMB amounted to RMB100,404,000 (2017: RMB169,931,000). Conversion
of RMB into foreign currencies subject to the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control

Regulations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

e BBRME @

For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HE018F 2R3 BLLEE

32.  TRADE PAYABLES 3. BEZENRE
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based on the invoice BIRNFERREARRERAHZ
date at the end of the reporting period: Sl Z BREAITIAT
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AEETT
Within 90 days 90RA 19,413 13342
91 to 180 days 91 £ 180K 2,674 924
181 days to | year 18I RE | F 8,301 811
Over | year i | F 2,668 943
33,056 16,020
33.  OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 33. HttEMNFRERESER
2018 2017
2018%F 201746
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARBFTT
Contract liabilities (note) BHAE () 124,490 -
Advances from patients TEUER K - 75,173
Staff cost payables FEfE B 43,719 31,522
Construction fee payables EREEER 41,051 4078
Accrued rental expenses ik ab 4,589 3,043
Accrued operating expenses JEGHEERX - 2,133
Other PRC tax payables Hb N ETIE 1,408 1,471
Deposit from suppliers HEmZe 4,779 1,073
Consideration payable for Yo R R R X (B
acquisition of non-controlling interest - 850
Consideration payable for Yk sl B SR KRR (B
acquisition of shares of Hibaby 30,242 -
Loan payable FEfRTE K - 500
Others Hit 11,209 8,700
261,487 128,543
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BHRRME @

For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HEWIBFENA3NALEFE

33.  OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (Continued) 33. HttENFUERETER (F&)
Note: Bfs -
As at 3| December 2018 As at | January 2018
R20185 12831 H R2018F 1 AIR
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFT NRETT
Contract liabilities ARG 124,490 75173
Transaction prices allocated to DEEEFRHARTHAEL
performance obligations unsatisfied BEEWEHR TIER
at end of year and expected to be R RSN HER
recognised as revenue in:
-2018 - 20185 - 75173
-2019 - 20195 124,490 -
124,490 75173

As at 3| December 2018
2018 12831 H

RMB’000
AR®FT
Revenue recognised in the year that was included in contract ~ FHIFT AR KB BN FE RN e
liabilities at beginning of year 75,173
Significant changes in contract liabilities during the year: FEANEENERED
Increase due to operations in the year AFEEEMEM 512,920
Transfer of contract liabilities to revenue BRESVBEE RS (454,575)
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34. PROVISION

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

AN BRERMET @

For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HE018F 2R3 BLLEE

34, BB

Provision for

Provision for medical dispute

onerous leases claims
(note i) (note ii) Total

BEMHEERE BRULRERE
(Bf&Ei) (&) met
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AR¥FT AREFTT
At | January 2017 K207 1 AR - 1,053 1,053
Provision B - 358 358
Payments (DES - 11 GI1)
As at 31 December 2017 2017812 A31 H - 900 900
Provision B 41337 3,097 44434
Payments (DES - (1,096) (1,096)
At 31 December 2018 720185 12431 H 41,337 2901 44238
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CoNTINUED)

MBHRRHME @

For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HEWIBFENA3NALEFE

lIVi\

34.

178

PROVISION (Continued)

Note:

(i

In December 2017, the Group had initiated the expansion plan in investing in Xiamen
HarMoniCare Hospital and the Group, as the lessee, entered into a non-cancellable
I5 years term lease contract with independent third parties (the “Landlord”) for a
planned floor area of approximately 19,200 square meters for Xiamen HarMoniCare

Hospital.

Due to the development of Xiamen HarMonicCare Hospital had been delayed, the
directors of the Company had negotiated with the Landlord on early termination of
the lease contract during the year ended 31 December 2019. By the end of the year
2019, the early termination of the lease contract had been mutually agreed by the
Group and the Landlord with further 6 months rental compensation liable from the

Group to the Landlord.

As the above executory lease contracts is onerous contract, a provision is required to
the extent for which the related unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under
the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received, hence, provision
for onerous contract of approximately RMB41,337,000 had been recognised for the
year ended 3| December 2018.

The Group is involved as defendants in certain medical disputes arising from its
normal business operations. The directors of the Company assess the exposure and
an outflow of economic benefits on certain major medical disputes existed at the
end of the reporting period based on the best estimate of the management and the

opinion of the external legal advisors.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

35. OTHER BORROWINGS

AN BRERMET @

For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HE018F 2R3 BLLEE

35, HfbER

2018 2017
20185 20174

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥FT AEETFT

Other borrowings HffEmx 102,166 =

An analysis of the Group's other borrowings into principal amounts is as follows:

2018 2017

20184 20175

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT AREFT

On demand or within one year RERH—FR 32,770 -

In the second year F-F 31,819 -
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FE=FFRF

(BEEEMTE) 37,577 -

102,166 -

All other borrowings are denominated in RMB. The Group's other borrowings
are secured by the Group's certain property, plant and equipment amounted to

RMB20,610,000.

As at 31 December 2018, the weighted average interest rate of the Group's other
borrowings is 8.06%.

FTEEMERUAREE - AEEH
b fE ZUAAR#20,610,0007T 25 T
¥ BB RREERE o

M20I18F 128318 » REBEMER 2
DRI FIE £8.06%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BHRRME @

For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HEWIBFENA3NALEFE

36. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 36. BEZEBEEE B
2018 2017
20185 2017F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T ARETT
Deferred tax assets BERBEE 2,595 54,277
Deferred tax liabilities ERENEEE (35,417) (47925)
(32,822) 6,352
The following are the major deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised and RAEERBAEERMBERTERELER
movements thereon during the current and prior years: EEERBEBERHEFHNT !
Deductible
temporary
Fair value differences
adjustment on from

business  expenses and

Tax losses  combination others Total
X K Hft
X¥eftz ®EUNERY

BEEE LQTEHRE = Azt

RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ABBTFTT AR¥Fn AR®Trn ARETx

At | January 2017 201751 A 18 = (15511) 33,080 17,569
Credit/(charge) to profit or loss FABR(BE&EIR) 4488 460 16,709 22,657
Acquisition of subsidiaries G )= NE] = (33,874) = (33.874)
At 3| December 2017 and R2017F12A31B R

| January 2018 2018F 1 A8 4488 (47925) 49,789 6,352
Credit/(charge) to profit or loss FFAER (BEENR) (4488) 28,837 (47,194) (22,845)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note |3) W R A /] (Bt 13) = (16,329) = (16,329)
At 3| December 2018 R20185F12A31 B - (35,417) 2,595 (32,822)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

e BBRME @

For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HEWIBENA3IALEFE

36. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES (Continued) 36. EZEBEEE BE (&)
At the end of the reporting period the Group has unused tax losses of REEBHR ZEEBFEARY
RMB284,798,000 (2017: RMB96,599,000) available for offset against future 284,798,000 (20175 : AR
profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of RMBnil (2017: 96,599,0007T) B R B AT TE B 18 7] AR
RMB24,782,000) of such losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in REHEARENE - EMZEBBARE
respect of the remaining RMB284,797,000 (2017: RMB71,817,000) due to the Z (20175  AR®24,782,0007T) #
unpredictability of future profit streams. The unused tax losses will be expired as REEBTEEBE - BRARRNBEROHT
follows: AR - WARELA R 284,797,000
(20174 : AR¥71.8170007C) BA%ERE
RETHREE - RPABAEFERS
BT
2018 2017
2018%F 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AEETT
2018 20184 - 13,766
2019 2019% 13,750 17,467
2020 2020 16,840 16,840
2021 20215 10,308 10308
2022 20026 33,466 38218
2023 2023F 210,433 —
284,797 96,599
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

HmEMBERRMET @

For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HEWIBFENA3NALEFE

37. SHARE CAPITAL
The Company and the Group

[EES
ARARFER

Number of  Nominal value

shares per share Share capital
RFEE BREE R
HK$ HK$
E1 BT
Authorised EE
At | January 2017, 31 December 2017, 20171 A 1B ~2017% 128318 -
| January 2018 and 31 December 2018 2018 | AIHX2018412A31 B [,140,000,000 0.001 [,140,000
Issued and fully paid ERITRAR
At | January 2017, 31 December 2017, R20171 A18 ~2017F 128318 -
| January 2018 and 31 December 2018 201851 A1 BR20I18512A31 8 758,418,085 0.001 758418
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT
Presented as; 255 598 598

The Board announced that on 21 December 2017, it resolved to adopt the
Restricted Share Incentive Scheme as a means to recognise the contribution of and
provide incentives for the key management of the Group and persons who made

special contribution to the Group. As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, no award

has been made under the Restricted Share Incentive Scheme.
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37. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

The Company and the Group (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTINUED)

Details of the trustee of the Restricted Share Incentive Scheme purchased shares of

the Company pursuant to the Restricted Share Incentive Scheme are as follows:

AN BRERMET @

For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HEWIBENA3IALEFE

A ()

APARAEE (H)

PRI A O BB AT BIEFEARBR HI1E
iy Rl YN WG Sk =z
BT :

Price per share

BRER
Number of Aggregate
ordinary consideration
Month of purchase shares Highest Lowest paid
BAAG EER#E & BfE EARERE
HK$ HK$ HK$’000
V-3 V¥ B
December 2017 20175124 5,404,000 3.15 2.86 16,081
January 2018 2018F | A 6,291,000 3.19 3.00 19,691
March 2018 2018F3A 3,050,000 2.80 2.60 8,407
April 2018 201854 A 198,000 2.68 2.65 529
July 2018 2018F7 A 4,812,000 223 1.88 9,728
August 2018 20188 A 880,000 215 2.10 864
September 2018 201859 A 4,847,000 2.29 204 10,568
October 2018 2018 10 5,171,000 234 2.19 11,597
November 2018 2018F 11 A 6,718,000 2.30 202 14,801
December 2018 2018512 487,000 223 2.10 1,054
Total st 37,858,000 94,320
RMB’000
ARKEFT
Presented as: 25 81,552

During the year, apart from the above transaction, neither the Company nor any

of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed

securities.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to

continue as a going concern while maximising the retumn to shareholders through

the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's overall strategy

remains unchanged from prior year.

FR - BRERRZUIN - RABHEFE
AMBARLEREER  HELBEAR
AR LTS o

AEBNEAEEAERRRAREE
BEBEAE AR EAEL AR
AT ARRFREARR - A%EH
HEBRREBEERRITE -
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For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HEWIBFENA3NALEFE

37.

38.

184

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
The Company and the Group (Continued)

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts, which includes other
borrowings as disclosed in note 35, net of cash and cash equivalents, and equity
attributable to the owner of the Company, comprising issued share capital, share

premium and reserves.

The Group's management review the capital structure periodically. As part of this
review, the directors consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with each
class of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues and

share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the repayment of existing debt.

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME

The Company's share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to a shareholders’ resolution passed on 9 June 2015 for the primary
purpose of providing incentives to selected participants and the validity period
of the Share Option Scheme shall be six years from the date of grant. Under the
Share Option Scheme, the board of directors of the Company may grant options
to eligible employees, including directors of the Company and employee of the
Group. The Share Option Scheme has become effective on 7 July 2015, the date
on which the shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the Stock

Exchange.

In July 2015, the board of directors of the Company approved certain share options
granted to a list of eligible grantees (“Eligible Grantees"), including two directors of
the Company, four members of the senior management of the Company, certain
employees of the Company and its subsidiaries. According to the Share Option
Scheme, the Eligible Grantees were granted share options of the Company to
subscribe the ordinary shares of the Company at the exercise price of HKD7.10
per share. In July 2015, a total of 9,339,600 share options were granted to the
directors and members of the senior management of the Company and a total of
6,774,200 share options were granted to certain employees of the Company and
its subsidiaries. The share options shall be automatically unlocked on the unlocking
dates in accordance with the relevant proportions and during the next three years.
The share options will be vested when the certain performance conditions stated

below are met.
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BB - REBREAE - SEBERA
EBREARARBRENRTEEBSR
7108 TRBEAR A EER - B2015F
7R ARAREZERARERERES
HE9,339,60010 FERE R AR R RE
MRS TEE S HER67742001
FERRAE - A IR BARRALL B AR IR
3SERNRBEH BB BB - BRES
Rt 2 & T RIBIGHEEK RS
%o



38. SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (Continued)

At 31 December 2017, the number of share options expected to vest was nil. All
the share options granted were lapsed during the year ended 31 December 2017.

No share option was granted during the year ended 31 December 2018.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e BHRERME W

For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HEWIBENA3IALEFE

38. MEERAESTE (&)
R2017F12A318 - BHBEENER
BHEAT - HE2017F1283181
FE - ERLNEREE AR - HE
018F 12A31BILFE - HIEFLER

1 o
39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY AND 39. RAFRMBMRRERRAATRE
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARKEFIT ARKTFT
Non-current assets EREEE
Investments in subsidiaries RETB AR Z%E 496,616 955,223
Current assets REEE
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 29,083 305,138
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  TBITHK « & &
H A U R IE 921 1,482
Amounts due from subsidiaries eI B A R FIA 339 339
30,343 306,959
Current liabilities nEaE
Amount due to subsidiaries FERTB B A A IE 17,867 17,621
Other payables Hh fEf50IE 2,836 306
20,703 17927
Net current assets REBEEFE 9,640 289,032
Total assets less current liabilities HEERREAE 506,256 244,255
Net assets EERE 506,256 1,244,255
Capital and reserves BEARRf#E
Share capital PR 598 598
Reserve ] 505,658 1,243,657
Total equity MR 506,256 1,244,255
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

The followings are the movements of the Company's reserve:

Share

premium

39.

Treasury
share

reserve

KRB EERORERE

FRARHBRRERRAE QA RE
(%)
AT RARRINREES -

Retained
Share earnings/

option  (accumulated

reserve losses) Total
REEF
BRERE (RAEBR) )

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFZT
At | January 2017 R2017E1A1B 1,302,087 = 4708 16,874 1,323,669
Loss and total comprehensive loss FRBEERZEEBES
for the year S S S (23733) (23733)
Dividends recognised as distribution BRAEDEZRE (37921) - - - (37921
Purchase of shares under Restricted R AR (7 B Byt 2
Share Incentive Scheme BERMR - (13,650) - — (13,650)
Recognition of equity-settled RUAR LS
share-based payments DARRAD RETR AR50 - - (4,708) - (4,708)
At 31 December 2017 R2017F 12A31 A R
and | January 2018 018%1 § 18 264,166 (13650) - (6859) 1243657
Loss and total comprehensive loss FRNBERZEERES
for the year - - ~ (670097 (670097)
Purchase of shares under Restricted RERHIE RO @2
Share Incentive Scheme BERMR - (67902) - — (67902)
At 31 December 2018 R20I8%E12A31 R 1,264,166 (81,552) - (676956) 505,658
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40. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 40. EEHEERRE
The Group as lessee FEBEREHEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for future RBEEHR - REERE AL S
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as MER R ERERENFEAETH B
follows: T
2018 2017
20184 20176
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AEETT
Within one year —FR 119,134 89,433
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EFRF
(BREEEMSF) 380,069 297,644
After five years hFf& 472,770 225,023
971,973 612,100
Operating lease payments commitments represent rental payable by the Group for RERENRAEEASEHERRY
the premises leased for hospitals and offices. These leases were negotiated for lease ERPRERMNNAS - ZBFHOH
terms of one to twenty years. Monthly rental was fixed and none of the leases HHRERI£20F - ABEEE T3
includes any contingent rentals and renewal options. EAIS AT & RABRHE
41. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 41. BFREE
2018 2017
2018%F 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T AEETT
Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition of FLUEEI S « BfE KRB ET
property, plant and equipment contracted KBRNERE BB R
for but not provided in the consolidated B ERFX
financial statements 258,301 271,886
Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition of FLUEEIH * B/E R RHEE &K
property, plant and equipment authorised BERNGEMERRET L
but not contracted for in the consolidated B ARRX
financial statements = 38
258,301 271924
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@)  Name and relationship

Name

=L

4. BBERS
(@) BERER

Relationship with the Group

BRKERER

Bosheng Medical Investment Co., Ltd.
BEBFRERNBRAR

Xining Modern Hospital of Obstetrics and Gynaecology Co., Ltd.

(“Xining Modemn Hospital")
RERRGEARAR ([AERRER])

Hebei Modern Woman Hospital Co,, Ltd.
(*Hebei Moderm Woman Hospital”)
AR FEEARAR (DR 72k )

Hibaby
Y88

Xiandai Maternity Hospital of Nanchong Co,, Ltd
(“Xiandai Matemity Hospital of Nanchong”)

HRARGERRARAR ([ARRARESR])

Leshan Modern Women Hospital Co,, Ltd
(“Leshan Modern Women Hospital)

ZURRBEBRARLAR ([RURAFESR])

Gansu Taihetang medicine Co,, Ltd

(‘Gansu Taihetang medicine”)

HBANMZREEREEAR ([HBAMZEE])

Company controlled by Mr. Lin Yuming
AR 2 R F]

Company controlled by Mr. Lin Yurong, a shareholder of the Company

AARRIBERMER AR 2 AT

Company controlled by Mr. Wu Yaping, a close family member

of Mr. Lin Yuming
AR Vs (MERKEZIR) B2 A F]

Associate

i YN

Company controlled by Mr. Su Donggj, a close family member of

Mr. Lin Yuming
A#HSE LS (MEREEZIIR) EBZ A7)

Company controlled by Lin Yurong, a close family member of

Mr. Lin Yuming
AMESR (MERAKLE IR ERZAF

Company controlled by Lin Yurong, a close family member of
Mr. Lin Yuming
AMESR (MEAKLEZIR) ER AR
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 4. BHAIRS (&)
(b)  Related party transaction b) BHEXS
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AEETT
Sales of pharmaceuticals medical devices and LA T & A HEBESR -
consumables to: BRI A
Xining Modern Hospital BRNER I 4766
Leshan Modern Women Hospital L RRIFESR 2 1,160
Xiandai Maternity Hospital of Nanchong MrRRRBERR 18 271
Hebei Modern Woman Hospital LR R T 295 251
Gansu Taihetang medicine Co,, Ltd HEBAME 5
BREERA 30 255
356 6,703
Rental expense to Bosheng Medical BNBARRHES 301 269

The above transactions were carried out in the ordinary course of business
of the Group and conducted in accordance with the terms and conditions

mutually agreed by both parties.

R ERSRAEE A HEHBRE
P E AR R O MR R
17 -
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c)  Related party balances

(i) Amounts due from related parties

4. BEBARS (&)

() EEHELEE
() EREHE

2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFTT AREFT
Trade in nature BESHE
Amounts due from FEM IR Bk IR
Xining Modern Hospital — 360
Amounts due from e H R AN E B B3R
Gansu Taihetang Medicine - 18
- 378
The above balances are unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed term of LTy EEE 25 HER
repayment. SERTRE o
Non-trade in nature FEFHE
2018 2017
20185 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFTT AREFT
Amounts due from associates JE MBS R R R0R
Hibaby LA 1 - 19,000
Selford ERE - 10,000
- 29,000
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c)  Related party balances (Continued)

(i) Amount due to a related party

4. BEBARS (&)

© BB ()
() BEHBBERE

For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HE018F 2R3 BLLEE

2018 2017

2018%F 20176

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARHFT AEETFT

Bosheng Medical Investment Co., Ltd. BEBERERNARAR 1,225 924

The above balances are unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed term of

repayment.

(d)  Compensation of key management personnel

ity EIER - 25 A ERE

TERTE

d ==

2018 2017

20185 20174

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TFTT AREFT

Salaries and allowance e M2 1,989 2,623
Contributions to retirement benefits schemes ERAEFET SRR 28 52
Share-based payment VAR R AR B 3K = (2,617)
2,017 58

Further details of the director's emoluments are included in note 16.

EXHME—THIBENIE

16 °
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43.  PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 4. FRREEMBLTZFHE
Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries at the end of the reporting RBEBR - KRBT ERBATZF
period are as follow: BWT

Issued and fully paid
Place of ordinary share capital/ Percentage of ownership
Name of subsidiary incorporation registered capital interest/voting power Principal activities
BRIRER  BARERREE
HEARER AMmuLYE  EERRAERER ZADL IRER
2018 2017
0185 0I7E

Shanxi Tai He Tang Pharmaceuticals Co, Ltd. ~ The PRC RMBS, 100,000 100% 100%  Supply of Pharmaceuticals and medical devices

business

LEANEEXBRAA RE ARHS5,1000007C HEERRERSE

Wuhan Modem Obstetrics and Gynecology ~ The PRC RMBI0,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of specialised hospital services

Hospital Co, Ltd

RERHBERRARAR i ARH100000007C REENER RS

Chongging Modem Woman Hospital Co,, Ltd ~ The PRC RMB21,000,000 100% [00%  Provision of specialised hospital services

ERARLTERARAA 3 AEH21,0000007C REENER RS

Chongging Dushi Liren Hospital Co,, Ltd. The PRC RMB4.210,000 100% [00%  Provision of specialised hospital services

ERHATEABRARAA q: AR%42100007C REENER RS

Guiyang Modem Woman Hospital Co, Ltd. The PRC RMB2,560,000 100% [00%  Provision of specialised hospital services

BEAR L TERARAHA H AR25600007C REEHER RS

Guangzhou Woman Hospital Co, Ltd The PRC RMBI10,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of specialised hospital services

BAZTERARAA i AR 100000007 REENER RS

Chongging Bosheng Hospital Management The PRC RMBI,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of specialised hospital services

Co, Ltd

ERBLBRERARAT P AR 10000007 REER R RS

Chongging Wanzhou HarMoniCare Obstetrics ~ The PRC RMB6,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of specialised hospital services

and Gynecology Hospital Co, Ltd.

ERENNXRERRARAR PE ARH6,0000007C RESHER RS
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43.  PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 4. FRREEMBLFZFHE (H)
(Continued)
Issued and fully paid
Place of ordinary share capital/ Percentage of ownership
Name of subsidiary incorporation registered capital interest/voting power Principal activities
BRIRER  BARER REE
WELARER AEMER I 28 EERRE/ERER ZERH IRER
2018 2017
0I85F WI7E

Guiyang HarMoniCare Obstetrics and The PRC RMB10,000,000 100% 100%  Holding company and provision of specialised

Gynecology Hospital Co, Ltd. hospital services
EENXREERARAR i AR 100000007 PR R HENER RS
Chongging Fuling HarMoniCare Obstetricsand ~ The PRC RMB10,000,000 96.50% 96.50%  Provision of specialised hospital services

Gynecology Hospital Co,, Ltd
ERRENERERRARLA P AR%100000007C R SR B R
Shanxi Wo De Investment Co,, Ltd. The PRC RMBI7,800,000 100% 100%  Holding company
WERERARRAR G AR 178000007 NG
Fuzhou Modermn Woman Hospital Co,, Ltd. The PRC RMB25,000,000 99% 99%  Provision of specialised hospital services
BMARGEERBRAR i AR#250000007C U ENBR RS
Shenzhen HarMoniCare Gynecology and The PRC RMB40,000,000 92% 92%  Provision of specialised hospital services

Paediatrics Hospital Co, Ltd
ANXFERHER AR e ARH400000007T e UL
Beijing HarMoniCare Gynecology and The PRC RMB40,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of specialised hospital services

Paediatrics Hospital Co, Ltd
IRNEERER AR A i ARH400000007C REENER RS
Harmonicare Medical Group Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%  Holding company
NXERREARAR i 1000077 BB
HarMoniCare Medical Management and The PRC RMB882,000,000/ 100% 100%  Holding company

Consutting Co, Ltd RMBI,250,000,000
MXEREELAERAA i AR %882,0000007C/ ZRAH

AR 12500000007
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43.  PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 4. FRREEMBLFZFHE (H)
(Continued)
Issued and fully paid
Place of ordinary share capital/ Percentage of ownership
Name of subsidiary incorporation registered capital interest/voting power Principal activities
BRARARE  BARERREE
HEARER AEMER I 2 EERRE/EREE ZADL IEXHR
2018 2017
0185 0I7E
Harmonicare Medical Investment Limited the British UsSD0.00! 100% 100%  Holding company
Virgin Islands
(‘The BVIY)
Harmonicare Medical Investment Limited EEERES 0001 E7T a5 NGl
([REER
#8))
Galaxy Power Solution Limited The BVI UsD200 100% 100%  Holding company
Galaxy Power Solution Limited EEARME 200K BRAE
Sharp Charm Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100% 100%  Holding company
Sharp Charm Limited & 1007 BRAE
Bejing He An Da Management Consutting The PRC RMB682,000,000/ 100% 100%  Investment holding
Co, Ltd RMBI,050,000,000
IRAREERARERAT hE ARH682,0000007T/ RERk
AR% 10500000007
Heilongjiang HarMoniCare Obstetrics and The PRC RMB10,000,000 95% 95%  Provision of specialised hospital services
Gynecology Hospital Co,, Ltd.
AR IMERERRARAR G AR 100000007 RESNERRS
Xiamen HarMoniCare Gynecology and The PRC RMB19,800,000/ 99% 99%  Inactive
Paediatrics Hospital Co,, Ltd RMB20,000,000
EFNXRRERARAR k! AR 198000007,/ ERER
AE#200000007T
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43.  PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 4. FDFEEMBLAZHE (F])
(Continued)
Issued and fully paid
Place of ordinary share capital/ Percentage of ownership
Name of subsidiary incorporation registered capital interest/voting power Principal activities
BRARAE  HARERREE
WEARER aEMA L B EERRE /EREL PA=Yi) IEXH
2018 2017
WI8F 0I7F
Zhengzhou HarMoniCare Gynecology and The PRC RMB36,000,000/ 60% 60%  Inactive
Paediatrics Hospital Co, Ltd. ("Zhengzhou RMB50,000,000
HarMoniCare")
GNPAERZBRARLA ([BMFX]) AR%360000007T/ TERX
AE%50,0000007T
Nantong Hemeijia The PRC RMB36,734,700 51% 51%  Provision of specialised hospital services
BANER hE ARB367347007 REENERRE
Beijing Baiziwan The PRC RMB36,734,700 51% N/A Provision of specialised hospital services
IRETE e ARB367347007C NER  REENERRE
Hibaby The PRC RMB50,000,000 98% N/A Provision of assisted maternity consultant
management consuftings
gLy G ARH500000007C NER  RAYEEMEER
Notes: s -
(@)  All the subsidiaries established in the PRC are registered as limited liability companies @  PIERHREEMAIZENEABER
under the PRC law. BHEEEAMAERAT
(b)  None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the year. (b) RAFEEREHERBARDET
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43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 43.
(Continued)

FARNEEMBARZHE (&)

BEBAFFERRR 2 ARENBERRZEH
BERBLINT - ATHBERMEEEE
AARIEHHA 2%

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's subsidiaries that has material non-
controlling interest is set out below. The summarised financial information below represents

amounts before intragroup eliminations.

Name Nantong Hemeijia Zhengzhou HarMoniCare Beijing Baiziwan
e HRNER LIJFIES TRAETE
Principal place of business/country of incorporation The PRC/The PRC The PRC/The PRC The PRC/The PRC
T/ ARRER HE /P E hEl/HE hE/E
% of ownership interestsivoting rights held by NCI 49%/49% 40%/40% 49%/49%
FERERFTSAEER / RAE% 49%/49% 40%/40% 49%/49%
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018
20185 WI7E WI8E WI7E 20185
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTFR  ARETT ARETT AREFT  AREFZ
As at 31 December RI2A3IA
Current asses mEEE 255,492 268,193 3736 0127 13,120
Non-current assets FnEEE 246,36 29018 58,229 9012 2989
Current liabiltes eI (13,073) (12,09) (40317) 227) (208,596)
Non-current liabilities FnBak (51,295) (33492) (1.921) (154) (15873)
437,485 451629 19,727 30758 (188,360)
Fquity attributable to owners to the Company AR RIEA ATE(G#E 23,117 230,331 11836 18455 (96,064)
Accumulated NC it RER 214,368 221,298 7891 12303 (92,296)
437485 451629 19,727 30758 (188,360)
Year ended 3| December BZENR3NBLEE
Revenue and other income Was REMMA 94,118 37,748 - - 48,745
Expenses X (108,262) (30774) (25,031) (5242) (120,103)
(Loss)/profit for the year EN(EB)/ T8 (14,144) 6974 (25,031) (5242) (71358)
Total comprehensive (loss)fincome for the year  FR2 T (1), WAES (14,144) 6974 (25,031) (5242 (71,358)
Total comprenensive (loss)/income ARAERAEERE
attributable to owners of the Company (B58)/ WAL (7213) 3557 (15,019) (3,145) (36,393)
Total comprehensive (|oss)/income FERERENEEE
attributable to NCI (B8)/ WA EE (6931) 3417 (10,012) (2097) (34965)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

The following table shows the Group’s changes in liabilities arising from financing

activities during the year:

AN BRERMET @

For the Year ended 31 December 2018
HEWIBENA3IALEFE

44, HEBESRERME
REIHELCABERD
TRIRAEERNEARETHELZ

£ (5%

Other borrowings

Hit ™%

RMB’000

ARETT

At | January 2018 R20I18F |1 AR =

Change in cash flows Rene# 74,246
Non-cash changes EIS R

— Acquisitions of a subsidiary (note |3) — i —fam B AR (ME13) 22,700

— Interest charged — FEEHFIS 5,220

At 31 December 2018 2018512431 H 102,166

45.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

@

Disposal of the 92% equity interest of Shenzhen Harmonicare Hospital

On 28 April 2019, Guiyang HarMoniCare Obstetrics and Gynecology
Hospital Co., Ltd. (the “Guiyang HarMoniCare Hospital”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, as vendor, and HarMoniCare Medical
Management and Consulting Co., Ltd. (the “HarMoniCare Medical
Management”) and Beijing He An Da Management Consulting Co., Ltd.
(the “Beijing HAD"), as creditors, entered into the disposal agreement with
Shenzhen Renzheng Medical Management Co., Ltd, as purchaser, pursuant
to which the purchaser agreed to acquire the 92% equity interests in
Shenzhen Harmonicare Hospital from the Vendor for a total consideration
of RMB63,000,000 (including a cash consideration of RMBI,000,000 and
the purchaser agreed to settle an amount of RMB62,000,000 of outstanding

debts owed by Shenzhen Harmonicare Hospital to the creditors).

45. HEMERER
(@) HERYIFEEET92%HI IR AE
R2019F4 A28 * ARE2E
MBARERNERERRER
Al ([EBMERR]) (ERE
) MEBREEZRNEGRA
(r
B

N

/N

yl
-

N\
yi
3k

MEBEER]) MRER

o

EERFERAERAR([IERER
E]) (ERBREAN) BRIICIER
BEEERAT (IEREHR) I
HEWZ Bt EFRERE
77 LA (B A R % 63,000,000
(BEEREREARK,000,000
THEAREREEALSR
MEBRAOREEEBARK
62,000,0007T ) BRI R = B
92%HARHE

[
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45.

46.

198

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD (Continued)

(b)

Disposal of the entire equity interest of three subsidiaries

On 24 July 2019, Guiyang HarMoniCare Hospital, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, as vendor, and HarMoniCare Medical Management,
as creditor, entered into the disposal agreement with Zhenjiang Kelida
Information Technology Service Center (limited partnership), as purchaser,
pursuant to which the purchaser agreed to acquire the entire equity interests
of each of Wuhan Modern Obstetrics and Gynecology Hospital Co,, Ltd,,
Chongging Wanzhou HarMoniCare Obstetrics and Gynecology Hospital Co.,
Ltd. and Chongging Dushi Liren Hospital Co,, Ltd. (collectively, the “Target
Companies”) from the vendor for a total consideration of RMB22,000,000
(including a cash consideration of RMB2,200,000 and the purchaser agreed
to settle an amount of RMB19,800,000 of outstanding debts owed by the
Target Companies to the creditor). The disposal of Chongging Wanzhou
HarMoniCare Obstetrics and Gynecology Hospital Co,, Ltd. and Chongging
Dushi Liren Hospital Co., Ltd. were completed in August 2019.

APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by

the Board of Directors on 8 January 2021.
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45.

46.

REHESE (F)
b) HEZHMBEARZZMKRE

R2019F78248  KRAE2E
MBARERMEER (EAE
H)ERMEBEER ((ERER
A) BTN ERE BRI RS
0 (BRE%) ERER) I
HEWZ Bt EFRERAE
A BREARE22,000,0007T
(BEREREBARK22000007T
BEFREMEREAZBARA
AMREEEBE AR 19800000
TTIHRBRERRAGERR AR
DR EREMNERERRE
RARILBEEHTEABRER
RA (R BEAR]) 2R
B -EEBEMNERERRER
RARERHTEABRARA
AIHEER2019%8 AT °

HEGEMBHRE
GEMBREREIN02IE AsRKES
SR NIRRT -



“"AGM"
[ERBFAE]

“Articles of Association”

[Ei24081]

“Audit Committee”
[EZEEE]

“Beijing Baiziwan

HarMoniCare Hospital”

(bR B FEME ]

“Beijing HarMoniCare Hospital”

[HERFEE |

"Beijing Huafu Hospital"

[IERE T8 |

“Board” or “Board of Directors”

=34

"Bosheng Medical”

(B4R

"“CG Code"

[%ERTH

“China” or “PRC"

[l

DEFINITIONS
BE

annual general meeting of the Company

ARRIBRRBEREG

the articles of association of the Company adopted on 9 June 2015 which became effective
on the Listing Date
ARRAIR2015F6 A9 BERAIER £ B HERNEIRAA

the audit committee of the Board

EFEENERE

Beijing Baiziwan HarMoniCare Gynecology and Paediatrics Hospital Co, Ltd (3t RE F
EMELTE T B AR AR, previously named as Beijing Huafu Women and Children
Hospital Co,, Ltd. (At REE[THR 7 EFr B R A7), a limited liability company established in
the PRC and a non-wholly owned subsidiary of our Company
ERBAFENERRERARLNR @ AR RENRZBRARAF - RPBEMKL
HAERLDE  RALNFFZENBAR

Beijing HarMoniCare Gynecology and Paediatrics Hospital Co., Ltd. (3t R MZELR 7 B Fr
BR27]), a limited liability company established in the PRC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of

our Company

IRMEFERBRARLDA  ETERINERAR  AARFEEHBLR

Beijing Huafu Women and Children Hospital Co., Ltd. (Jt RERRE R ERARA
Al), a limited liability company established in the PRC, now renamed as Beijing Baiziwan
HarMoniCare Gynecology and Pediatrics Hospital Co,, Ltd. Gt B F/&MER T ERA
E/NET)

ItRERFEZBRAERAR - EFEXKUNERAR  BEERRIEREFEME
RABRARAA

the board of Directors of the Company
ARRIEFE

Bosheng Medical Investment Co,, Ltd. (4 BB ERMNDBR A A)), a joint stock limited
liability company established in the PRC, a connected person of our Company by virtue of
Mr. Lin Yuming, one of our Directors and substantial Shareholders, holding 59.1% of the
equity interest in Bosheng Medical

BABBRERNERAR  EPEKAKRNBRAR - BEREARARNE
ENEERRMEALEREEERES. %NBREMAAARZBEAL

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix [4 to the Listing Rules

LHRRIRTER 4PrE R EE AT R

the People’s Republic of China; for the purpose of this annual report only, references to
“China” or the "PRC" do not include Taiwan, the Macau Special Administrative Region of
the PRC and Hong Kong

REARKEME  SRAFRME [HEINRAL A BESE - HEIRPIRAITT
BE L&
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DEFINITIONS (conTINUED)

BEm)

“Chongging Liren Hospital”

“Chongging Fuling HarMoniCare
Hospital”

[BERREMEER

“Chongging Modern Hospital”
[EFRAEN]

“Chongging Wanzhou HarMoniCare
Hospital”

[EEEMMEER

“Company” or “our Company” or

“Harmonicare”

IACIEAR NG EARIES - 3
“Controlling Shareholder(s)"
[ AR ARER |

"Corresponding Period”

[R5

“Directors”

[E%]

“Fuzhou Modem Hospital”
[fEMRREPr

“Global Offering”
[2IREE

“GMP Certificate”
[ GMPRR#&

Chongging Dushi Liren Hospital Co., Ltd. (EE & TEARBRABRAR]), a limited liability
company established in the PRC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company
EEPTEARRARAT  EFERIMNERAT - AAARZ2ANBAT

Chongging Fuling HarMoniCare Obstetrics and Gynecology Hospital Co., Ltd. (EE 5k
FMEBERPAMRAF]), a limited liability company established in the PRC, a non-wholly-
owned subsidiary of our Company

EREENERERRARAR  EPEKINERAT - AAABZIERENE

NG

Chongging Modern Woman Hospital Co., Ltd. (EERR X FEFLERAF]), a limited
liability company established in the PRC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company
BERRRLFERERAR  ERBEKINARRR - AARRIZ2EMEAR]

Chongging Wanzhou HarMoniCare Obstetrics and Gynecology Hospital Co., Ltd. (EE &
MNAEFERR AR AR]), a limited liability company established in the PRC, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of our Company

EEENNERERRARAA  £PERINARAR  AARAZ2AMER
A

Harmonicare Medical Holdings Limited, an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability on 26 August 2014
MEBFERARAF - N2014F8 A2 AERSHEEMKINERRERATE

A

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules

BB EWARAE T RHE

the year ended 31 December 2017
BE0I7F12A31BLFE

directors of the Company
ARARIESR

Fuzhou Modern Woman Hospital Co., Ltd. (faMRRFEER AR AR]), a limited
liability company established in the PRC, a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company
BNARBEBRARAR - EHERINBRAF - RARARIZEZENMBEAR

initial public offering of the Shares and listing of the Group on the Stock Exchange on 7 July
2015
AREER2015F7 A7 ARBRAERARZERD L LT

The Good Manufacturing Practices for Pharmaceutical Products Certificate
(BmAEBEEERERE)

200 HARMONICARE MEDICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED * FEEEZRARAH



“Group”, "“our Group”, “we” or "us”

ESARAES S N4l

“GSP Certificate”
[ GSP3R#E |

“Guangzhou Woman Hospital”

[ 22 F 286 |

"Guiyang HarMoniCare Hospital”

[ &SR |

"Guiyang HarMoniCare

Obstetrics and Gynecology Hospital”

[EEMERESR

"Harmony Care”
[ Harmony Care ]

"HarMoniCare Management”

[(FXBRER

"Heilongjiang HarMoniCare Hospital”

[ BEETIASER
“Hibaby"
[l 218

“Homecare”

[Homecare |

“HKEx"
[BARHH]

DEFINITIONS (conTINUED)
EZ

the Company and its subsidiaries

AREREM BT

The Good Supply Practices for Pharmaceutical Products Certificate

(BRREE8ERRATES)

Guangzhou Woman Hospital Co., Ltd. (BN 2ZFERER A 7F]), a limited liability
company established in the PRC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company
BMNZFBRARAR  AFBEKINERLE - SARRZ2EMBAR

Guiyang HarMoniCare Hospital Co., Ltd (ESFEERERAF]) (formerly named as
Guiyang Modern Woman Hospital Co., Ltd. (IR ZFERBRAF])), a limited
liability company established in the PRC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company
BEfENEBEARAR (i ERRARKTFBRARLR)  ETREKINERA
Al RAREZEENB AR

Guiyang HarMoniCare Obstetrics and Gynecology Hospital Co., Ltd. (B FI5ERE Bkt
B A7), a limited liability company established in the PRC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
our Company

BEBNERERRERAR  EREAMKINERAR - RARRIZZENREL
=

Harmony Care International Investment Limited
Harmony Care International Investment Limited

HarMoniCare Medical Management and Consulting Co,, Ltd. (FIEEZEEEERER A
al), a limited liability company established in the PRC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of our

Company
NEXBEEEXAGRAR  APEKINERAF - BARRZ2EMBAF

Heilongjiang HarMoniCare Obstetrics and Gynecology Hospital Co., Ltd. (B3I %R
E AR AR, a limited liability company established in the PRC, a non-wholly-owned

subsidiary of our Company
BRINEREBRARAR  EPEKINERAR  RARFFEEENBAR

Hibaby Healthcare Co., Ltd. (FlEBEEEE AR R F]), a limited liability company
established in the PRC, an associated company of our Company

FIABREEEARAR  RPBEKINBRAR - ARRRIZBE QT

Homecare Interational Investment Limited

Homecare International Investment Limited

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited
BERHNEEMBRAR
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DEFINITIONS (conTINUED)

BEm)

“Hong Kong" or “HK"
(&5

“IFRSs"
[ BIFR B s i 5 2 A

“Independent Third Party(ies)"

[BIE=7]

Ml

“Listing Date”
[ E
“Listing Rules”
[ EmARAl
“Model Code”
[E2E<r Al

“Nantong Hemeijia Hospital”

EpERES R

“Nomination Committee”

[REZEE]

“ob-gyn"
[ EE |

“Prospectus”

[FlER ]

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
FEERRHTTRE

International Financial Reporting Standards

il gt R el

an individual(s) or a company(ies) who or which is/are not connected (within the meaning
of the Listing Rules) with any directors, chief executive or substantial shareholders (within
the meaning of the Listing Rules) of us, our subsidiaries or any of their respective associates

BEFA  APOHBERARAREEAEABEANES - THASSTERR (£
MRAMEEE) MEFE (LMRIFEEE) NEALLR]

the Joint Commission International, an international arm of The Joint Commission. The
Joint Commission is a United States-based independent, not-for-profit organization which

accredits and certifies healthcare organizations and programs
Joint Commission International * BFEZ B BWEIR N X - MAZ B GRXEME I

ENEAES - A ERERENRRNKENRE

the date on which dealings in the Shares first commenced on the Stock Exchange i.e. 7 July
2015
Bty BRRERBXAREE 2 B8 (B2015%7A78H)

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, as amended from time
to time

BSRATES L ARA) (ERREET)

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in
Appendix |0 to the Listing Rules

LHRBIKIER 0PFE BT ABFETESF I HHRETR

Nantong Hemeijia Obstetrics and Gynecology Hospital Co., Ltd. (BBMERFER
Bt BR A7), a limited liability company established in the PRC, a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of our Company

HRNERGENBERARAR  EPEKINERAR  AAREIEEENEAR

the nomination committee of the Board

EFERALES

obstetrics and gynecology

IR R ER

the prospectus dated 25 June 2015 issued by the Company
AREHESBBA0I1556 A2 BHNBRETR
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“Remuneration Committee”

K E3=b-4

“Restricted Share Incentive Scheme”

or “RSI Scheme”

[ B 61 45 P R bt 281

“Review Period”

[EEEHAE )

“RMB”
[AR#]

“Selford”
[E/AE ]

“SFO"

“Shanghai Taiyuan”
[ HEFRIR]

“Shanxi Modern Hospital”
[L7asR 8k |

“Share(s)"
[ Betn ]

“Shareholder(s)"
[FR

“Share Option Scheme”

(Rl

“Shenzhen HarMoniCare Hospital”

[RYIF S |

DEFINITIONS (conTINUED)
EZ

the remuneration committee of the Board

ESEHVMEZES

the restricted share incentive scheme of the Company approved and adopted by the Board
on 2| December 2017
EEEMN017F 12721 BHUE R R BRSO R B AT &)

the period from | January 2018 to 31 December 2018
20185 1 B I HZE20185 12 A31 B 8]

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

ARE - REEEEHS

Selford Medical Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd. (BREEERE (ItR) BRAA)), a
limited liability company established in the PRC, an associated company of our Company

ERRERNK (LR) BRAR - RABKINERAE] - BARRZHE QT

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as

amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

RARHER] ~ Mk AT U B BIARIES7 | B 5 L E (D)

Shanghai Taiyuan Jiangen Equity Investment Fund (Limited Partnership)
LERRERBERAEGREE (BREE)

Shanxi Modern Obstetrics and Gynecology Hospital Co., Ltd.
ARRGEERRGREEAR]

share(s) with par value of HK$0.001 each in the capital of the Company
ARRIBRAHEREE0 B THIB

holder(s) of the Share(s)
BB A

the share option scheme conditionally adopted by the Company pursuant to a resolution

passed by the Shareholders on 9 June 2015 which became effective on the Listing Date
ARFUREERRI20155F6 A9 B BAN AR RA R RANBLRE 2 (B0
i BREAER)

Shenzhen HarMoniCare Gynecology and Paediatrics Hospital (Z3II 3R 7R &),
previously known as “Shenzhen HarMoniCare Gynecology and paediatrics Hospital Co.,
Ltd. (RYIFIEREZRIBIRER A F])", a limited liability company established in the PRC,
a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company

AYIFER ZREL (A7 DRI AR ZMERARAR ) - EREKIMNER
R RAREBERENB AR
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DEFINITIONS (conTINUED)
BZE @

“Stock Exchange”
[ Ff |

“Tai He Tang"
[ KMz ]

“TK Harmony"
[ TK Harmony ]

“Written Guidelines”
[£mE3ES]

“Wuhan Modern Hospital”

[EERA B

“Wuxi HarMoniCare Hospital”

[ eH M |

“Xiamen HarMoniCare Hospital”

[EPIFEEEE |

“YoY”
[ |

"Zhengzhou HarMoniCare Hospital”

RS

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEREMARZMERAT

Shanxi Tai He Tang Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. (IUFARFZEEZEBFRAR]), a limited
liability company established in the PRC, a wholly-owned Subsidiary of our Company
IWAAMEEZBRAR - ETEXUNERLF  RARRZENBAR

TK Harmony Limited
TK Harmony Limited

written guidelines on securities transactions by employees

BEETEFRHNETRES

Wuhan Modemn Obstetrics and Gynecology Hospital Co, Ltd. (BVERRIBEERAR
Aa]), a limited liability company established in the PRC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of our
Company

RERRREBRARLR  EPEKRINERLF  AEARRZ2ENRBAR

fR/A8]), a limited liability company established in the PRC, independent of the Company
and its connected persons

BHNEREBRARALR  EFERIMNERAR  BURNALARABEAL

Xiamen HarMoniCare Gynecology and Paediatrics Hospital Co., Ltd. (& PIF13E47 57 88
BrABR7AA]), a limited liability company established in the PRC, a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of our Company

EFfXERBRERAR - EHERINERAR - RARRFE2EMNBE LA

year-on-year

BREFREAL

Zhengzhou HarMoniCare Gynecology and Paediatrics Hospital Co., Ltd. (B 1€
ST EITAMR AR, a limited liability company established in the PRC, a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of our Company

EMTNEFERBRERAR  EFEKZANERAR - RARRFEZENBAR

In this annual report, the terms “associate”, “connected person”, “subsidiary” and ERERD  BXBRZEMEN [BHE
“substantial shareholder” shall have the meanings ascribed to such terms in the Listng A [BBEAL]  [HBAR I R[EFEHRE]
Rules, unless the context otherwise requires. The English names of the companies EEE LMRAME TZERAENER - £

established in the PRC are for identification purposes only.

=D AVE:OUNGIE S @S Rl

204  HARMONICARE MEDICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED « FZBE&ZERERAT



I MNEBEZEIRBEREAT

HARMONICARE MEDICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED




	封面 
	目錄
	公司資料
	主席報告
	財務概要
	管理層討論及分析
	董事及高級管理人員
	董事會報告
	企業管治報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合損益及其他全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	釋義
	封底 

